1. CALLTO ORDER

2. ADOPT AGENDA

3. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT

4. DELEGATIONS

5. ADOPT MINUTES

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS

VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
AGENDA REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
April 9, 2025
Council Chambers
110 Main Street, Rockyford, AB
6:00 p.m.

March report

A. Calvin Scott — Avail
B. Devin Diano — Palliser Regional Municipal Services

A. Minutes from March 12, Regular Meeting
B. Minutes from March 19, Special Meeting

A,
B.

Bank Reconciliation March — Chequing account
Bank Reconciliation March — T Bill account

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS OR BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES
A, Joint Use Planning Agreement — due June 2026

8. NEW BUSINESS

9. CORRESPONDENCE

10. OTHER BUSINESS

11. ACTION ITEM REVIEW LIST

12. CLOSED SESSION

FrRS-SCSTTIOTMOM®>

M Moo m >

A.

. Rescind motion RES 048-2025

Move May meeting date

. Request days off

. Pre-summer bbq

. Operating Budget 2025

. Letter of Recognition for Rockyford Agricultural Society

. Reguest from Rockyford Agricultural Society to use line of credit
. Six Acre parcel

Western Irrigation District — One Year Extension

. Rockyford Library appointment
. Water repairs @ 90s 2 Restaurant
. Bylaw 2025-004, Fees and Charges Bylaw

. Summary of Questions from Alberta Policing Legislative Information Sessions
. Wheatland Housing Management Bedy Financial Statements

. Community Futures Wild Rose March update

. Letter from Minister of Health, Adriana LaGrange

. Exploring Strathmore & Wheatland County - 2025 Magazine

. Letter from Minister Mclver re LAEA

. Key Municipal Dates April 1 —June 30, 2025

. Water loss update
. Update re PRP lots for sale

Exception to Disclosure, Division 2 of part 1 of FOIPP Act, 17. Harmful to personal
privacy



B. Exception to Disclosure, Division 2 of part 1 of FOIPP Act, 27. Privileged Information

13. OUT OF CLOSED SESSION MOTION/MOTIONS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION
14, REPORTS

15. ADJOURNMENT



Public Works Report March 2025

Prairie woods tree pruners out cut down 6 poplars along 1 st street.
Rekeyed door locks at PRP.

Filling potholes.

Thawing culverts on railway.

Installed heat trace in culvert on railway in front of D Alta.

Brotek out to repair shower timer valves. Taught me how to take valve apart and repair
myself.

7. Cleaned PRP bathrooms.

8. Picked up new trailer sat High River.

9. Removed sander and low from Ford.

10. Took Ford back to fix auto to complete repairs.

11. Picked up Village and Lions rodeo banners.

IR
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Introduction

A Key Performance Indicator (KP1) is a metric used to evaluate factors that are crucial
to the success of an organization. The importance of each KPI may change with time
depending on the goals and strategic plans of the organization.

When reviewing KPls, it is important to not only compare to past performance and
desired goals, but to consider industry standards and benchmarks.

The following information has been provided in order to provide you some insight into
some important KPIs for your organization.

It is important to review the underlying information of your municipality in order to
determine cause and create desired change.

The underlying data for this report was token from the financiol data pubiicly available found on the Aiberta
Municipal Affairs website,

Comparaoble municipalities were determined bosed on o range of 75% ta 125% of your popufation.



2020

2021

2022

VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2023 2024

SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS

Assets to Liabilities
This indicator illustrates the extent a

25.00
government finances its operations by issuing
debt. A ratio higher than one indicates that a 555
government has accumulated surplus and has
assets greater than debt. A ratio of less than T
one indicates that debt is greater than assets
and the government has been financing its T
operations by issuing debt.

5.00

0.00

wmmmes/ILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  e==Village Average =—Comparable Village Average we=Comparable Population Average
Total assets 40,554,571 39,299,308 28,982,183 27,972,815 27,805,643
Total liabilities 3,499,834 2,306,919 1,951,930 1,259,677 1,619,427
Assets to liabilities 11.59 17.04 14.85 22.21 17.17
Village Average 8.10 8.77 8.80 8.70
Comparable Village Average 9.22 9.94 10.20 9.75
Comparable Population Average 9.26 10.15 10.34 9.86
Financial assets to liabilities
This indicator illustrates the ratio of a 450
government's financial assets to its liabilities.
A result lower than one indicates a net debt e - -
position and future revenues will be required e
to pay for past transactions. A result higher 450
than one indicates net financial assets and /——-———
financial resources are on hand that can 5
finance future operations. A trend showing
increases in net debt or reductions in net 525
financial assets may not be sustainable.
0.00
s V/ILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  wemmmVfillzge Average  ====Comparable Village Average weemComparable Population Average
Total financial assets 3,737,943 2,572,869 2,111,358 1,710,799 2,256,239
Total liabilities 3,499,834 2,306,919 1,951,930 1,259,677 1,619,427
Financial assets to liabilities 1.07 1.12 1.08 1.36 1.39
Village Average 1.79 1.83 1.88 1.85
Comparable Village Average 1.86 1.97 1.98 2.03
Comparable Population Average 1.96 2.07 2.09 2.12
: Awvail sz



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Current Ratio

The ratio of current assets {cash, temporary
investments, accounts receivable) to current
liabilities (accounts payable, temporary 1200
borrowings, current repayment obligations on
long-term borrowings). This ratio is an
indication of the governments ability to meet 8.00
short term obligations.

14.00

10.00

600 -

4.00

2.00

0.00

e \/ILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  meemeVillage Average == Comparable Village Average =====Comparable Population Average

Current assets 3,674,347 2,509,273 2,047,762 1,622,911 1,799,097
Current liabilities 1,633,673 1,039,348 490,176 149,468 147,518
Assests to liabilities 2.25 241 4.18 10.86 12.20
Village Average 9.00 9.27 9.69 9.27
Comparable Village Average 7.24 8.13 8.26 11.65
Comparable Population Average 7.64 8.24 8.55 11.76

Operating expenses to taxable assessment
This indicator provides the trend of
government spending over time in relation to
the growth in the economy. A trend that 50.00%
shows total expense is growing at a faster

rate than the growth in the economy may not ~ #200%
be sustainable.

60.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

_—
0.00%
e \/|LLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  memmmmmV/illzga Average =—Comparable Village Average ==e==Comparable Population Average

Operating expenses 2,030,046 2,108,583 14,942,381 2,163,517 2,095,247
Taxable assessment 30,296,041 30,248,957 29,898,664 30,633,009 31,625,566
Operating expenses to taxable assessment 6.70% 6.97% 49.98% 7.06% 6.63%
Village Average 3.20% 3.38% 4.07% 3.65%
Comparable Village Average 3.60% 3.89% 6.28% 4.29%
Comparable Population Average 2.91% 3.15% 4.99% 3.41%

.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

FLEXIBILITY INDICATORS

Public debt charges to revenues
This indicator measures public debt charges

.08

as a percentage of revenues. It illustrates the
extent to which past borrowing decisions eer
present a constraint on the ability to meet 0.0
financial and service commitments in the 0.05
current period. Specifically, the more a
government uses revenues to fund debt oot
servicing, the less will be available for 0.03
program spending. 0.02

0.01

0.00

meeee V|LLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  wemmmVillage Average ==—==Comparable Village Average ==w=Comparable Population Average

Debt servicing 63,952 54,264 54,264 55,643 93,913
Operating revenue 1,351,766 1,110,437 4,850,403 1,557,919 1,448,976
Public debt charges to revenues 0.05 0.05 0.01 0.04 0.06
Village Average 0.07 0.07 0.06 0.06
Comparable Village Average 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.05
Comparable Population Average 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.05

Debt to Revenue Percentage
The total amount of municipal borrowings,
including long term capital leases, as a
percentage of total municipal revenues. This
indicator demonstrates the growth in revenue

compared to changes in debt. An increasing =0%
trend would indicate the municipality is 25%
increasing its debt load faster than its revenue 20%

is growing, which may not be sustainable.

0%
§ o VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  =msVillage Average ==Comparable Village Averags Comparable Population Average

Total long term debt principal balance 521,078 475,980 438,466 406,398 652,488
Total revenue 4,631,373 2,046,235 5,029,613 1,607,547 1,568,325
Debt to revenue 11% 23% 9% 25% 42%
Village Average 24% 24% 23% 21%

Comparable Village Average 20% 22% 18% 17%

Comparable Population Average 20% 21% 18% 17%

ﬂ °
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net book value to cost of tangible capital assets
This indicator is important because it reports 0.50
the extent that the estimated useful lives of —
tangible capital assets are available to provide
its services. If a government's scale, scope and a
level of services remain unchanged or grow, — - —
its asset base could eventually impair 0.50 :
flexibility because of the impending future 0.40
costs of capital asset repair or replacement. 030

020 -

0.10

0.00

amsens VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD ==—=Village Average =—=Comparable Village Average =emComparable Pogulation Average

Net book value 36,812,030 36,726,439 26,850,817 26,241,645 25,529,115
Cost of tangible capital assets 43,585,476 44,538,293 33,865,931 33,874,636 33,986,402
Net book value to cost of tangible capital assets 0.84 0.82 0.79 0.77 0.75
Village Average 0.57 0.57 0.55 0.55
Comparable Village Average 0.60 0.59 0.57 0.57
Comparable Population Average 0.60 0.59 0.57 0.57
Infrastructure Investment
The total cost of annual additions (through .
purchases or construction) to tangible capital 4.50
assets {vehicles, equipment, buildings, roads, 4.00
utility infrastructure, land) relative to the 350
annual amortization (depreciation) on all 3.00
tangible capital assets - measured as a five- 250
year average. -

1.50

1.00

030

wemeneee V/ILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  wmmmm/illage Avarage =

-Comparable Village Average == Comparatle Population Average

Tangible capital assets additions 3,453,173 952,817 3,705,655 309,674 111,766
Annual amortization expense 1,006,671 1,038,408 817,111 821,531 824,286
Additions to amortization expense 3.43 0.92 4.54 0.38 0.14
Village Average 1.83 1.83 1.50 1.66
Comparable Village Average 191 1.66 1.97 0.96
Comparable Population Average 1.87 1.88 1.93 0.96
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Own source revenues to taxable assessment
This indicator is important because it shows 18.00%
the ratio of a local government's own source i
revenues to its tax base. A change in the size
of a local government's taxable assessment or -
a change in the rate of growth in assessment L0
in relation to changes in own source revenues 10-00%
could influence flexibility. 8.00% - =

6.00%

4.00%

2.00%

0.00%

sen VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD wmmm=Village Average === Comparable Village Average e==sComparzble Population Average

Own source revenues (net of government transfers) 1,278,900 1,026,168 4,817,184 1,493,057 1,384,638
Taxable assessment 30,296,041 30,248,957 29,898,664 30,633,009 31,625,566
Own source revenues to taxable assessment 4.22% 3.39% 16.11% 4.87% 4.38%
Village Average 1.50% 1.48% 1.78% 1.64%
Comparable Village Average 2.39% 2.30% 3.33% 2.68%
Comparable Population Average 1.85% 1.79% 2.54% 2.04%

VULNERABILITY INDICATORS

Government transfers to total revenues

The purpose of this ratio is to show the
proportion of revenues that provincial or local
governments receive frem other
governments. This indicator offers a
perspective on the degree of vulnerability a
government faces as a result of its
dependence on another level of government
for revenues.

wenmses V[ LLAGE OF ROCKYFORD e Vi |3,

Average == Comparahble Village Average weComparabl

le Population Average

Government transfers (including capital) 3,352,473 1,020,067 212,429 114,490 183,687

Total revenues (including capital) 4,631,373 2,046,235 5,029,613 1,607,547 1,568,325
Government transfers to total revenues 72% 50% 4% 7% 12%
Village Average 30% 31% 17% 26%

Comparable Village Average 34% 30% 13% 18%

Comparable Population Average 34% 32% 13% 18%

Ay
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
OTHER INDICATORS
Reserves to total accumulated surplus -
The purpose of this ratio is to show the
proportion of total accumulated surplus that %
has been internally restricted. This indicator 5%
provides insight on the change in reserves in A
relation to overall accumulated surplus. A -
decrease would show that the government 4%
has drawn on past reserves to fund current %
operations.
2%
1%
0% = =i
s /| LLAGE OF ROCKYFORD wmmmVillage Average == Comparable Village Average w====Comparable Population Average
Accumulated surplus - restricted - 6,332 6,332 13,243 86,393
Overall accumulated surplus 37,054,737 36,992,389 27,030,253 26,713,138 26,186,216
Restricted surplus to accumulated surplus 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Village Average 7% 6% 7% 7%
Comparable Village Average 6% 6% 7% 7%
Comparable Population Average 7% 7% 7% 8%
Accumulated surplus available for future use 1,600,000
Accumulated surplus, to the extent it has not
been invested in Tangible Capital Assets, L 300,000 /
represents overall surplus that is available for 1,200,000 = M
future use. This consists of unrestricted
) 1,000,000
surplus and reserves and shows trends in
spending vs. saving. This indicator only shows 800,000
total surplus; the overall size of the 600,000
municipality is not taken into account.
400,000
200,000
e | LLAGE OF ROCKYFORD  wemmmVilizge Average === Comparable Village Average ====Comparable Pooulation Average
Accumulated surplus - restricted - 6,332 6,332 13,243 86,393
Accumulated surplus - unrestricted 763,785 735,600 611,570 864,648 935,011
Total accumulated surplus 763,785 741,932 617,902 877,891 1,021,404
Village Average 1,212,908 1,156,522 1,226,242 1,321,979
Comparable Village Average 1,184,545 1,202,378 1,197,458 1,389,070
Comparable Population Average 1,235,880 1,233,252 1,250,455 1,440,105

.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Tax Base Ratio
This ratio reports the proportion of the total

municipal tax revenue generated by z:: -
residential and farmland tax base, regardless i FE—
of whether it is municipal property taxes, . ______‘_______
special taxes, or local improvement taxes. - |

81%

80%

79%

78%

77%

76% -

s V/ILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD wmmmmmVijillzge Average ====Comparable Village Average w=e=Comparable Population Average

Residential & farmland assessed value 24,471,154 24,368,134 23,860,037 24,291,050 25,099,415
Total assessed value 30,296,041 30,248,957 29,898,664 30,633,009 31,625,566
Residential & farmland assessment percentage 81% 81% 80% 79% 79%
Village Average 83% 83% 83% 83%
Comparable Village Average 81% 80% 80% 80%
Comparable Population Average 85% 84% 84% 85%
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Comparable Listing

Comparables were determined on a range of 75% to 125% of your population

Total Village Count: 74

Comparables - Same Type (23) Comparables - Any Type (24)
Village list with a comparable population List used for comparable populations
ANDREW ANDREW
BARONS BARONS
BAWLF BAWLF

BIG VALLEY BIG VALLEY
CARBON CARBON
CAROLINE CAROLINE
CHAMPION CHAMPION
CHAUVIN CHAUVIN
CLYDE CLYDE
CREMONA CREMONA
DONNELLY DONNELLY
EDGERTON EDGERTON

HAY LAKES HAY LAKES
HINES CREEK HINES CREEK
HOLDEN HOLDEN

IRMA IRMA
LONGVIEW LONGVIEW
NAMPA NAMPA
ROCKYFORD NORGLENWOQLD
ROSEMARY ROCKYFORD
RYLEY ROSEMARY
STANDARD RYLEY

WARNER STANDARD

WARNER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: The Mayor and Members of Council of
the Village of Rockyford

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Village of Rockyford which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statements
of operations, remeasurement gains and losses, change in net financial assets and cash flow for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respecls,
the financial position of the Village as at December 31, 2024, and its results of operations,
remeasurement gains and losses, change in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Viltage has not adopted the new accounting standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations, which
constitutes a departure from Canadian public sector accounting standards. As a result, we were unable to
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to tangible capital assets, assel retirement
obligations, and accumulated surplus as at December 31, 2024, or to revenue and expenses for the year
then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Village in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Village's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Village or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stafements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasconable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

Fort Macleod | Invermere | Lethbridge | Milk River | Taber | Vauxhall 1



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT, continued

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Village's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Village's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report {0 the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

[Car't Show Availllpsig.png

Lethbridge, Alberta l

April 9, 2025 Chartered Professional Accountants
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Village of Rockyford is responsible for the preparation, accuracy, objectivity and
integrity of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and all other information contained
within this Financial Report. Management believes that the consolidated financial statements present
fairly the Village's financial position as at December 31, 2024 and the results of its operations for the
year then ended.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards (PSAS).

The consolidated financial statements include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. Such
amounts have been determined on a reasonable basis in order to ensure the consolidated financial
statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

In fulfilling its responsibilities and recognizing the limits inherent in all systems, management has
designed and maintains a system of internal controls to produce reliable information and to meet
reporting requirements on a timely basis. The system is designed to provide management with
reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized and assets are properly accounted for
and safeguarded.

These systems are monitored and evaluated by management and reliable financial information is
available for preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The Village Council is responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its responsibilities for the
financial statements. Council carries out its responsibility principally through the committee of the whole.
Council meets annually with management and external auditors to discuss the results of audit
examinations and financial reporting matters. The Village Council has approved the consolidated
financial statements.

The external auditors have full access to the Audit Committee with and without the presence of
management, The Village Council has approved the consoclidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Avail LLP Chartered Professional
Accountants, the independent external auditors appointed by the Village. The accompanying
independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of the examination and their
opinion on the Village's consolidated financial statements.

Village Administrator




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2024

2024 2023
Financial assets
Cash and temporary investments (note 2) % 867,795 $ 1,029,197
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (note 3} 226,882 180,075
Trade and other receivables (note 4) 704,420 413,640
Land held for resale 455,306 86,051
Investments {note 5) 1,837 1,837
2,256,240 1,710,800
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 79,141 107,374
Deferred revenue {note 6) 872,793 732,826
Long-term debt (note 7} 652,488 406,398
Other liabilities 15,005 13,080
1,619,427 1,259,678
Net financial assets 636,813 451,122
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 1,572 363
Inventory for consumption 18,717 20,008
Tangible capital assets (schedule 2} 25,529,115 26,241,646
25,549,404 26,262,017
Accumulated surplus
Accumulated operating surplus (note 8 and schedule 1) 26,186,217 26,713,139
Accumulated remeasurement gains {losses) - -
$ 26,186,217 $ 26,713,139

Commitments and contingencies (note 18)

Approved on behalf of Council:

Councillor Councillor




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
{unaudited}
Revenue
Net municipal property taxes (note 11) $ 377,656 $ 385,700 § 371,054
User fees and sales of goods 677,325 601,775 621,482
Government transfers for operating (note 12) 64,862 134,410 64,862
Investment income 39,363 44,281 48,856
Penalties and costs of taxes 39,500 38,876 41,445
Licenses and permits 5,550 6,676 5,837
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 5,204
Franchise and concession contracts 53,000 58,473 51,436
Other 97,026 129,813 120,096
1,354,282 1,400,004 1,330,272
Expenses (note 13)
General government
Legislative 30,252 23,830 31,243
Administration 211,041 181,087 208,195
Protective services
Police 17,246 16,871 11,497
Fire 184,399 192,329 252,113
Ambulance services and first aid 3,160 3,160 3,160
Transportation services
Common and equipment pool 98,811 84,085 91,922
Roads, streets, walks and lighting 145,102 156,862 140,079
Storm sewers and drainage 1,060 1,034 1,005
Environmental use and protection
Water supply and distribution 1,262,018 1,217,933 1,201,979
W astewater treatment and disposal 36,231 31,820 33,320
Waste management 46,323 49,702 42,114
Public health and weifare
Family and community support services 2,836 2,836 2,806
Cemeleries and crematoriums - 2,044 200
Planning and development
Land use planning, zoning and development 14,000 14,335 6,100
Community services and tourism 2,700 1,625 8,022
l.and, housing and building rentals 24,050 33,059 41,434
Recreation and culture
Parks and recreation 49,368 75495 81,221
Culture - libraries, museums, halls 7,200 7,141 7,107
2,135,787 2,095,248 2,163,517
Deficiency of revenue over expenses before capital (781,505) (695,244} {833,245)
revenue
Capital revenue
Government transfers for capital (note 12} 164,776 168,322 277,275
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (616,729} {526,922) (555,970)
Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 26,713,139 26,713,139 27,269,109

Accumulated operating surplus, end of year $ 26,096410 $ 26,186,217 $ 26,713,139




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REMEASUREMENT GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses),
beginning of year $ - $ -

Unrealized gains (losses) attributable to:
Equity investments - -

Amounts reclassified to statements of operations:
Equity investments realized gains - -

Net remeasurement gains {losses) for the year - -

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses),
end of year $ - $ -




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
{(Unaudited)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (616,729 %  (526,922) §  (555,970)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {468,950) (111,765) {309,674)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 829,296 824,296 821,531
Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 44 518
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 23,000

360,346 712,531 579,375

Net change in inventory for consumption - 1,291 -

Net change in prepaid expense - {1,209) {363)
Increase in net financial assets {256,383) 185,691 23,042
Net financial assets, beginning of year 451,122 451,122 428,080
Net financial assets, end of year ) 194,739 $ 636,813 $ 451,122




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023

Operating transactions

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (526,922) $  (555,970)
Adjustments for items which do not affect cash
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 44 518
Amortization of tangible capital assets 824,296 821,531
297,374 310,079
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (46,807) 101,375
Trade and other receivables (290,780) (9,496}
Land held for resale (369,255) (16,936)
Inventory for consumption 1,29 -
Prepaid expenses (1,209) (363)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (28,233) 18,174
Deferred revenue 139,967 {199,148)
Other liabilities 1,925 (6,191)
Cash applied to (provided by) operating transactions (285,727) 197,494
Capital transactions
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 23,000
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (111,765) (309,674)
Cash applied to capital transactions {111,765) (286,674)
Investing transactions
Change in patronage reserve equity - (317)
Financing transactions
Praceeds of long-term debt 300,000 7.904
Repayment of long-term debt (53,910} {39,972)
Cash provided by (applied to) financing transactions 246,090 (32,068)
Decrease in cash and temporary investments (161,402) {121,565)
Cash and temporary investments, beginning of year 1,029,197 1,150,762
Cash and temporary investments, end of year % 867,795 $ 1,029,197




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NCTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Village of Rockyford are the representations of
management prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Village are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

{c}

Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses,
changes in fund balances and change in financial position of the reporting entity which
comprises all of the organizalions that are owned or controlled by the Village and are,
therefore, accountable to the Council for the administration of their financial affairs and
resources, These financial statements include the propartionate ownership of the Wheatland
Regional Corporation.

Taxes levied also includes requisitions for educational, health care, social and other
external organizations that are not part of the municipal reporting entity.

The statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties.
Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services
and/or the legal obligation to pay.

Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legistation are
accounted for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.

Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties
pursuant to legislation, regutation or agreement and may only be used for certain programs,
in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition,
certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be
performed. Revenue is recognized in the peried when the related expenses are incurred,
services performed or the tangible capital assets are acquired.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
costs for land acquisition and improvements required to prepare the land for servicing such
as clearing, stripping, and leveling charges. Related development costs incurred to provide
infrastructure such as water and waste water services, roads, sidewalks, and street lighting
are recorded as physical assets under their respective function.




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

1. Significant accounting policies, continued

{d)

(e)

Investments

Investments in derivatives and equity instruments quoted in an active market are carried at
fair value with transactions costs expensed upon initial recognition. Unrealized changes in
fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. When the
investment is disposed of the accumulated gains or losses are reclassified to the statement
of operations.

Investments in interest bearing securities are recorded at amortized cost. Investment
premiums and discounts are amortized on the net present value basis over the term of the
respective investments. When there has been a loss in value that is other than a temporary
decling, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represent government transfers, donations, and other amounts which
have been collected, but for which the related services have yet to be performed or
agreement stipulations have not been met. These amounts will be recognized as revenues
when revenue recognition criteria have been met.

Long-term debt

Long-term debt is initially recognized net of any premiums, discounts, fees and fransactions
costs, with interest expense recognized using the effective interest method. Long-term debt
is subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Contaminated sites liability

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability
for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when the site is not in productive use
and is management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation,
maintenance and monitoring.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies, continued

(h)

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the normal course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change
in Net Financial Assets for the year.

(i)

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible caplital assets is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Years
Buildings 50
Engineered structures 15-75
Machinery and equipment 10-25
Vehicles 10-25

A full year of amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and no amortization in
the year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.

Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the date
of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially
all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as
capital leases. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related
lease payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

Inventories
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement
cost.

Cultural and historical tangible capital assets
Works of art for display are not recorded as tangible capital assets but are disclosed.

11



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies, continued

(i)

()

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities
The Village's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured as follows:

Financial statement component Measurement

Cash Cost and amortized cost

Temporary investments Amortized cost

Trade and other receivables Lower of cost or net recoverable value
Investments Fair value and amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  Cost

Deposit liabilities Cost

Bank indebtedness and long-term debt Amortized cost

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards reguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expense during the period. Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial statements
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from transactions with no performance obligation is recognized at realizable value
when the Village has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources and
identifies a past transaction or event giving rise to an asset.

Revenue from transactions with performance obligations is recognized as the performance
obligations are satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payor. User fees
are recognized over the period of use, sales of goods are recognized when goods are
delivered. Licenses and permits with a single performance obligation at a point in time are
recognized as revenue on issuance, those which result in a continued performance
obligation over time are recognized over the period of the license or permit as the
performance obligation is satisfied.

Government transfers

Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are
not the result of an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the
result of a direct financial return.

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in
which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be
determined.

Tax revenue
Tax revenues are recognized when the tax has been authorized by bylaw and the taxable
event has occurred.

Requisitions operate as a flow through and are excluded from municipal revenue.

12



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2.

Significant accounting policies, continued

(n)

Requisition over-levy and under-levy
Ovei-levies and under-levies arise from the difference between the actual property tax levy
made to cover each requisition and the actual amount requisitioned.

If the actual levy exceeds the requisiticn, the over-levy is accrued as a liability and property
tax revenue is reduced. Where the actual levy is less than the requisition amount, the
under-levy is accrued as a receivable and as property tax revenue.

Requisition tax rates in the subsequent year are adjusted for any over-levies or under-levies
of the prior year.

Future change in accounting policy

The following summarizes upcoming changes to Canadian public sector accounting
standards. In 2025, the Village will continue to assess the impact and prepare for the
adoption of these standards. While the timing of standard adoption may vary, certain
standards must be adopted concurrently.

a) The Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

The Conceptual Framework is the foundation for public sector financial reporting standard
setting. It replaces the conceptual aspects of Section PS 1000 Financial Statement
Concepts and Section PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The conceptual framework
highlights considerations fundamental for the consistent application of accounting issues in
the absence of the specific standards. The standard is applicable for the fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2026,

b} PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation

Section PS 1202 sets out general and specific requirements for the presentation of
information in general purpose financial statements. The financial statement presentation
principles are based on the concepts within the Conceptual Framework. The standard is
applicable for the fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026.

Cash and temporary investments

2024 2023
Cash 5 580,034 § 243,795
Temporary investments 286,861 785,402

$ 867,795 § 1,029,197

Temporary investments are comprised of T-bill savings accounts with interest rates earning an
average of 4.9% (2023 - 3.6%).

13



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables

2024 2023
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable $ 19,748 § 18,030
Arrears 207,134 162,045

$ 226,882 $ 180,075

Trade and other receivables

2024 2023
Local Government Fiscal Framework {LGFF) - Capital $ 233,729 § -
Wheatland Regional Corporation 196,986 174,818
Canada Community Building Fund (CCBF) 123,012 50,000
Rockyford Rural Fire Association 62,920 49,332
Trade receivables 43,751 37,554
GST 35,783 12,764
Rockyford Agricultural Society 8,239 16,684
Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) - Capital - 72,488

$ 704,420 § 413,640

Investments
2024 2023
Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value
Patronage reserves - cost $ 1,837 § 1837 § 1,837 § 1,837

Unrealized gains on equity instruments carried at fair value of $0 (2023 - $0) have been
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses.

Investment income recognized in the statement of operations includes $44,281 (2023 - $48,856)
of interest income.

14



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

6.

Deferred revenue

2024 2023
Canada Community Building Fund (CCBF) $ 394,379 § 332,329
Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF) - Capital 233,729 -
Wheatland County Infrastructure Services Program (CRISP) 143,681 192,655
Wheatland County - Water for Life 56,056 56,054
Municipal Sustainability Initiative {(MSI) - Capital 38,298 146,685
Services not yet provided 4,025 3,278
Prepaid cemetery lots 2,625 1,825
$ 872,793 § 732,826

Deferred revenue is comprised of the funds noted above, the use of which, together with any
earnings thereon, is restricted by agreement. These funds are recognized as revenue in the

period they are used for the purpose specified.

Local Government Fiscal Framework

Funding in the amount of $295,967 was received in the current year from the Local Government
Fiscal Framework. Of the $295,967 received, $233,729 is from the capital component of the
program and is restricted to eligible capital projects, as approved under the funding agreement.
The remaining $62,238 is from the operating component of the program and is restricted to

eligible operating projects, as approved under the funding agreement.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Long-term debt

2024 2023
Utility supported debenture - capital $ 313,853 § 326,587
Self-supported debenture - operating 288,185 -
Tax supporied debentures - capital 44 672 72,751
Long term debt - capital 5778 7,060

$ 652,488 § 406,398

Current portion $ 68,376 $ 42,095

Principal and interest repayments are due as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 68,376 § 25,537 § 93,913
2026 55,841 22,469 78,310
2027 42,325 20,380 62,705
2028 44,129 18,577 62,706
2029 45,091 16,697 61,788
Thereafter 396,726 151,779 548,505

b 652,488 § 255439 § 907,927

Debenture debt is repayable to the Province of Alberta and bears interest at rates ranging from
3.192% to 4.88% per annum and matures in perieds 2026 through 2042, The average annual
interest rate is 4.27% for 2024 (3.97% for 2023). Debenture debt is issued on the credit and
security of the Village at large.

Leng-term debt is repayable to Royal Bank of Canada and bears interest at rate of 1.49% per
annum. Security pledged consists of a vehicle with a proportionate carrying value of $12,418.

Interest on long-term debt amounted to $20,868 (2023 - $13,924).

The Village's total cash payments for interest in 2024 were $20,868 (2023 - $15,211).
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

8.

10.

Accumulated operating surplus

Accumulated operating surplus consists of internally restricted and unrestricted amounts and
equity in tangible capital assets as follows:

2024 2023
Unrestricted surplus 3 935012 § 864,648
Internally restricted reserves (note 9) 86,393 13,243
Equity in tangible capital assets {note 10) 25,164,812 25,835,248

$ 26,186,217 § 26,713,139

Reserves

Council has set up reserves for various purposes, These reserves are either required by
legislation or set up at the discretion of Council to provide funding for future expenses.

Police funding reserve
This reserve funds will be used to fund the future payments for the RCMP requisition.

Fire funding reserve
This reserve funds will be used in the future for fire equipment purchases.

Capital equipment reserve
This reserve funds will be used in the future for Wheatland Regional Corporation’s equipment
purchases.

2024 2023
Operating
Police funding reserve $ 11,321 § 13,243
Fire funding reserve 70,072 -
81,393 13,243
Capital
Capital equipment reserve 5,000 -

$ 86,393 § 13,243

Equity in tangible capital assets

2024 2023
Tangible capital assets (schedule 2) $ 33,986,402 § 33,874,637
Accumulated amortization {schedule 2) (8,457 287) (7,632,991}
Long-term debt {nhote 7) {652,488) (406,398)
Qperating debt (hote 7) 288,185 -

$ 25,164,812 $ 25,835,248
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Net municipal property taxes

Budget 2024 2023
{unaudited)
Net municipal taxes (after requisitions)
Real property taxes $ 300,704 3 309,091 § 294,785
Linear property taxes 67,722 67,722 67,857
Business taxes 2,753 2,753 2,770
Government grants in place of property taxes 6,477 6,134 5,642
377,656 385,700 371,054
Requisitions
Alberta School Foundation Fund 87,900 87,900 85,916
Wheatland Housing 11,000 2,074 2,871

$ 98,900 § 89,974 § 88,787

Government transfers

Budget 2024 2023
{unaudited}

Transfers for operating:
Provincial government 3 62,237 $ 132,310 § 62,237
Federal government 2,625 2,100 2,625
64,862 134,410 64,862

Transfers for capital:

Other local government 143,776 157,360 227,647
Provincial government 21,000 10,962 49,628
164,776 168,322 277,275

$ 229,638 % 302,732 § 342,137
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

13.

14.

Expenses by object

Budget 2024 2023
(unaudited)

Salaries, wages and benefits $ 320,981 $ 300,657 $ 335,296
Contracted and general services 650,157 620,207 622,174
Materials, goods and utilities 250,531 254,352 254,985
Bank charges and short term interest 2,500 2,945 3,156
Interest on long term debt 16,512 20,868 13,924
Other expenditures 5,500 6,170 13,352
Transfers to local boards and agencies 51,310 65,753 49,377
Amortization of tangible capital assets 829,296 824,296 821,531
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 49,722
$ 2135787 $ 2095248 $§ 2,163,517

Debt limits and debt servicing limit

Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by

Alberta Regulation 255/0C for the Village be disclosed as follows:

2024 2023

Tatal debt limit § 2,100,005 $ 1,995407
Total debt 652,488 406,398
$ 1447517 § 1,589,000

Debt servicing limit $ 350,001 % 332,568
Debt servicing 93,913 55,643
5 256,088 $ 276,925

The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the municipality (as defined in Alberta
Regulation 255/00) and the debt service limit is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring
debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These
thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities which could
be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not represent the
financial stability of the municipality. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted as a

whole,
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

15.

16,

Salary and benefits disclosure

Disclosure of salaries and benefits for elected municipal officials, the chief administrative officer
and designated officers as required by Alberta Regulation 313/2000 is as follows:

(1) (2)

Benefits &

Salary  allowances 2024 2023
Council
Burke, Darcy $ 6,688 $ 284 § 6,972 $ 9,115
Smith, Leah 4,500 134 4,634 4,780
Goodfellow, William 1,325 - 1,325 1,781
Henke, Tyler 875 - 875 1,661
Geeraert, April 888 - 888 918
Chief Administrative Officer (1) 56,288 4,068 60,356 73,047
Designated Officer (1) 3 5494 § - $ 5,494 § -

(1) Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum payments, gross honoraria
and any other direct cash remuneration.

{2)Benefits and allowances include the employer's share of all employee benefils and
contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care,
dental coverage, vision coverage, group life insurance, accidental disability and
dismemberment insurance, long- and short-term disability plans, professional memberships,
and tuition.

Benefits and allowances figures also include the employer's share of the costs of additional
taxable benefits including special leave with pay, financial planning services, retirement
planning services, concessionary loans, travel allowances, car allowances, and club
memberships.

Segmented disclosure

The Village provides a range of services to its ratepayers. For each reported segment, revenues
and expenses represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the segment and amounts
that are allocated on a reasonable basis. The accounting policies used in these segments are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in note
1.

Refer to the schedule of segmented disclosure (schedule 3).
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

17.

18.

19.

Budget amounts

The 2024 budget for the Village was approved by Council and has been reported in the
consolidated financial statements for information purposes only. These budget amounts have not
been audited, reviewed, or otherwise verified.

The approved budget contained capital additions and principal payments on debt as
expenditures, Since these items are not included in the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements, they have been excluded from the budget amounis presented in these
financial statements.

The approved budget did not contain an amount for amortization expense. In order to enhance
comparability, the actual amortization expense has been included as a budget amount.

Budgeted deficit per financial statements $ (616,729)
Less: Long-term debt repayments (41,596}
Capital expenditures (455,776)
Transfer to reserves (5,000)
Add: Amortization 829,206
Proceeds on long term debt 300,000
Transfer from reserves 2,294
Equals: budgeted approved surplus $ 12,489

Commitments and contingencies

The Village of Rockyford is @ member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange {MUNIX)
which provides liability insurance. The investment in this program is not reflected as an asset in
the accompanying financial statements. Under the terms of membership, the Village could
become liable for its proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the funds held by the
exchange. Any liability incurred would be accounted for as a current transaction in the year the
losses are determined.

Contaminated sites liability

The Village has adopted PS3260 liability for contaminated sites. The Village did not identify any
financial liabilities in 2024 {2023 - nil} as a result of this standard.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Forthe year ended December 31, 2024

20,

21.

22,

Financial instruments

The Village's financial instruments consist of cash and temporary investments, accounts
receivable, investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,and long-term debt. It is
management's opinion that the Village is not exposed to significant interest or currency risk
arising from these financial instruments,

The Village is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables
and trade and other receivables. Credit risk arises from the possibility that taxpayers and entities
to which the Village provides services may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulfil
their obligations. The large number and diversity of taxpayers and customers minimizes the
credit risk. At year-end, 51% (2023 - 91%) of the outstanding taxes receivable balance relates to
one taxpayer.

Unless otherwise noted, the carrying value of the financial instrument approximates fair value.
Investment in government partnership

The Village purchased 25 class B common shares in Wheatland Regional Corporation (WRC) for
25% ownership in the amount of $2.50.

WRC was formed in partnership with the Village of Rockyford, Village of Hussar, Village of
Standard, and the Wheatland County. WRC is responsible for distribution of water to its
parthering municipalities.

WRC is accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method. Below is a financial
summary of the Corporation's financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and for the year
then ended as follows;

2024 2024 2024 2023
Total 75% share 25% share 25% share
{restated)

Financial assets 1,141,388 856,041 285,347 226,509
Liabilities 614,689 461,017 153,672 140,521
Net financial debt 526,699 395,024 131,675 85,988
Non-financial assets 11,882,914 8,912,186 2,970,728 3,054,520
Accumulated surplus 12,409,613 9,307,210 3,102,403 3,140,508
Total revenue 1,171,817 878,863 292,954 337,928
Total expenses 1,324,234 993,176 331,058 364,119
Excess of revenue over expenses (152,417) (114,313) (38,104) {26,191}

The following amounts pertain fo transactions and balances hetween the Village and WRC. They
have been adjusted using the proportionate consolidation method.

- Revenues of $357,249 (2023 - $363,108)

- Due to shareholders of $262,656 {2023 - $233,090)

- Accounts payable of $19,998 (2023 - $27,278)

- Share capital of $2.50 (2023 - $2.50)

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were approved by Council and Management.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Schedule of changes in accumulated operating surplus

Schedule 1
Restricted  Equity in tangible
Unrestricted reserves capital assets 2024 2023

Balance, beginning of year  § 864,649 $ 13,243 § 25835247 $ 26,713,139 $ 27,269,109
Deficiency of revenue over

expenses (526,922) - - (526,922) (555,970}
Unrestricted funds

designated for future use (75,072) 75,072 - - -
Restricted funds used for

operations 1,922 (1,922} - - -
Current year funds used for

tangible capital assets {(111,765) - 111,765 - -
Amortization of tangible

capital assets 824,296 - (824,296) - -
Long-term debt related to

tangible capital assets

repaid (42,096) - 42,096 - -
Change in accumulated 70,363 73,150 (670,435) (526,922) (555,970}

surplus
Balance, end of year $ 935,012 § 86,393 $ 25164812 $ 26,186,217 $ 26,713,139
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Budget 2024 2023
(unaudited)
Revenue

Net municipal property taxes (note 11) $ 377,656 385,700 $ 371,054
User fees and sales of goods 419,261 409,166 383,605
Government transfers for operating (note 12) 64,860 134,410 64,862
Investment income 38,000 33,248 39,615
Penalties and costs of taxes 39,500 38,876 41,445
Licenses and permits 5,550 6,676 5,837
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 5,170
Franchise and concession contracts 53,000 58,473 51,436
Other 97.026 129.813 120,096
1,094,853 1,196,362 1,083,120
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Budget 2024 2023
(unaudited)

Financial

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before capital (712,584) (657,140) (807,055)
Results
Capital revenue
Government transfers for capital (note 12) 164,776 168,322 277,275
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (547,808) (488,818) (529,780)
Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 23,572,631 23,572,631 24,102 411
Accumulated operating surplus, end of year $ 23,024,823 $ 23,083,813 $ 23,572,631
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2024 2023

=4 = . +
m — : m : o — m — _u_:MMMH.”MmﬁM”gEQ investments (note 2) $ 637,875 $ 851,289

Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (note 3) 226,882 180,075
Trade and other receivables (note 4) 719,662 430,130
m esu — .ﬂ S Land held for resale 455,306 86,051
Investments (note 5) 1,839 1.839

2,041,564 1,549,384

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 73,990 109,267
Deferred revenue (note 6) 815,727 675,644
Long-term debt (note 7) 646,709 399,338
1.536.426 1,184 249
Net financial assets 505,138 365,135

L ]
IP a CHARTERED
1‘ PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANTS




SINVINNOOOV
TVNOISS3d0ud
A3IYILAVHO v x<’
L J

¥¥9°G29 $ lzi'618 $

cZgl G29¢C S10] AJSJOWB0 pledald
0SLZ GLo'e papiAoid 194 10U SBIAIRS
S89°9Fi 86¢ 8¢ [endeD - (ISW) @aneniu] Ajipqeurelsns [edviuniy
SS9°Z6L L89'crL (dSIyD) weiboid seoinues ainonaselu] Aunod puefeayn
i 6Tl'csT [endeD - (4497) Jomawel (23514 JUSWUIBAOS) (B0
62E'2ee $ 6.E'Vv6E $ (34999) pung Buipjing Ajlunwiwoy) epeue)
£20C ¥202

anuaAal pauajeq

0EL 0y $ 299'6L. $

ST

88T/ = 1exde) IS
¥89°91L 6£2'8 Re00os einynouby pioyfyooy
9€s5'8 901’62 159 —m—ocmc —m
zee'er 026'29 UOIBIOOSSY a1 [Ny PIoyf3ooy = -~
000°0S zLo'szt pung Buippng Ajunwiwos) epeued)
= 6cl'cee JIoMmaWel [edsi4 JUSWILIDAOS) [e007]
060°€€T ¢ 959C9¢ ¢ (0z s30u) uoneiodio) jeuoibay puepeaym
€20¢ ¥20z

S9|eAIId3] JOYO puE Jpel]




Financial
RS

CHARTERED
PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANTS

2024 2023

Non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 1,572 363
Inventory for consumption 18,717 20,008
Tangible capital assets (schedule 2) 22,558,386 23,187,125

22.578.675 23,207 496

Accumulated surplus

>ooc3c_m~maovmqmm=omca_cmSoﬂmmmznmosmncmm: mw.omu,mdu ww.md...mw._
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) = =

$ 23,083,813 $ 23572631

Accumulated operating surplus

Accumulated operating surplus consists of intemally restricted and unrestricted amounts and
equity in tangible capital assets as follows:

2024 2023
Unrestricted surplus 3 802,558 $ 771,601
Internally restricted reserves (note 9) 81,393 13,243
Equity in tangible capital assets (note 10) 22,199,862 22 787787

$ 23,083,813 $ 23,572,631
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2024 2024 2024 2023

Total 75% share 25% share 25% share
(restated)
Financial assets 1,141,388 856,041 285,347 226,509
Liabilities 614.689 461.017 153,672 140.521
Net financial debt 526,699 395,024 131,675 85,988
Non-financial assets 11882914 8912186 2970728 3,054 520
Accumulated surplus 12409613 9.307.210 3,102,403 3,140,508
Total revenue 1,171,817 878,863 292,954 337,928
Total expenses 1.324,234 993.176 331.058 364.119
Excess of revenue over expenses 3 38.104 26.191

The following amounts pertain to transactions and balances between the Village and WRC. They
have been adjusted using the proportionate consolidation method.

- Revenues of $357,249 (2023 - $363,108)

- Due to shareholders of $262,656 (2023 - $233,090)

- Accounts payable of $19,998 (2023 - $27,278)

- Share capital of $2.50 (2023 - 52.50)
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Financial assets to liabilities
= This indicator illustrates the ratio of a 250

_ government's financial assets to its liabilities.
ndicators of e e |

position and future revenues will be required e — : {

= = to pay for past transactions. A result higher

than one indicates net financial assets and
m _ : m : n — m — financial resources are on hand that can
finance future operations. A trend showing

increases in net debt or reductions in net oso i i |

0 o : Q m ” m o : financial assets may not be sustainable, ,
0.00 i m m

150

——VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD =—==village Average —— Comparable Village Average =—=Comparable Popuiation Average
Total financial assets 3,737,943 2,572,869 2,111,358 1,710,799 2,256,239
Total liabilities 3,499,834 2,306,919 1,951,930 1,259,677 1,619,427
Financial assets to liabilities 1.07 1.12 1.08 1.36 1.39
Village Average 1.79 1.83 1.88 1.85
Comparable Village Average 1.86 197 198 2.03
Comparable Population Average 1.96 2.07 2.09 212
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
-l-. b to bl t
This indicator provides the trend of G ,
government spending over time in relation to ; |
the growth in the economy. A trend that 30.00% ! L
shows total expense is growing at a faster | >
rate than the growth in the economy may not ~ <%%%% T ]
be sustainable. ) m \ /
30.00% . / ]
{ i | | !
2000% | , \. ! / | :
a0k | ! / \ | ,
0.00% - - .
——VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD = Village Average ——Comparable Village Average == Comparable Populaton Average
Operating expenses 2,030,046 2,108,583 14,942,381 2,163,517 2,095,247
Taxable assessment 30,296,041 30,248,957 29,898,664 30,633,009 31,625,566
Operating expenses to taxable assessment 6.70% 6.97% 49.98% 7.06% 6.63%
Village Average 3.20% 3.38% 4.07% 3.65%
Comparable Village Average 3.60% 3.89% 6.28% 4.29%
Comparable Population Average 2.91% 3.15% 4.99% 3.41%
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Indicators of o ——

proportion of revenues that provincial or local | _
70% | >~ :

governments receive from other
governments. This indicator offers a 60% |

u u i
m — : : perspective on the degree of vulnerability a -
government faces as a result of its |

dependence on another level of government %
308
= = for revenues. |
20%
ondition
0% ,
= VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD village Average —— Comparable Village Average ——Comparable Population Average
Government transfers (including capital) 3,352,473 1,020,067 212,429 114,490 183,687
Total revenues (including capital} 4,631,373 2,046,235 5,029,613 1,607,547 1,568,325
Government transfers to total revenues 72% 50% 4% 7% 12%
Village Average 30% 31% 17% 26%
Comparable Village Average 34% 30% 13% 18%
Comparable Population Average 34% 32% 13% 18%
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

- Infrastructure Investment
The total cost of annual additions (through 200 T
— : Q _ o m ﬁ ° qm o * purchases or construction) to tangible capital 250 i >
assets (vehicles, equipment, buildings, roads, 200 \ / m
utility infrastructure, land) relative to the 350 - f {
annual amortization (depreciation) on all 300 BN / N | !

Condition = -

= n
m _ : m : o _ m _ tangible capital assets - measured as a five- uumn , / | \ N |
year average. , S i ; !

——VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD =—=Village Average = Comparable Village Average ——Comparable Population Average
Tangible capital assets additions 3,453,173 952,817 3,705,655 309,674 111,766
Annual amortization expense 1,006,671 1,038,408 817,111 821,531 824,296
Additions to amortization expense 3.43 0.92 4.54 0.38 0.14
Village Average 1.83 1.83 1.50 1.66
Comparable Village Average 191 1.66 1.97 0.96
Comparable Population Average 1.87 1.88 193 0.96
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Questions?




April 10, 2024

Mayor and Council

Village of Rockyford

PO Box 294

Rockyford, Alberta TOJ 2RO

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Village of Rockyford for the year ended
December 31, 2024. Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the mrcumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control Accordlngly, our review of any given
control was limited and would not disclose all weaknesses in the systern. or all:/matters which an in-depth study
might indicate. As you know, the maintenance of an adequate system ! mtemal controls is the responsibility

s RE

of the Mayor and Council. Py

The following matters that we are reporting to you are limited to, deflclenues identified during the audit that are
of sufficient importance to merit being reported. : :

Asset retirement obligations

Effective January 1, 2023, the new accounting standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations became
effective. The standard requires municipalilies to report a Ilablhty for retirement of tangible capital assets, and
was intended to be applied during the 2023 fiscal year. : Village has not yet adopted the new standard and is
assessing its impact on future operations The deter‘ nation of the liability will require various estimates and
assumptions to be made and will require a mgmﬂcant,amount of effort.

We recommend that the Viilage perform the analysus to determine whether it has an ARO liability and, if
so, to calculate and record the Ilablllty to bé included in next year’s financial statements.

Cut-off
During the course of our audit, it was dlsqovered that invoices dated after the yearend were not recorded in the
general ledger. This caused certain. balance of the Village to be understated until adjustments were made
during the audit. It is managements responS|b|l|ty to maintain control systems to ensure complete and reliable
accounting records.

We recommend that the Village review its controls over cutoff and make changes where necessary in
order to ensure revenue and disbursements are recorded in the proper period. This will increase the
reliability and accuracy of accounting records.

Funds held on behalf of others

During the course of the audit, it was noted that there were differences between the funds paid on behalf of
others compared to the funds collected on behalf of others for the Rockyford Ag Society, Community Centre,
and Lions Club.

We recommend that either the payments/deposits are reconciled in the general ledger on a regular
basis or separate bank accounts be set up to ensure the proper tracking of funds held on behalf of
other organizations.



Mayor and Council
Village of Rockyford
Page 2

April 10, 2024

We wish to emphasize that our discussion and recommendations are meant solely to bring to your attention
areas where the accounting system and procedures could be improved and is in no way a reflection on the
competence or integrity of the staff working at the Village of Rockyford.

We would like to thank Lori and Hope for their assistance during our audit. Thank you for the continuing
opportunity to be of service to your organization and we look forward to serving you in the future. If you have
any questions or concerns regarding our audit or any other issues with which you may require our assistance,
please do not hesitate to contact us.

Thank you.

Yours truly,

AVAIL LLP

Michelle Lutz, CPA, CA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: The Mayor and Members of Council of
the Village of Rockyford

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of the Village of Rockyford
which comprise the non-consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
non-consolidated statements of operations, remeasurement gains and losses, change in net financial
assets and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the village as at December 31, 2024, and its results of operations,
remeasurement gains and losses, change in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Village has not adopted the accounting standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations, which
constitutes a departure from Canadian public sector accounting standards. As a result, we were unable to
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to tangible capital assets, asset retirement
obligations, and accumulated surplus as at December 31, 2024, or to revenue and expenses for the year
then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financia! Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Village in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the non-consolidated financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal contro!
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the non-consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Village’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Village or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statemonts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

Fort Macleod | Invermere | Lethbridge | Milk River | Taber | Vauxhall 1



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT, continued

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Village's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Village's ability to continue as a going concem,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Lethbridge, Alberta

Can't Show Availllpsig.png

April 9, 2025 Chartered Professional Accountants
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Village of Rockyford is responsible for the preparation, accuracy, objectivity and
integrity of the accompanying nen-consolidated financial statements and all other information contained
within this Financial Report. Management believes that the non-consolidated financial statements
present fairly the Village's financial position as at December 31, 2024 and the results of its operations for
the yearend then ended.

The non-consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards (PSAS).

The non-consclidated financial statements include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments.
Such amounts have been determined on a reasonable basis in order to ensure the non-consolidated
financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

In fulfiliing its responsibilities and recognizing the limits inherent in all systems, management has
designed and maintains a system of internal controls to produce reliable information and to mest
reporting requirements on a timely basis. The system is designed to provide management with
reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized and assets are properly accounted for
and safeguarded.

These systems are monitored and evaluated by management and reliable financial information is
available for preparation of the non-consolidated financial statements.

The Village Council carries out its responsibilities for review of the non-consolidated financial statements
principally through its Audit Committee. This committee meets regularly with management and external
auditors to discuss the results of audit examinations and financial reperting matters.

The external auditors have full access to the Audit Committee with and without the presence of
management. The Village Council has approved the non-consolidated financial statements.

The non-consolidated financial statements have been audited by Avail LLP Chartered Professional
Accountants, the independent external auditors appointed by the Village. The accompanying
independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of the examination and their
opinion on the Village's non-consolidated financial statements.

Village Administrator




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2024

2024 2023
Financial assets
Cash and temporary investments (note 2) $ 637,875 $ 851,289
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (note 3) 226,882 180,075
Trade and other receivables (note 4) 719,662 430,130
Land held for resale 455,306 86,051
Investments {note 5) 1,839 1,839
2,041,564 1,549,384
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 73,990 109,267
Deferred revenue {note 6) 815,727 675,644
Long-term debt (note 7} 646,709 399,338
1,536,426 1,184,249
Net financial assets 505,138 365,135
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 1,572 363
Inventory for consumption 18,717 20,008
Tangible capital assets (schedule 2) 22,558,386 23,187,125
22,578,675 23,207,496
Accumulated surplus
Accumulated operating surplus {note 8 and schedule 1) 23,083,813 23,572,631
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) - -
$ 23,083,813 § 23,572,631

Commitments and contingencies {note 18)

Approved on behalf of Council:

Councillor Councillor




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
{unaudited)
Revenue

Net municipal property taxes (note 11) 3 377,656 $ 385,700 § 371,054
User fees and sales of goods 419,261 409,166 383,605
Government transfers for operating {note 12) 64,860 134,410 64,862
Investment income 38,000 33,248 39,615
Penalties and costs of taxes 39,500 38,876 41,445
Licenses and permits 5,550 6,676 5,837
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 5170
Franchise and concession contracts 53,000 58,473 51,436
Other 97,026 129,813 120,096

1,094,853 1,196,362 1,083,120

Expenses (note 13)
General government

Legislative 30,250 23,831 31,242

Administration 211,041 181,087 208,195
Protective services

Police 17,246 16,871 11,497

Fire 184,399 192,329 252,113

Ambulance services and first aid 3,160 3,160 3,160
Transportation services

Common and equipment pool 98,811 84,085 91,922

Roads, streets, walks and lighting 145,102 156,862 140,079

Storm sewers and drainage 1,050 1,034 1,005
Environmental use and protection

Water supply and distribution 933,670 976,186 928,638

Wastewater treatment and disposal 36,231 31,820 33,320

Waste management 46,323 49,702 42114
Public health and welfare

Family and community support services 2,836 2,836 2,806

Cemeteries and crematoriums - 2,044 200
Planning and development

Land use planning, zoning and development 14,000 14,335 6,100

Community services and tourism 2,700 1,625 8,022

Land, housing and building rentals 24,050 33,059 41,434
Recreation and culture

Parks and recreation 49,368 75,495 81,221

Culture - libraries, museums, halls 7,200 7,141 7,107

1,807,437 1,853,502 1,890,175

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before capital (712,584} (657,140) {807,055)
revenue

Capital revenue
Govemment transfers for capital (note 12) 164,776 168,322 277,275

Deficiency of revenue over expenses {547,808) (488,818) {529,780)
Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 23,572,631 23,572,631 24,102,411

Accumulated operating surplus, end of year $ 23,024,823 $ 23,083,813 $ 23,572,631




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REMEASUREMENT GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses),
beginning of year $ - $ -

Unrealized gains (losses) attributable to:
Equity investments - -

Amounts reclassified to statements of operations:
Equity investments realized gains - -

Net remeasurement gains (losses) for the year - -

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses),
end of year $ - $ -




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
(Unaudited)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses {(547,808) $ (488,818) §  (529,780)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {455,776) (111,765) (294,151)
Arnortization of tangible capital assets 740,505 740,505 737,740
Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 44,552
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 15,000

284,729 628,740 503,141

Net change in inventory for consumption - 1,291 -

Net change in prepaid expense - (1,210) (363)
Increase in net financial assets {263,079) 140,003 (27,002)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 365,135 366,135 392,137
Net financial assets, end of year 102,056 $ 505,138 3 365,135




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023

Operating transactions
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (488,818) §  (529,780)
Adjustments for items which do not affect cash

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 44,552
Amortization of tangible capital assets 740,505 737,740
251,687 252,512
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (46,807) 101,375
Trade and other receivables {289,532) {9,598)
Land held for resale {369,255) (16,936)
Inventory for consumption 1,290 -
Prepaid expenses {1,210) (363)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {35,277) 22,410
Deferred revenue 140,083 (255,023)
Cash applied to (provided by) operating transactions (349,021) 94,377
Capital transactions
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 15,000
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (111,765) {294,151
Cash applied to capital transactions (111,765) (279,151)
Investing transactions
Change in patronage reserve equity - (316)
Financing transactions
Proceeds of long-term debt 300,000 -
Repayment of long-term debt {52,628} (39,128)
Cash provided by (applied to) financing transactions 247,372 (39,128)
Decrease in cash and temporary investments (213,414) (224,218)
Cash and temporary investments, beginning of year 851,289 1,075,507
Cash and temporary investments, end of year $ 637,875 § 851,289




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies

The non-consolidated financial statements of the Village of Rockyford are the representations of
management prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Village are
as follows:

(a)

Reporting entity

The non-consolidated financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses of Wheatland Regional Corporation which is owned partly by the Village;
however, the details regarding transactions with these entities are disclosed in the notes,

Taxes levied also includes requisitions for education, health, social and other external
organizations that are not part of the municipal reporting entity.

The statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties.
Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services
and/or the legal obligation to pay.

Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are
accounted for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.

Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties
pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be used for certain programs,
in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition,
certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be
performed. Revenue is recognized in the pericd when the related expenses are incurred,
services performed/goods provided or the tangible capital assets are acquired.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
costs for land acquisition and improvements required to prepare the land for servicing such
as clearing, stripping, and leveling charges. Related development costs incurred to provide
infrastructure such as water and waste water services, roads, sidewalks, and street lighting
are recorded as physical assets under their respective function.

investments

Investments in derivatives and equity instruments quoted in an active market are carried at
fair value with transactions costs expensed upon initial recognition. Unrealized changes in
fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. When the
investment is disposed of the accumulated gains or losses are reclassified to the statement
of operations,

Investments in interest bearing securities are recorded at amortized cost. Investment
premiums and discounts are amortized on the net present value basis over the term of the
respective investments. When there has been a loss in value that is other than a temporary
decline, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss.




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies, continued

(e)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represent govermment transfers, donations, and other amounts which
have been collected, but for which the related services have yet to be performed or
agreement stipulations have not been met, These amcunts will be recognized as revenues
when revenue recognition criteria have been met.

Long-term debt

Long-term debt is initially recognized net of any premiums, discounts, fees and transactions
costs, with interest expense recognized using the effective interest method. Long-term debt
is subsequently measured at amertized cost.

Contaminated sites liability

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live arganism that exceeds an
environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability
for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when a site is not in productive use and
is management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, maintenance
and monitoring.

Nen-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services, They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the normal course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change
in Net Financial Assets for the year.

(i} Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Years
Buildings 50
Engineered structures 15-75
Machinery and equipment 10-25
Vehicles 10-25

A full year of amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and no amortization in
the year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.

(it Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the date
of receipt and also are recorded as revenue,

10



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies, continued

(M

(i) Leases
Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially
all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as
capital leases. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related
iease payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

{(iv) Inventories
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement
cost.

{v) Cultural and historical tangible capital assets
Works of art for display are not recorded as tangible capital assets but are disclosed.

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities
The Village's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured as follows:

Financial statement component Measurement

Cash Cost and amortized cost

Temporary investments Amaortized cost

Trade and other receivables Lower of cost or net recoverable value
Investments Fair value and amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  Cost

Deposit liabilities Cost

Bank indebtedness and long-term debt  Amortized cost

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make eslimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expense during the period. Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial statements
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from transactions with no perfarmance obligation is recognized at realizable value
when the Village has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources and
identifies a past transaction or event giving rise to an asset.

Revenue from transactions with performance obligations is recognized as the performance
obligations are satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payor. User fees
are recognized over the period of use, sales of goods are recognized when goods are
delivered. Licenses and permits with a single performance obligation at a point in time are
recognized as revenue on issuance, those which result in a continued performance
obligation over time are recognized over the period of the license or permit as the
performance cbligation is satisfied.

11



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Significant accounting policies, continued

(1}

Government transfers

Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are
not the result of an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the
result of a direct financial return,

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in
which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
¢ligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be
determined.

Tax revenue
Tax revenues are recognized when the tax has been authorized by bylaw and the taxable
event has occurred.

Requisitions operate as a flow through and are excluded from municipal revenue.

Requisition over-levy and under-levy
Over-levies and under-levies arise from the difference between the actual property tax levy
made to cover each requisition and the actual amount requisitioned.

If the actual levy exceeds the requisition, the over-levy is accrued as a liability and property
tax revenue is reduced. Where the actual levy is less than the requisition amount, the
under-levy is accrued as a receivable and as property tax revenue.

Requisition tax rates in the subsequent year are adjusted for any over-levies or under-levies
of the prior year.

Future change in accounting policy

The following summarizes upcoming changes to Canadian public sector accounting
standards. In 2024, the Village will continue to assess the impact and prepare for the
adoption of these standards. While the timing of standard adoption may vary, certain
standards must be adopted concurrently,

a) The Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

The Conceptual Framework is the foundation for public sector financial reporting standard
setting. It replaces the conceptual aspects of Section PS 1000 Financial Statement
Concepts and Section PS 1100 Financial Statement Ohjectives. The conceptual framework
highlights considerations fundamental for the consistent application of accounting issues in
the absence of the specific standards. The standard is applicable for the fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2026.

b) PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation

Section PS 1202 sets out general and specific requirements for the presentation of
information in general purpose financial statements. The financial statement presentation
principles are based on the concepts within the Conceptual Framework. The standard is
applicable for the fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026.

12



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Cash and temporary investments

2024 2023
Cash $ 351,014 % 65,887
Temporary investments 286,861 785,402

$ 637,875 § 851,289

Temporary investments are comprised of T-bill savings accounts with interest rates earning an
average of 4.9% (2023 - 3.6%]).

Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables

2024 2023
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable $ 19,748 $ 18,030
Arrears 207,134 162,045

8 226,882 $ 180,075

Trade and other receivables

2024 2023
Wheatland Regional Corporation {note 20) $ 262,656 % 233,090
Local Government Fiscal Framework 233,729 -
Canada Community Building Fund 123,012 50,000
Rockyford Rural Fire Association 62,920 49,332
GST 29,106 8,536
Rockyford Agricultural Society 8,239 16,684
MSI Capital - 72,488

3 719,662 $ 430,130

13



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

5.

Investments
2024 2023
Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value
Patronage reserves - cost $ 1,837 § 1837 % 1,837 § 1,837
Utility corporation share
investment - cost 2 2 2 2
$ 1,839 § 1,839 § 1,839 % 1,839

The Village purchased 25 class B common shares in Wheatland Regional Corporation (WRC) for
25% ownership in the amount of $2.50. WRC was formed in partnership with the Villages of
Rockyford, Hussar, Standard, and Wheatland County. WRC is responsible for distribution of
water to residents in the partnership municipalities.

Unrealized gains on equity instruments carried at fair value of $0 (2023 - $0) have been
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses.

Investment income recognized in the statement of operations includes $33,248 (2023 - $39,615)
of interest income.

Deferred revenue

2024 2023
Canada Community Building Fund {CCBF) $ 394,379 § 332,329
Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF) - Capital 233,729 -
Wheatland County Infrastructure Services Program (CRISP) 143,681 192,655
Municipat Sustainability Initiative (MSI) - Capital 38,298 148,685
Services not yet provided 3,015 2,150
Prepaid cemetery lots 2,625 1,825

$ 815,727 % 675,644

Deferred revenue is comprised of the funds noted above, the use of which, together with any
earnings thereon, is restricted by agreement. These funds are recognized as revenue in the
period they are used for the purpose specified.

Local Government Fiscal Framework

Funding in the amount of $295,967 was received in the current year from the Local Government
Fiscal Framework., Of the $295,967 received, $233,729 is from the capital component of the
program and is restricted to eligible capital projects, as approved under the funding agreement.
The remaining $62,238 is from the operating component of the program and is restricted to
eligible operating projects, as approved under the funding agreement,

14



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Long-term debt

2024 2023
Utility supported debenture - capital 3 313,853 § 326,587
Self-supported debenture - operating 288,185 -
Tax supported debenture - capital 44,671 72,751

b 646,709 § 399,338

Current portion $ 67,076 § 40,813

Principal and interest repayments are due as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 67,076 $ 25480 % 92,536
2026 54,521 22,411 76,932
2027 40,986 20,342 61,328
2028 42,769 18,559 61,328
2029 44,633 16,695 61,328
Thereafter 396,724 151,779 548,503

$ 646,709 § 255,246 $ 901,955

Debenture debt is repayable to the Province of Alberta and bears interest at rates ranging from
3.192% to 4.88% per annum and matures in periods 2026 through 2042. The average annual
interest rate is 4.27% for 2024 (3.97% for 2023).

Dehenture debt is issued on the credit and security of the Village at large.

Interest on long-term debt amounted to $20,771 (2023 - $13,849).

The Village's total cash payments for interest in 2024 were $20,771 (2023 - $15,136).

Accumulated operating surplus

Accumulated operating surplus consists of internally restricted and unrestricted amounts and
equity in tangible capital assets as follows:

2024 2023
Unrestricted surplus $ 802,558 $% 771,601
Internally restricted reserves (note 9) 81,383 13,243
Equity in tangible capital assets (note 10) 22,199,862 22,787,787

$ 23,083,813 § 23,572,631
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD

NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

9. Reserves

Council has set up reserves for various purposes. These reserves are either required by
legislation or set up at the discretion of Council to provide funding for future expenses.

Police funding reserve

This reserve funds will be used to fund the future payments for the RCMP requisition.

Fire funding reserve

This reserve funds will be used in the future for fire equipment purchases.

2024 2023

Operating
Police funding reserve
Fire funding reserve

$ 11,321 $ 13,243
70,072 -

b 81,393 § 13,243

10. Equity in tangible capital assets

2024 2023

Tangible capital assets (schedule 2)
Accumulated amortization (schedule 2)
Long-term debt {note 7)

Operating debt {note 7)

$ 30,755,209 $ 30,643,443

(8,196,823)  (7,456,318)

(646,709) (399,338)
288,185 -

$ 22,199,862 $ 22,787,787

11, Net municipal property taxes

Budget 2024 2023
(unaudited)

Net municipal taxes {(after requisitions)

Real property taxes

Lo

300,704 $ 309,091 § 294,785

Business property taxes 67,722 67,722 67,857

Linear property taxes 2,753 2,753 2,770

Designated industrial property taxes 6,477 6,134 5,642
377,656 385,700 371,054

Requisitions

Alberta School Foundation Fund 87,900 87,900 85,916

Wheatland Housing 11,000 2,074 2,871

$ 98,200 $ 89,974 § 88,787
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD

NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

12,

13.

Government transfers

Budget 2024 2023
{unaudited)

Transfers for operating:
Provincial government

62,237 % 132,310 § 62,237

Federal government 2,623 2,100 2,625
64,860 134,410 64,862

Transfers for capital:
Other local government 143,776 157,360 227,647
Provincial government 21,000 10,962 49,628
164,776 168,322 277,275
229,636 5 302,732 % 342,137

Expenses by object
Budget 2024 2023
(unaudited)

Salaries, wages and benefits 236,159 % 210,214 § 243,924
Contracted and general services 571,827 612,030 587,397
Materials, goods and utilities 185,750 196,899 193,490
Bank charges and short term interest 1,250 1,362 1,503
Interest on long term debt 15,136 20,771 13,849
Other expenditures 5,500 5,968 13,173
Transfers to local boards and agencies 51,310 65,753 49,377
Amortization of tangible capital assets 740,505 740,505 737,740
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 49722

1807437 $ 1853502 § 1,890,175
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOL!DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

14, Debt limits and debt servicing limit

Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by
Alberta Regulation 255/00 for the Village be disclosed as follows:

2024 2023
Total debt limit $ 1794542 § 1,966,151
Total debt 646,709 399,338

$ 1147833 $ 1,566,813

Debt servicing limit $ 299,090 $ 327,692
Debt servicing 92,5636 54,264

$ 206,554 § 273,428

The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the municipality (as defined in Alberta
Regulation 255/00}) and the debt service limit is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring
debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These
threshelds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities which could
be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not represent the
financial stability of the municipality. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted as a
whole.

15. Salary and benefits disclosure

Disclosure of salaries and benefits for elected municipal officials, the chief administrative officer
and designated officers as required by Alberta Regulation 313/2000 is as follows:

(1) (2)

Benefits &

Salary  allowances 2024 2023
Council
Burke, Darcy 3 6,688 $ 284 $ 6,972 § 9,115
Smith, Leah 4,500 134 4,634 4,780
Goodfellow, William 1,325 - 1,325 1,781
Henke, Tyler 875 - 875 1,661
Geeraert, April 888 - 888 918
Chief Administrative Officer (1) 56,288 4,068 60,356 73,047
Designated Officer (1) $ 5494 % - $ 5494 § -

{1) Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum payments, gross honoraria
and any other direct cash remuneration.

(2) Benefits and allowances include the employer's share of all employee benefits and
contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care,
dental coverage, vision coverage, group life insurance, accidental disability and
dismemberment insurance, long- and short-term disability plans, professional memberships,
and tuition.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

15,

16,

17.

18.

Salary and benefits disclosure, continued

Benefits and allowances figures also include the employer's share of the costs of additional
taxable benefits including special leave with pay, financial planning services, retirement
planning services, concessionary loans, travel allowances, car allowances, and club
memberships.

Segmented disclosure

The Village provides a range of services to its ratepayers. For each reported segment, revenues
and expenses represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the segment and amounts
that are allocated on a reasonable basis. The accounting policies used in these segments are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in note
1.

Refer to the schedule of segmented disclosure (schedule 3).

Budget amounts

The 2024 budget for the Village was approved by Council and has been reported in the non-
consolidated financial statements for information purposes only. These budget amounts have not
been audited, reviewed, or otherwise verified.

The approved budget contained capital additions and principal payments on debt as
expenditures. Since these items are not included in the amounts reported in the non-
consolidated financial statements, they have been excluded from the budget amounts presented
in these financial statements.

The approved budget did not contain an amount for amortization expense. In order to enhance
comparability, the actual amortization expense has been included as a budget amount.

Budgeted deficit per financial statements $ (547,808)
Less: Capital expenditures (455,776)
Long-term debt repayments (39,128)
Add: Amortization 740,505
Proceeds on long term-debt 300,000
Transfer from reserves 2,294
Equals: Budgeted surplus $ 87

Commitments and contingencies

The Village of Rockyford is @ member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange (MUNIX)
which provides liability insurance. The investment in this program is not reflected as an asset in
the accompanying financial statements. Under the terms of membership, the Village could
become liable for its proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the funds held by the
exchange. Any liability incurred would be accounted for as a current transaction in the year the
losses are determined.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

19.

20.

21.

22,

Contaminated sites liability

The Village has adopted PS3260 liability for contaminated sites. The Village did not identify any
financial liabilities in 2024 (2023 - nil) as a result of this standard.

Related party transactions

During the year the Village entered into the following transactions with Wheatland Regional
Corporation (WRCY:

{a} The WRC charges the Village to make water available for distribution at the water connect
point per cubic meter and for the water operator's services based an manpower per hour.

{b) The WRC signed an Cperation and Service Agreement with the Village on July 19, 2023
regarding the water and waste water treatment and distribution. The WRC will bill the
residents of Rockyford and remit fees for water, sewer, garbage and debentures to the
Village based on approved rates from 2024,

(c) This resulted in $357,249 (2023 - $363,108) of expenses paid to the WRC for water
operator services, usage of water at the water connect point, repairsimaintenance and
capital expenditures to water lines.

(d) Included in accounts receivable is $262,656 (2023- $233,090) due from WRC. The funds
advanced are non-interest bearing and have no specific terms of repayment.

{e) Included in accounts payable is $19,998 (2023 - $27,278) due to WRC.

{f) As at December 31, 2024, the Village has ownership of part of the water treatment plant and
related water line infrastructure. The Government of Canada and Government of Alberta
has approved multiple cost-shared grant funding agreements for the water treatment plant
upgrade and waterline to various municipalities. The agreements stipulate the Village of
Rockyford is to retain ownership of the assets for 5 years after the agreement end date for
each project. Upon expiration of the agreements, the assets will be transferred to the WRC.

Financial instruments

The Village's financial instruments consist of cash and temporary investments, accounts
receivable, investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and long-term debt. It is
management's opinion that the Village is not exposed to significant interest or currency risk
arising from these financial instruments.

The Village is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables
and trade and other receivables. Credit risk arises from the possibility that taxpayers and entities
to which the Village provides services may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulfil
their obligations. The large number and diversity of taxpayers and customers minimizes the
credit risk. At year-end, 51% (2023 - 91%) of the outstanding taxes receivable balance relates to
one taxpayer.

Unless otherwise noted, the carrying value of the financial instrument approximates fair value,
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were approved by Council and Management,
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VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
SCHEDULES TC THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Schedule of changes in accumulated operating surplus Schedule 1
Restricted  Equity in tangible
Unrestricted reserves capital assets 2024 2023

Balance, beginning of year  $ 771,601 % 13,243 § 22,787,787 § 23572631 & 24102411
Deficiency of revenue over

expenses (488,818) - - (488,818) (529,780}
Unrestricted funds

designated for future use {70,072) 70,072 - - -
Restricted funds used for

operations 1,922 (1,922) - - -
Current year funds used for

tangible capital assets (111,766) - 111,766 - -
Amortization of tangible

capital assets 740,505 - (740,505) - -
Long-term debt related to

tangible capital assets

repaid (40,814) - 40,814 - -
Change in accumulated 30,957 68,150 (587,925) (488,818) (529,780}

surplus
Balance, end of year 3 802,558 § 81,393 § 22,199,862 § 23,083,813 § 23,572,631
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April 10, 2024

Mayor and Coungil

Village of Rockyford

PO Box 294

Rockyford, Alberta TOJ 2RO

Ladies and Gentlemen:
RE: 2024 ANNUAL AUDIT OF VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD

We are pleased to provide the following report relating to our audit of the financial statements of Village of
Rockyford for the year ending December 31, 2024.

During the course of our audit we identified matters which may be of interest to the Council. The objective of
an audit is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements: are free of material misstatement
and it is not designed to identify matters that may be of interest to the Councu |n discharging its responsibilities.
Accordingly an audit would not usually identify all such matters.

The matters identified are included in this report which has been pre‘ﬁége@ “solely for the information of the
Council and is not intended for any other purpose. As such, we accept no responsibility to a third party who
uses this report Should any member of the audit comm|ttee or: equwalent wish to discuss or review any matter

any time.

Our report is intended to assist the Council in fulfilling it 4
statements. We have also attached a separate commu
recommendations for the Council of the Village.
We would be pleased to further discuss any of he |ssues addressed in the report or any other issue which may
be of interest or concern to the Counci. wih,

'tlon regarding the role of the Council and our

Yours truly,

AVAIL LLP

Michelle Lutz, CPA, CA
Enclosure



i Purpose and Scope of Examination

We refer you to our communication dated January 28, 2025, which outlines the purpose and scope of our
examination.

1. Results of Examination

As a result of our examination, in our opinion, except for the effects of the matter relating to the asset
retirement obligation standard not adopted, the financial statements as at December 31, 2023 present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial positicn of the Village in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards

Throughout the course of cur examination, we received full co-operation from Village officials and employees.
No restrictions were imposed on the method or extent of our examination. We were given access to all
records, documents and other supporting data and were furnished all mformatlon and explanations we required.
In addition, we had the opportunity to discuss accounting matters with Vlllage ofﬂc:lals

1. Communication with Council

In accordance with the auditing standard "communications with those hé‘\?ing oversight responsibility for the
financial reporting process”, the following matters are recommeyided fo be communicated to the Council,
Jie i } )

Matters to be Reference/Comment
Communicated e 1
1. Significant During our audit we did encounter deficiencies which, although not of
Deficiencies in Internal material significance, are Umrarized in a separate letter for your

Controls information,

2. lllegal Acts and Fraud | An audit conducted in-accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards does not provide assurance about an entity’s compliance with the
laws and regutatlons that may affect it. These standards include, however,
a reqUIrement that the nature, extent and timing of the auditors' procedures
should be. deS|gned so that, in the auditors’ professional judgment, the risk
of not detectlng a material misstatement in the financial statements is
reduced to an appropriately low level.

However, due to the nature of illegal acts, an auditor conducting an audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards may not detect an
illegal act, or recognize an act as being illegal, even if the effect of its
consequences on the financial statements is material.

Based on the results of our testing, we did not identify any illegal, improper
or questionable payments or acts nor any acts committed with the intent to

deceive, involving either misappropriation of assets or misrepresentation of
financial information,




3. Significant Accounting
Principles and Policies

We refer you to note 1 to the financial statements for a summary of
significant accounting policies adopted by the Village.

4. Management's
Judgmenits and
Accounting Estimates

There were no disagreements between management and ourselves
regarding management's judgments and accounting estimates.

Going Concern Assumption -

It is now a requirement that management make an assessment each year
regarding the Village's ability to continue as a going concern. This
assessment requires management to make certain judgments about the
Village's ability to meet its obligations in the foreseeable future.

Management has advised that they are aware of no events or conditions
that cast doubt upon the Village's ability to continue as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, and there is no mtent:on to liguidate the Village's
assets or otherwise cease operations.

5. Written Representation
from Management

As requested, management has provided us: wntten representations that it

has fulfilled its responsibility for the preparatnon of the financial statements

and that it has provided us with the requ|reg information for us to complete
our audit.

6. Other Information in
Documents Containing
Audited Financial
Statements

Should the Village issue any rean durlng the vear that includes the audited
financial statements, we will be requn‘ed to read the unaudited information
in the report prior to its release to ensure consistency with the information
presented in the financial state ents.

& i-

7. Disagreements with

There were no dlsagreements between management and ourselves with

Management respect to the Village's accounting policies or presentation and disclosure in
the financial statement i
8, Difficulties The full co- operatlon of management and other personnel was received

Encountered in
Performing the Audit

during our examlnatlon

8. Financial Statement
Disclosure

There were'rio contentious financial statement disclosure issues.

10, Other Matters

The new accounting standard Asset Retirement Obligation PS 3280
became effective during the year. The Commission has not yet adopted the
new standard, which is a departure from Canadian public sector accounting
standards. The auditor's report was qualified for this departure.

11. Emerging |ssues

Future Accounting Changes

The Public Sector Accounting Board has issued the following accounting
standards:

PS 1202 — Financial Statement Presentation
(effective fiscal years beginning April 1, 2026)
A new standard has been proposed to replace PS 1201 Financial Statement




Presentation and is intended to provide an improved financial reporting
framework.

Some of the key proposed changes are:

¢ liabilities will be separated into two categories: financial and non-
financial

¢ the Statement of Financial Position will be restructured to present total
assets followed by total liabilities to arrive at net assets

+ the net debt indicator wilt be removed from the Statement of Financial
Position and will be shown on a separate statement “Statement of Net
Financial Assets or Net Financial Liabilities”

+ the requirement to present a Statement of Changes in Net Financial
Assets (Debt) will be removed

+ other minor changes are proposed to the Statement of Cash Flows and
budgeted information ~

« the new conceptual framework prowdes addltlonal guidance and clarity,
and builds on the previous framework
« the conceptual framework Iay§ the foundatlon for principles-based




Village of Rockyford

Unadjusted Financial Statement Misstatements

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Proposed Adjustments Dr {(Cr)

Balance Sheet
Unadjusted Financial Opening Income Closing

Statement Misstatements Equity Statement Assets Liabilities Equity
Carryforwards
IATCO December 2023 Franchise
Fees 3 (3,284)% 3,284 |$ S - $ -
MSI/CCBF Grant Interest Allocation 11,722 {11,722) - -
Current year
IATCO December 2024 Franchise
Fees $ - 3 (4,201)$ 4,201.1$ - 3 {4,201)
MSI/CCBF Grant Interest Allocation - 17,690 - [P (17,690) 17,690
Fortis December 2024 Franchise Y
fees - {1,959) *.1,959 - {1,959)
Subtotal 8,438 3,002 % 6,160 (17,690) 11,530
Income taxes - - i - -
Total $ 8,438 |$ 3,092 6,160 |1$  (17,600)% 11,530

i

5.



MINUTES
VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
REGULAR MEETING
March 12, 2025
7:00 PM

ATTENDANCE: Mayor Darcy Burke
Councillors  April Geeraert
Leah Smith
Tyler Henke
William Goodfellow

Administration Lori Miller

1. CALL TO ORDER Mayor Burke called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
2. AGENDA
RES 055-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to approve the agenda with the following
additions:
8H. Drumheller and District Solid Waste Management Association
Carried

3. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
RES 056-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to accept the report as presented.
Carried

4. DELEGATIONS
A. Bert Gerritsen — paying for water with no service

5. ADOPT MINUTES
A. Minutes from February 11, 2025 Special Meeting

RES 057-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to approve the minutes as presented.
Carried
B. Minutes from February 12, 2025 Regular Meeting
RES 058-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to approve minutes as amended.
Carried
C. Minutes from February 18, 2025 Special Meeting
RES 059-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke to approve minutes as presented.
Carried
Mayor

Administrator



Minutes March 12, 2025

Regular Meeting
2
6. FINANCIAL REPORTS
A. Bank Reconciliation February — Chequing account
RES 060-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to approve as presented.
Carried
B. Bank Reconciliation February — T Bill account
RES 061-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to approve as presented.
Carried

Councillor Geeraert left the meeting at 7:37 p.m.
Councillor Geraert returned to the meeting at 7:40 p.m.

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Yolo Nomads
RES 062-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to direct Administration to contact Standard
and Hussar to discuss Yolo Nomad and the possibility of a Three Viliage
meeting to discuss the possibility of doing a joint marketing campaign.
Carried

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. Bert Gerritsen — appeal charges when no service available
RES 063-2025 Move by Deputy Mayor Smith to find the exact date that the leak was
detected at Bert’s Small Engine Service and credit the water flat rate
from that point until now. No further water charges should be incurred
until the water service is reinstated.
Carried

B. Bylaw 2025-002 Municipal Credit Card Borrowing Bylaw
RES 064-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to give first reading to Bylaw 2025-002.
Carried
RES 065-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to give second reading to Bylaw
2025-002.
Carried
RES 066-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to give unanimous consent to move to
third reading of Bylaw 2025-002.
Carried
RES 067-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke to give third and final reading to Bylaw 2025-002.
Carried

C. Bylaw 2025-003 ATCO Agreement Bylaw and ATCO Agreement
RES 068-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to give first reading to Bylaw 2025-003,
maintain the current ten (10) year term and 30% franchise fee.
Carried

Mayor
Administrator
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D. Human Resources Policy Manual Review, PM041-PM045
RES 069-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke to approve the policy manual as presented and
schedule for review again in 2027.
Carried

E. Collaboration Meeting Review/Discussion
RES 070-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith that we move forward with collaboration
with Standard, Hussar and Strathmore. Council and staff are to work
together to suggest items that we can collaborate on.

Carried
F. Operating Budget 2025
RES 071-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to increase the interim operating budget
by $100,000.
Carried
G. Capital Budget 2025-2029
RES 072-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to approve the budget with the following
amendments:
Move the $50,000 from Main Street Sidewalk & Lighting to Sidewalks &
Paving.
Increase the amount for the utility trailer to $6,000.00
Carried

H. Drumheller and District Solid Waste Management Association
RES 073-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke to direct Administration to draft a letter to
DDSWMA outlining our concerns with habitual contractor problems
And request to know how they are addressing these issues.

Carried

9. A. Minister Mclver re: Joint Use Planning Agreement

RES 074-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke to move this item to Unfinished Business.
Carried

B. Minister Mclver re: 2025 Minister’s Awards for Municipal and Public Library
Excellence
RES 075-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to nominate the Rockyford Library.
Carried

C. Wheatland Housing Management Body letter re: audit
RES 076-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to accept as information.
Carried

D. Strathmore Rural Policing Report, Q3

Mayor
Administrator



Minutes March 12, 2025

Regular Meeting
4
RES 077-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to accept as information.
Carried
E. Wheatland County Bylaw Amendment Proposals
RES 078-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to accept as information.
Carried
F. Wheatland Regional Corporation 2025 rates
RES 079-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to accept as information.
Carried
G. Village of Standard letter to Minister of Health
RES 080-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to accept as information.
Carried
H. Minister Ric Mclver re: Provincial Priorities Act
RES 081-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to accept as information.
Carried
Administrator Miller left the meeting at 9:18 pm
Administrator Miller returned to the meeting at 9:20 pm
10. OTHER BUSINESS
No other business
11. ACTION ITEM REVIEW LIST
A. Water loss update
RES 082-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to accept as information.
Carried
B. Update re PRP subdivision
RES 083-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to lower the price of the residential
lots on 2™ Ave. W. to $55,000 each.
Carried
12. CLOSED SESSION
RES 084-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to move into closed session at 9:28 p.m.
Carried
Exception to disclosure, Division 2 of part 1 of FOIPP Act. #27, Privileged
Information
13. OUT OF CLOSED SESSION
RES 085-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to come out of closed session at 9:42 p.m.
Carried
RES 086-2025 Moved by Councillor Geeraert to contact legal about the agreement.
Carried

Mayor
Administrator
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14. REPORTS
RES 087-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to accept reports as presented.
Carried
15. ADJOURNMENT
RES 088-2025 Mayor Burke declared the meeting adjourned at 9:46 p.m.
Mayor
Administrator
Mayor

Administrator



MINUTES
VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
SPECIAL MEETING
March 19, 2025
4:00 PM

ATTENDANCE: Mayor Darcy Burke
Councillors  William Goodfellow
Tyler Henke
Leah Smith
Via Teams April Geeraert

Administration Lori Miller

1. CALL TO ORDER Mayor Burke called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

2. AGENDA

RES 089-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to adopt the agenda as presented.
Carried

3. NEW BUSINESS
A. Wheatland Regional Corporation Annual General Meeting voting
RES 090-2025 Moved by Deputy Mayor Smith to appoint Mayor Burke as the voting
Member for the Village of Rockyford at the WRC AGM.
Carried

4, CLOSED SESSION
Exception to Disclosure, Division 2 of part 1 of FOIPP Act, 27. Privileged

Information
RES 091-2025 Moved by Councillor Henke to move into closed session at 4:07 p.m.
Carried
RES 092-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow to move out of closed session at 4:22 p.m
Carried
RES 093-2025 Moved by Councillor Goodfellow that Council has a meeting with legal
Counsel.
Carried
5. ADJOURNMENT
RES 094-2025 Mayor Burke declared the meeting adjourned at 4:23 p.m.
Mayor

Administrator



Net Batance as at Feb 28/25
Receipts for Month
interest Earned
Transferred From T-Bill
Prev Month Deposit Posted
Admin Misc Charge
Returned Item

Less:
Dishursements
Bank Charges
LoC interest
G/L Balance Mar 31/25

Bank Reconciliation
Bank Balance at Mar 31/25
0/S Cheques
Deposit not posted
/5 Deposit

Adjusted Bank Balance Mar 31/25

$ (0.00)

Current Year Previous Year

$ 45,014.82 $ 39,472.21

$ 96,573.83 + $ 137,990.16

$ 137.83 + $ 575.14

$ 50,000.00 +

$ 150.00 +

$ 10.00

$ 3,330.33 +

$ 195,225.91 $ 178,037.51

$ {165,529.75} - $ (147,353.12)

$ (68.13) - $ {63.90)
- $ (23.56)

$ 29,628.03 $ 30,596.93

$ 40,172.73 $ 83,170.38

$ (9,769.70) - $ (52,573.45)

$ (800.00) -

$ 25.00 +

$ 29,628.03 $ 30,596.93

Mayor

Administrator



VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
T Bill Account
Month Ending Feb 28/25

Net Balance as at Feb 28/2025
Receipts for Month
Interest Earned
Transferred From Chequing
Deposit Not posted

Less:
Transferred to Chequing
G/L Balance Mar 31/25

Bank Reconciliation
Bank Balance at Mar 31/25

Adjusted Bank Balance Mar 31/25

0.00

Current Year

Previous Year

Administrator

S 464,997.71 S 491,172.36
S 1,238.58 S 2,210.95
$ 466,236.29 $ 493,383.31
-S 50,000.00

$ 416,236.29 $ 493,383.31
3 416,236.29 $ 493,383.31
$ 416,236.29 5 493,383.31

Mayor



REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Rescind Motion 048-2025
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 89,2025

Agenda Item: 8A.

Background: A motion was made at the February meeting that Mayor Burke would like to rescind. The motion was
regarding a letter from Councillor Montgomery

RES 048-2025 Moved by Mayor Burke that Administration drafts a letter of reply to
Councillor Montgomery and remind him that the meeting he referred to

was an in-camera session and not to be discussed outside of that meeting.
Carried

Options: 1. Mayor Burke can move to rescind his motion.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That Mayor Burke rescinds the motion RES 048-2025.




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Move May meeting date
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda ltem: 8B.

Background: Administration is requesting the May meeting be moved to the third Wednesday of the month as | will be
at a conference in Kananaskis on the original meeting date of May 14",

Options: 1. Council can move the May meeting date to May 21°*.
2. Council could request Administrative Assistant Bonnie Hamilton sitin my place for the meeting on May 14™.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That council moves the May meeting date to May 21°".




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Days off Request
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8C.

Background: This year | have a total of 25 holiday days to use up due to carry forward from 2024. | would like to request
the following dates be approved as holiday days off.

Already approved via email and taken- March 24 & April 4

May 5

June 12/13

June 23/24/25

June 30

July 21/22/23

Aug 5/6

Aug 29

This uses up 15 of the 25 days leaving 10 days to be taken in the fall.

Administrative Assistant Bonnie Hamilton has agreed to work any days that | am off.

Options: 1. Council can approve the days off as requested.
2. Council can deny dates if there is a conflict.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That council approves the days off request.




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Summer BBQ,
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8D.

Background: Each summer we try to plan a BBQ for staff and council. Unfortunately, we always leave the planning too
late, and everyone is booked for the summer. As it is early yet, | am hoping we can all find a common date that we can get
together for some hot dogs and burgers.

Options: 1. Council can discuss and find a mutually agreeable date for a summer BBQ.
2. Council can discuss and decide to wait until fall to have a BBQ.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That council discuss and find a mutually agreeable date for a summer BBQ
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2025-2027 Operating Budget v.4

75429.50 | § 69,304.50 |'$ 87,401.50 | § 96,608.33 | $ 84,175.50
2-23-00-100 (20000.00) {20000.00) {20000.00) (16977.07) (19512.00)
wildfire wages paid (7560.00)
2-23-00-200 |FD Contracted Services
-Radio Licence (1200.00) (1200.00) (1150.00) (1110.54) (1100.00)
2-23-00-211  |FD Mileage & Subsistence 1600.00 (1500.00) (1200.00) 4288.16) (1200.00)
(5500.00) (5000.00) (5000.00) 1790.48 (5000.00)
2-23-00-215 _ |FD Phone {600.00) (550.00) (500.00) (373.45) (500.00)
2-23-00-218 |FD Freight (750.00) (500.00) (250.00) (429.17) (200.00)
2-23-00-225  |FD Advertising
2-23-00-250 |FD R&M -Vehicles (26330.00 (23860.00) 30450.00] (24543.01) (14500.00)
2-23-00-251  [FD R & M Building (15000.00) {12000.00) 8500.00! {7506.97) {10000.00)
2-23-00-274  |FD Insurance actual + VFIS {22359.00} (21859.00) (21453.00) 20898.00 {14539.00)
2-23-00-510 |F.F. Equipment: 32000.00 {30000.00) 39000.00 (23265.97) (38000.00)
2-23-00-520  |FD Vehicle Supplies (8200.00) (7500.00) {7500.00) (7608.42) (7000.00)
2-23-00-521 |FD General Supplies (3000.00) {2500.00) {2000.00] (2406.00) (1900.00)
2-23-00-540 | FD Utilities -Power & Gas (12000.00) {11000.00) (10500.00) {9908.92) (9000.00)
2-23-00-541 FD Water/Sewer (1350.00) (1300.00) {1200.00) (1155.30) (1400.00)
2-23-00-542 |FD Carbon Levy (1800.00) {1700.00) (1600.00) {1348.30) (2000.00)
2-23-00-990  |FD Misc. {500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (1046.89) (500.00)
{152189.00)| $ (140,969.00)| $ (150,803.00)| $ (132,216.65)| $ (126,351.00)
(76759.50)| S {71,664.50)| S {63,401.50)| $ 35,608.32)| $ (42,175.50
DISASTER SERVICES
2-24-00-000 _ | Disaster Serv
SURPLUS(DEFICIT 0.00 % - |8 - s G I =
AMBULANCE
2-25-00-200 |Contracted Services WADEMSA (3160.00) (3160.00) {3160.00) (3160.00) (3160.00)
(3160.00)| $ (3,160.00)| $ (3,160.00)| $ (3,160.00)| $ (3,160.00)
ACCT # DESCRIPTION NOTES 2027 2026 2025 12/31/2024 2024
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT
1-26-00-522 __|Business Licence 150.00 150.00 150.00 100.00 350.00
1-26-00-525 | Dog Licence 3250.00 3250.00 3000.00 2710.00 2700.00
1-26-00-530 Fines
1-26-00-540 | Unsightly Premises - Cleanup Chg 3500.00 3500.00 3500.00 3591.00 1500.00
6900.00 6900.00 6650.00 6401.00 | 4,550.00
2-26-00-200 | Contract Service
-Dog Catcher
-Legal [dog bylaw]
2-26-00-201 _ |Policing 23 ko sty same a5 24 (20000.00) (18000.00) {16488.00) (16488.00) (17245.50)
2-26-00-520 (383.22)

Page 2 of 7
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2025-2027 Operating Budget v.4

232500.87 225729.65 246361.45 212,690.25 223,483.59
2-41-00-218  |Freight/Courier
Municipal Contribution (286549.16) (295145.63) (304000.00) (324549.80) (322739.26)
Bulk Water Costs (13000.00) {12000.00) (11000.00) (11947.39) (10000.00)
2-41-00-250  |R&M -Waterlines (19000.00) {18500.00) (18000.00) (26559.77) (18500.00)
2-41-00-274  |Insurance actual {16000.00) (15500.00) {14996.00) (11591.00) (11591.00)
2-41-00-520 _ |Equipment Repair & Maint. (2500.00) (2250.00) (1500.00) (1288.72) (10000.00)
2-41-00-540 | Utilities - Power & Gas {15500.00) (15000.00) (14000.00) (13413.06) (13000.00)
2-41-00-542 _ |Carbon Levy (2000.00) {1850.00) (1650.00) (1571.83) (1700.00)
(354549.16)| $ (360,245.63) $ (365,146.00) (390,921.57) (387,530.26)
SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 122048.29)| $ (134,515.98)| $ (118,784.55) (178,231.32) (164,046.67)
ACCT # DESCRIPTION NOTES 2027 2026 2025 12/31/2024 2024
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
SEWER
1-42-00-410 Debenture Collected 23057.50 23057.50 23057.50 23652.61 23626.20
Sale of Sewer Service 33978.53 32983.86 32028.02 54710.70 54650.77
57036.03 | $ 56,046.36 | $ 55,085.52 78,363.31 78,276.97
2-42-00-215 | Telephone - Lift Station (1000.00) (950.00) (850.00) (907.68) (950.00)
2-42-00-250 _[R&M -Sewer Line (3500.00) (3000.00) (2500.00) (900.13) (4000.00)
- Flushing Lines (4500.00) {4000.00) (4000.00) (3392.55) (4000.00)
2-42-00-274  |Insurance actual (700.00) (650.00) (634.00) (614.00) (614.00)
2-42-00-520  |Equipment R & M (1000.00), (1000.00) {1000.00) (1000.00)
2-42-00-540 _ [Utilities - Power & Gas (1900.00), (1800.00) {1700.00) (1659.64) (1200.00)
2-42-00-831 | Debenture -Interest (9914.14) {9914.14) (9914.14) (10323.85) (10720.77)
2-42-00-832 | Debenture -Principal Dec 2042 (13143.36) (13143.36) (13143.36) (12733.65) (12336.73)
(35657.50)| $ (34,457.50)| $ (33,841.50) (30,531.50) (34,821.50)
SURPLUS(DEFICIT] 21378.53 | $ 21,588.86 | § 21,244.02 47,831.81 43,455.47
GARBAGE COLLECTION & DISPOSAL
[ ot o Site Main. Fee T 15827.58 24064.98 4237017 40740.55 20750.10
1-43-00-411 |[Fees - Lg Item & Burn Pit
1-43-00-990 |Misc.
45827.58 | $ 44,064.98 | $ 42,370.17 40,740.55 40,750.10
2-43-00-100 |Contract labour - Transfer Station 3% increase (13500.00) (13100.00) (12700.00) (12069.56) {9155.30)
2-43-00-200 |Contracted Services - Transfer Station (13000.00) (12500.00) (12000.00) (11572.37) (11000.00)
2-43-00-220 |Membership -DDSWMA 25 requisition $21447.96 + transtor loan $1087.31 {25000.00) (24000.00) (22535.27) (20868.91) (20868.91)
2-43-00-250 |R&M -Garbage Truck (1000.00) {1000.00) (800.00) (677.78) (800.00)
2-43-00-260 |R&M -Waste Transfer Site (500.00)
2-43-00-274 |Insurance - Garbage Truck actual (1100.00) {1050.00) (1023.00) (999.00) (999.00)
2-43-00-510 |Supplies
2-43-00-520 |Vehicle Supplies {1700.00) (1600.00) (1490.00) (1376.58) {1200.00)
2-43-00-540 |Utilities -Power & Gas Transfer Station (1800.00) (1700.00) (1400.00) (1336.99) {1800.00)
(57100.00)] $ (54,950.00)] (51,948.27) (48,901.19) (46,323.21)
SURPLUS(DEFICIT) (11272.42)] $ (10,885.02) § (9,578.10) (8,160.64) (5,573.11)
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2025-2027 Operating Budget v.4

2-71-00-990 |Fireworks (4000.00) (3500.00) (3500.00) (3000.00) (3000.00)
Donations
(4000.00)| $ 3,500.00)| $ (3,500.00)( $ (3,000.00)| $ (3,000.00
RECREATION, PARKS, FACILITIES & PROGRAMS
1-72-00-590 |Own Sources:
1-72-00-590 |Camping revenue £8700.00 85100.00 81500.00 77971.80 75000.00
1-72-00-840 |Canda Summer Job Grant 4200.00 4200.00 4200.00 2100.00 2625.00
Donations - Centennial
92900.00 | $ 89,300.00 | $ 85,700.00 | § 80,071.80 | § 77,625.00
2-72-00-100 |Summer Student Wages Includes payroll deductions (14000.00) (14000.00) {14000.00) (6998.83) (8200.00)
2-72-00-225 |Campground Advertising AB Hotel & Lodging/cuborama glfts (1200.00) (1200.00) (950.00) (1225.70) (500.00)
2-72-00-510 |Campground Supplies {1200.00) (1100.00) (1000.00) (932.19) (1800.00)
2-72-00-540 |Campground U es -Power/Gas/Water (29500.00) (28500.00) {27000.00) {26862.75) (23000.00)
2-72-00-590 | Campgound Repairs (2500.00) (2300.00) (2100.00) (5935.36) {2000.00)
2-72-00-810 |Camp Reservation Fees {650.00) (600.00) (500.00) (507.29)
(49050.00)| $ (47,100.00)| $ [45,550.00)| $ (41,954.83)| $ (35,500.00)
SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 43850.00 | $ 42,200.00 | § 40,150.00 | $ 38,116.97 | $ 42,125.00
CULTURE: COMMUNITY CENTER & LIBRARY
2-74-00-756 | -Marigold Library actual (2800.00) (2700.00) (2603.05) (2041.36) (2100.00)
2-74-00-765 | -RFD Library (6600.00) (6600.00) (6600.00) (5100.00) (5100.00)
(9400.00)| $ (9,300.00)| $ (9,203.05) $ (7,141.36)| $ (7,200.00)
SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 9400.00)| $ (9,300.00)| $ (9,203.05)| $ (7,141.36)| $ (7,200.00)
[2-97-00-763 | Contingency to Operating
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0.00 | $ - |s B =S 2
Surplus(Deficit of All Depts. 612403.55)| $ {613,347.91)| $ (600,946.61)| $ (518,760.84)| $ (570,304.27)
ACCT # DESCRIPTION NOTES 2027 2026 2025 12/31/2024 2024
GENERAL & REQUISITIONS BUDGET 2% increase BUDGET 2% increase BUDGET 5% increase ACTUAL BUDGET 3% increase
1-00-00-111 |Residential Taxes 402044.80 402005.39 394122.93 375355.17 379440.27
1-00-00-112 |Commercial Taxes 94343.85 94334.60 92484.90 88080.86 86805.81
1-00-00-114 |Farmland Taxes 342.54 342.51 335.79 319.80 329.91
1-00-00-115 |Mobile Lic/M&E 2783.25 2782.98 2728.41 2598.49 2107.27
1-00-00-120 |Frontage INCREASE in TAXES 0
1-00-00-190 |Electric Power Line Taxes 8738.75 8737.89 8566.56 8158.63 7835.39
1-00-00-240 |Prov. Grants-in-Lieu 413.00 412.96 404.86 385.58 37.58
0
Taxes to be Collected 508666.19 | $ 508,616.33 | $ 498,643.45 | $ 474,898.53 | $ 476,556.23
2-81-00-743 |School Supp. -Req. {94000.00) (92000.00) (90000.00) (87899.99) (87899.98)
2-81-00-754 |Wheatland Sr. Found. -Req (2500.00) (2500.00) {2500.00) (2074.00) (11000.00)
School Taxes Collected (96500.00)| $ {94,500.00)( $ {92,500.00)| $ (89,973.99)| $ (98,899.98)
ROSS TAX 412166.19 | & 41411633 | & 406,143.45 | S 384,924.54 | 377,656.25
1-00-00-510 |Penalties & Costs 46000.00 45000.00 42800.00 38815.59 39500.00
1-00-00-540 ([Franchise Revenue 62000.00 62000.00 60000.00 58473.27 53000.00
1-00-00-550 [Return on Investment 30000.00 30000.00 30000.00 29324.22 33000.00
1-00-00-590 [Other Rev Own Sources 67.00
1-00-00-740 [Prov. Uncond. Grant 62238.00 62238.00 62238.00 62238.00 62237.00
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REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Letter of Recognition
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8F.

Background: Mayor Burke thought it would be fitting for Council to acknowledge the amount of work the Rockyford
Agricultural Society had to complete because of the carbon monoxide leak and the resulting inspections. We recently
received a letter from Occupational Health and Safety to let us know that everything is now in compliance.

Options: 1. Council can discuss and send the attached letter.
2. Council can discuss and make recommendations for changes to the letter.
3. Council can decide not to acknowledge the work of the Rockyford Ag Society.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That council discuss and send the attached letter to the Rockyford Agricultural Society in recognition
of the work that has taken place.




Village of Rockyford

Box 294, Rockyford, Alberta TOJ 2RO
Phone: (403)533-39250

Email: village@rockyford.ca

April 10, 2025

Rockyford Agricultural Society
Box 85

Rockyford, AB.

TOJ 2RO

Dear Board of Directors and members,

The Village of Rockyford Council would like to congratulate you on a job well done after the carbon monoxide
leak. We have received the final report from Occupational Health and Safety which states that you have
completed everything that they require and that your organization is now in full compliance. We recognize
that there was a lot of work accomplished in a short period of time.

Sincerely,

Darcy J. Burke
Mayor



REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Request from Rockyford Agricultural Society to use line of credit
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda ltem: 8G.

Background: The Rockyford Agricultural Society needs to replace the ice plant in the curling rink. They have requested to
use the Village line of credit for this.

Options: 1. Council can discuss and allow the use of the line of credit with conditions as they see fit.
2. Council can discuss and allow the use of the line of credit with the condition interest is paid monthly.
3. Council can deny the request to use the Village line of credit.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That council discuss and allow the use of the line of credit with conditions as they see fit.




@é Outlook

Line of credit

From Evan Koester <ekoester@telus.net>
Date Thu 3/27/2025 6:52 PM

To Lori Miller <cao@rockyford.ca>

Hello
| am am on writing you on behalf of the Rockyford Ag Society to see if we would be able to use the
Towns line of credit to be used for the curling rink plant that needs to be replaced.

Thank you

Evan Koester

Ag society president.
Sent from my iPhone



REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Six Acre Parcel
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda ltem: 8H.

Background: Mayor Burke would like to discuss options for the six-acre parcel.

Options:

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation:




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Western Irrigation District
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8.

Background: The Western Irrigation District is requesting a one-year extension amendment to our Municipal Conveyance
agreement. The existing terms and conditions will apply, subject to a 4% increase in annual fee. | require council direction
to enter into the agreement.

Options: 1. Council can make a motion to grant the one-year extension amendment with Western Irrigation District.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That Council move to grant the one-year extension amendment.




WESTERN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

March 17, 2025

Village of Rockyford

¢/o Wheatland Regional Corporation
110 Main Street

Rockyford, AB TOJ 2RO

Re: One Year Extension Amendment for Municipal Conveyance
Village of Rockyford — W % 22-26-23 W4M

The WID appreciates our ongoing business collaboration. As the expiration date of our current
Water Conveyance Agreement for Municipal Purposes # 6-11-15, dated May 1, 2015 passed
on September 30, 2024, the WID is formally proposing to extend the existing agreement for an
additional year under the same terms and conditions, subject to a 4% increase in the annual
fae, which is keeping with the annual increase from the past tenyears.

We believe that a one-year extension via amendment will provide both parties with stability
while ensuring continuity in our ongoing projects and initiatives.

Please provide the annual user information and confirmation that you are in agreement with
the above proposed course of action. Upon confirmation, the WID will draft an amendment to
reflect the extended term and any necessary adjustments, and forward for your review.

We look forward to your response and appreciate your consideration of this extension.

Regards,

WESTERN IBRIFATION DISTRICT

Jeff Gibeau
Executive Manager,
Land & Business Development

t 403.934.3542 f403.934.5101e inquiry @wid.net W www.wid.net A-1000 Pine Street, Strathmore, AB T1P 1C1



REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Rockyford Library
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8J.

Background: The Rockyford Library appointed Kim Drydale to the board at the March 31, 2025 meeting. The appointment
will be for a three-year term.

Options: 1. Council can make a motion to appoint Kim Drydale to the Rockyford Library board with a term expiry date
three years after the date of appointment.

Financial Implications: N/A

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That Council appoints the Kim Drydale to the Village of Rockyford Library Board for the specified term:
Kim Drydale -- term expiry date of March 31, 2028




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Water Repairs @ 90s 2 Restaurant
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda ltem: 8K.

Background: 90s 2 Restaurant wanted to do some plumbing repairs within their building and were unable to complete
the repairs as the curb stop was inoperable. April Geeraert reached out to Wheatland Regional Corporation on behalf of
90s 2 Restaurant requesting they hire someone to complete the repairs. | agreed to paying for the freezing portion of the
repairs since the curb stop is our responsibility. There was a misunderstanding in that April thought | had agreed to pay
the entire bill. | would not agree to paying for work done within a rate payers’ property without council approval.

Options: 1. Council can discuss and approve the payment of the bill for the repairs within the building.
2. Council can discuss and decline to pay for the repairs within the building.

Financial Implications: $393.75

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That Council decline to pay the invoice for the repairs within the building.




/i:/
Wheatland Regional Corporation 4
P.0. Box 196 Rockyford, AB TOJ 2RO
Business: (403)325-9972 INVOICE DATE PAGﬂ
Feb 21, 2025 1
CUSTOMER # | ACCOUNT #
bl 980 RYF002
v INVOICE NUMBER
SOLD TO: §S g 2025-00025
Village of Rockyford - Repairs g 5
PO Box 294 PAYMENT TERMS:
Rockyford, AB Paymeant due within 30 days or
TOJ 2RO interest of 1% will apply.
; K"Q _
) 00SP0
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION / UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
Equipment Chrgs-RYF-Wir Line R;){ 1,142.5000 1,14250 N
Equipment Chrgs-RYF-WRC Fe 57.1300 5713 N
COMMENTS:
—H\,Ls
{ ’
L o,
A\/Q' -
L N
REMIT TO: M PAl L,
Wheatland Regional Corporation SUBTOTAL: 119963
P.O. Box 198 '
Rockyford, AB
T0J 2RO
AMOUNT DUE: 1,199.63

')

T




EACOOSNE =seVED

MAR 2 1 200
Wheatland Regional Corporation

INVOICE

P.O. Box 196 Rockyford, AB T0J 2R0

Business: (403)325-9972 INVOICE DATE PAGE
Mar 21, 2025 1
CUSTOMER # | ACCOUNT#
980 RYF002
INVOICE NUMBER
SOLD TO: 2025-00046
village of Rockyford - Repairs
PO Box 2954 PAYMENT TERMS:
Rockyford, AB Payment due within 30 days or
TOJ 2RO interest of 1% will apply.
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING CHARGES )
Invoice - 03/06/2025 1 Awb e 43943
BALANCE FORWARD / 202.5-0002 71 439.43
CURRENT CHARGES
Equipment Chrgs-RYF-Wtr Line Rprs \ (e )4 «s 767.5100 76751 N
Equipment Chirgs-RYF-WRC Fees VTN 38.3700 3837 N
TOTAL CURRENT CHARGES = 202%-0003% 805.88
COMMENTS:
Freezing valve at 80's 2 restaurant
[’ i / "‘ 5 | )
REMIT TO:
Wheatland Regional Corporation SUBTOTAL: 1,245 31
P.O. Box 196
Rackyford, AB ‘
T0J 2R0 g
owove— RETE
v)

Tii

TET

]
I




Wheatland Regional Corporation INVOICE

P.O. Box 196 Rockyford, AB T0J 2R0

Business: (403)325-9972 INVOICE DATE PAGE
Mar 21, 2025 1
CUSTOMER# | ACCOUNT#
1233 Zhou
INVOICE NUMBER
SOLD TO: 2025-00047
Yue Yan Zhouy
PO Box 218 PAYMENT TERMS:
Rockyford, AB Payment due within 30 days or
T0J 2RO interest of 1% will apply.
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
Equipment Chrgs-RYF-Wir Line Rprs 375.0000 375.00 N
Equipment Chrgs-RYF-WRC Fees 18.7500 18.75 N
COMMENTS:

Replace water valve

REMIT TO:
Wheatland Regional Corporation SUBTOTAL: 393.75

P.O. Box 196
Rockyford, AB

TOJ 2RO 393.75




@ Outlook

Re: Invoice #2025-00047

From Leah Jensen <admin@wrc-ab.ca>
Date Thu 4/3/2025 1:59 PM

To  April Geeraert <Geeraert.april@hotmail.com>; office@wrc-ab.ca <office@wrc-ab.ca>; Lori Miller
<cao@rockyford.ca>

Good afternoon April,

Yes, the curb stop was not able to be shut off so this left the only option of freezing the inside waterline in order to
have the main shut off valve replaced. The Village agreed to pay for the freezing of the line only, because the curb
stop is inoperable. The replacement of the main valve is the expense of Yue Yan Zhou. WRC was requested by
yourself, to contact a contractor to do this work, and we did. Gray's performed the work and divided the bill
separating the expense of the freezing and the valve replacement. Gray's was the only contractor we could find that
had the ability to freeze the waterline. | understand that if the property owner had the ability to shut the water off it
would have been a cheaper repair, but unfortunately these were the circumstances we had to deal with.

If Yue Yan Zhou is unable to the pay the $400 outright, we can draw up a payment plan for them to make monthly
payment installments.

We would like to note, that the water meter for the 90's 2 Restaurant needs to be replaced. Please email our office
with a date and time that works best for them and our operators will replace the meter.

Thank you,

Leah Jensen

General Manager
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On 04/03/2025 1:01 p.m., April Geeraert wrote:

Good afternoon Ladies,

Yue Yan Zhou received this invoice in the mail regarding a water valve replacement. When |
talked to you back in November/December about this the issue was we couldn't shut the
water off at the curb stop to fix the main valve inside to replace a leaking valve that went
outside. You had 2 guys come out here and both times they were unsuccessful. | was under
the impression that since you weren't fixing her main shut off that the village was to cover
the cost of this valve replacement. A $400 charge is a significant charge for what would have
cost 550 to had we been able to shut off the curb stop valve.

Thanks,
April Geeraert
403-901-4711




REQUEST FOR DECISION

Subject: Bylaw No. 2025-004, Fees and Charges Bylaw
Prepared By: Lori Miller
Council Meeting Date: April 9, 2025

Agenda Item: 8L.

Background: The Fees and Charges Bylaw is updated yearly to reflect the rates required for ensuring we are as accurate
as possible in our budget. This year | have increased the water and garbage rates by 4% while lowering the sewer rates to
try to alleviate the large deficit in water and the surplus in sewer charges.

| have increased the monthly camping rates by $50 to reflect the increases in utilities and to maintain our pricing in
comparison to other campgrounds in the area. Those with 30 amp service will increase to $750/month and those with 50
amp service will increase to $800/month.

Options: 1. Council can discuss and approve the Fees and Charges Bylaw.
2. Council can discuss and reject the Fees and Charges Bylaw while making recommendations.

Financial Implications: These increases are necessary to achieve budgetary goals.

Communication: N/A

Recommendation: That Council give first and second reading to Bylaw 2024-005.
That Council give permission to proceed to third and final reading of Bylaw 2024-005.
That Council give third and final reading to Bylaw 2024-005.




VILLAGE OF ROCKYFORD
BYLAW NO. 2025-004
FEES AND CHARGES BYLAW

A Bylaw of the Village of Rockyford in the Province of Alberta, to establish Fees and Charges for
the provision of services.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000 Chapter M-26; , a Council
may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following:

7{f) services provided by or on behalf of the municipality.

AND WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, a
Council may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following matters:

8{c) [i) establishing fees for licenses, permits and approvals, including fees for licenses, permits
and approvals that may be in the nature of a reasonable tax for the activity authorized or for

the purpose of raising revenue.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Rockyford, in the Province of Alberta, hereby
enacts as follows:

TITLE
1. This Bylaw shall be cited as the “Fees and Charges Bylaw”

2. Schedule “A” of this Bylaw establishes the Fees and Charges for the services provided by
the municipality and the costs of licenses, permits and approvals.

REPEAL
This Bylaw repeals Bylaw 2024-005 and any amendments.
This bylaw shall take effect as and from the third and final reading.
Read a first time this ___dayof ____, 2025
Read a second time this ___dayof___ 2025
Received permission to proceed to third and final reading this__ dayof ___,2025

Read a third and final time this ___ day of , 2025

Mavyor

Administrator



Tax Penalty (Aug. 1) 18% 18%
Tax Penalty (2nd Penalty - Jan. 1) 18% 18%
Tax Recovery Costs Costs Incurred Costs Incurred
Tax Search S 1000 | $ 10.00
Tax Certificate S 7500 | $ 75.00
Tax Assessment Appeals S 60.00 | S 60.00
FOIP Request S 2500 S 25.00
Photocopies .25/sheet .50/double sided .25/sheet .50/double sided
Photocopies {Local Clubs/Groups) .15/sheet .25/double sided .15/sheet .25/double sided
Faxes {Local) NC $ =
Faxes (Long Distance) NC
If a local club or group supplies paper .05/sheet .10/double sided .05/sheet .10/double sided
NSF Fees S 60.00 | $ 60.00
Dog Licenses (Unaltered) S 60.00 | § 60.00
Dog Licenses (Altered) S 3000 [ § 30.00
Water Levy-(W1) Residential S 4799 | § 46.14
Water Levy - (W2) Business S 8209 | 5 78.93
Water Levy -(W3)Arena/School/Hall S 8209 | S 78.93
Water Levy -{W4)Seniors S 8209 | § 78.93
Water Levy -{W7)5-Plex S 17543 | $ 168.68
Per Cubic Meter (W1,2,3,4,7) $ 215 | ¢ 2.07
Water Flat Rate - Vacant Property S 6213 | $ 59.74
Disconnect/Reconnect S 6068 | S 58.35
Bulk Water - Commercial 0.05627 0.0541059
Bulk Water - Farmer 0.033762 0.03246354
Water Meter(new installation) S 72500 | S 725.00
Sewer -(SEW1) Residential S 902 | S 23.32
Sewer -[SEW 2) Business S 1412 | § 40.13
Sewer -(SEW3)Hall/School/Arena $ 1460 | § 37.73
Sewer -(SEW4)5 Plex/Senior's Manor S 4495 | S 116.23
Lagoon Levy {L2013) S 1165 | § 11.65
Deposit on Sewer Snake $50.00 (refundable) $50.00 (refundable)
$187.50/property - operated by Public $180.25/property - operated by Public
Sewer Camera Works (non-refundable) Works (non-refundable)
Garbage -(GAR1)Residential/Business $
Garbage -(GAR2)Senior's Manor/5-Plex/School | $ 9937 | S 95.55
Garbage -(GAR3)Hall |$ 2024 | $ 2812
Power/Water/Sewer $35.00/night $35.00/night
Power/Water $30.00/night $30.00/night
Dry Camping $15.00/night $15.00/night
Power/Water/Sewer 50 amp service $45.00/night $45.00/night
Monthly Rate [ year round 30 amp service) $750/month 700.00/month
Monthly Rate ( year round 50 amp service) $800/month 750.00/month
Sani-Dump with camping Free Free

Sani-Dump with NO camping

$

500 $

5.00

RV Storage Lot

Wiise Bobliv Vel

Gravel/Asphalt {if available)

$30/month - minimum 6 months payment $25/month - minimum 6 months payment

at a time

$25.00/tractor bucket (not levelled)

at a time

$25.00/tractor bucket {not levelled)




Dirt (if available)

$10.00/tractor bucket (not levelled)

$10.00/tractor bucket (not levelled)

| Unsightly Premises Clean-Up (weeds/snow) U/h- minimul

m charge 3 hrs

$100.00/hour - minimum charge 3 hrs

Business License Fees $50.00/year $50.00/year
Home Based Business $100.00/year $100.00/year
Daily Business License $25.00/day $25.00/day
Business License Cannabis Retail or Café $250.00/year $250.00/year
Compliance Letter S 15000 | $ 120.00
Development Permit - Single Dwelling (permitted
use) $ 250.00| $ 200.00

Development Permit - Single Dwelling
(discretionary use)

$325 plus advertising & notification

$325 plus advertising & notification

Development Permit - Accessory Bldg. {Shed) | $ 5000 S 30.00
Development Permit - Accessory Bldg. (Garage) | 100.00 | S 75.00
Development Permit - Minor Renovations S 10000 | § 75.00
Development Permit - Major Renovation S 20000 | S 150.00
Development Permit - Deck/Fence S 50.00( $ 25.00
Commercial Development (permitted use) | $ 35000 | $ 200.00

Commercial Development (discretionary

$425 plus advertising and notification

$300 plus advertising and notification

use) costs costs
Commercial Development Cannabis Retail or $750 plus advertising and notification $750 plus advertising and notification
Cannabis Café costs costs
Home Based Business Development Permit $100.00 $50.00

Wireless Communication Facilities {Cell Tower)

$ 1,000.00

$ 1,000.00

Change of Permitted Use to another Permitted
Use in same Land Use District

$200.00 {non-refundable)

$200.00 (non-refundable)

Change of Owner - no change of use

$ 100.00

$ 100.00

Demolition Permit

300.00

S 270.00

Change of Permitted Use to Discretionary Use

$500.00 plus advertising and notification

$450.00 plus advertising and notification

Land Use Bylaw Amendment

$1,000.00 plus any professional fees at
cost (non-refundable)

$1,000.00 plus any professional fees at
cost (non-refundable)

Subdivision or Boundary Redesignation

$1000.00 plus professional fees invoiced
at cost (non-refundable)

$1000.00 plus professional fees invoiced
at cost (non-refundable)

Subdivision/Development Appeal $300.00/appeal $300.00/appeal
Garage Addition S 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00
Residential Unit S 5,00000 | $ 5,000.00
Commercial/Industrial S 10,000.00 | § 10,000.00
Demolition S 5,00000 | $ 5,000.00

*Development that commences prior to the issuance of a permit will resultin double the applicable fees




Commonly Asked Questions

The Government of Alberta is enhancing civilian governance of RCMP-policed communities to ensure they have a
voice in setting local and province-wide policing priorities and performance goals by creating municipal and
regional policing committees, as well as a Provincial Police Advisory Board.

This document provides answers to questions that were asked during the information sessions, which were held
Dec. 17 and 18, 2024. Where appropriate, we have included updated information to reflect the current state and

provide an accurate response.

Information Session 1: Municipal Population over 15,000

Will there be any further
regulation change or direction on
structure/operations of the
committees forthcoming?

Is there an expectation as to
when the committees need to be
operational?

Municipal elections are
happening in the fall. Could we
delay appointing committee
members until after the election?

Why was the timeline for
implementation so tight?

Our policing committee has a
committee member code of
conduct that has been
established in the bylaw. Can
that stay or does it have to be
removed?

Does the act require that the
committee be established
through bylaw?

Classification: Protected A

The act and the regulations came into force March 1, 2025. Further
amendments or new regulations are not anticipated in the short term.

Due to the development of a new enhanced security check process for police
governance bodies, most committees will experience delays in their
appointment process. However, the expectation is that municipalities are
taking all necessary steps to establish their bylaws and recruit/appoint
members, as quickly as possible.

As above, the legislation and accompanying regulations are in force. The
expectation is that municipalities take all necessary steps to establish their
committees, or appoint members, as soon as possible.

We recognize some communities may need more time to determine the best
approach and to develop and pass a bylaw. We will remain connected with
individual communities to gauge their progress towards implementing the
bylaw and appointing committee members.

The legislation sets out a minimum standard. Municipalities may wish to
ensure they have a suite of policies governing their policing committee and a
code of conduct is highly recommended.

The committee would be established through the municipality’s usual bylaw
channels. Training materials are available through the Government of
Alberta’'s Police Governance E-Learning Training Program. Bylaw templates
and other useful resources are available on the Alberta Association of Police
Governance's website: aapg.ca.

We recognize that passing bylaws can take time and may require community
consultation.

Apertom



Can you elaborate on the
process of a ministerial
appointment to the committees?
What will be the process? What
will be the criteria for selection?
Does a municipality have any
input on this?

Will the provincial appointments
be limited to residents of the
municipality for which the policing
committee is set up?

Is it counter-intuitive to have the
creation of municipal policing
committees to enhance
community input and
involvement, while allowing for
the GOA ministerial appointment
of committee members?

Our municipality has a policing
committee that consists of nine
members, do we need to reduce
that number down to seven to
align with this new regulation?

Classification: Protected A

Ministerial appointments to committees follow the appointment process for
agencies, boards and commissions coordinated by the Government of Alberta.
There are a few methods for provincial appointments to municipal governance
bodies. The Minister may choose to appoint members either directly or
through an open competition or a combination of these two methods.

Provincial appointments will proceed in a manner that ensures the best
representation on the governance bodies.

The Government of Alberta recognizes the critical importance of local
oversight and input to policing. It is important to ensure community and
municipality-specific concerns and trends are not overlooked, particularly for
areas that have diverse and geographically dispersed populations and
demographics.

The new model, consisting of a mixture of municipal and provincial
appointments, ensures sufficient representation from both local and provincial
government while allowing the municipalities to hold the majority of
representation. This brings Alberta into alignment with other jurisdictions in
Canada that facilitate provincial appointments to governance bodies.

Currently, municipal and provincial appointments are not restricted to
residents of the municipality establishing the municipal policing committee.

Provincial appointees are subject to the individual bylaws of the police
governance body to which they are appointed. The Minister of Public Safety
and Emergency Services is responsible for ensuring that adequate and
effective police services are provided across the province, and the decision to
mandate provincial appointees on police governance bodies is a logical
extension of the minister's mandate.

It is common practice to have provincial appointees on police boards and
commissions across Canada, including B.C., Ontario, Manitoba, New
Brunswick and Nova Scotia.

The Police Governance (Ministerial) Regulation states that a municipal
policing committee shall consist of not fewer than three members and not
more than seven members appointed by the municipality’s council. To align
with the regulation, the municipality would have to reduce the size of the
municipal policing committee to seven. The minister may also make
appointments to the committee.

The regulation states that if a municipal policing committee consists of:

(a) three members, the Minister may appoint one member to the committee,
(b) four to six members, the Minister may appoint up to two members to the
committee, or,

(c) seven members, the Minister may appoint one member for each group of
three members appointed to the committee, including any remaining group
that is fewer than three members.

Mberto



Why are chief elected officials
not allowed to chair the
committee?

Is it a correct reading of the
regulations to state that a
committee could, potentially,
consist of only council members?

Public access was indicated
during municipal police
committee meetings - is creating
public access a requirement?

Are committee members
compensated for attending
meetings? Are the provincially
appointed members going to be
compensated?

Can you explain the expectations
and standards surrounding the
new required community safety
plans?

Classification: Protected A

This provision has been in the Police Act since the inception of governance
bodies in the legislation. Further, the legislation also states that elected
officials, mayors, and vice mayors cannot be elected as a vice chair,
demonstrating the committee or commission is operating outside the normal
course of political influence.

While the legislation in its current form does not explicitly require community
representation on all committees — and this may allow for some committees to
be composed solely of council members - the intended purpose of these
requirements to ensure community representation on every committee.

The Ministry is currently reviewing this aspect of the regulation to ensure
consistency across police governance bodies and to support strong
community and civilian involvement in policing oversight.

For municipal policing committees, the municipality typically conducts a
recruitment process to engage interested community members. Regional
policing committees may also follow a similar approach or may choose to
appoint a council member as their representative, based on what they
determine best represents their interests at the regional level.

Public access is a feature of police governance that creates transparency and
builds the public trust. There is latitude for a municipality to decide what an
appropriate level of public involvement should be. By being present and
observing / participating members of the community can better understand the
purpose and scope of the municipal policing committee, thereby increasing
engagement, public interest and input. Typically, the structure of meetings of
police governance bodies involves a public portion and a private or “in-
camera” portion of meetings. In-camera portions of meetings typically are set
aside for official matters having to do with personnel or detachment issues
that may be sensitive or confidential in nature.

Municipal policing committees are formed under municipal bylaw and remain
a municipal responsibility, meaning that municipalities are responsible for the
costs of establishing, administering, and sustaining membership of municipal
and regional policing committees. This also applies to provincially appointed

members who are expected to participate at the same level.

Municipalities do have the option of using a portion of their annual Police
Support Grant, which allows funds to be used for governance and local police
oversight.

Communities with populations between 5,000 and 15,000 may also take the
opportunity to share costs related to RCMP governance by becoming part of a
regional policing committee.

The act creates a requirement for police governance bodies to create,
maintain and submit community safety plans to the Ministry of Public Safety
and Emergency Services. In the coming months, more information, tools,
training and templates will be made available to support committees with this
responsibility.

Mpertom



Will there be a standardized
template for municipal police
committee annual reporting?

Were municipalities directly
consulted in the creation of the
committee requirement and what
feedback did they give?

Information Session 2:

What is the composition of a
regional policing committee?

If we currently have a policing
committee, do we have to still get
ministerial approval to maintain
this?

Is there a notification or
application process opt out of the
regional committee. Are there
certain requirements or criteria
that a municipality has to meet in
order to be considered?

Classification: Protected A

Wherever possible and as deemed useful to municipalities and governance
bodies, the Ministry will work with municipalities and the Alberta Association of
Police Governance to provide templates for those plans that are submitted to
the Ministry in order to provide for consistency.

Albertans shared their thoughts on policing and their experiences with the
police through an online survey from Dec. 3, 2020 to Jan. 4, 2021.

In late 2020 and early 2021, government officials met with stakeholders,
including police associations, First Nations, community leaders, municipalities,
and culturally and ethnically diverse communities.

Following the proclamation of the Police Amendment Act, 2022 a series of
amendments were set to come into force over the next three years. The
ministry engaged with municipalities, municipal associations and the RCMP
about RCMP governance bodies, their composition, roles, and functions
during January and February of 2024. The feedback helped to inform the
Police Governance Regulation and the Police Governance (Ministerial)
Regulation that were enabled by the Police Amendment Act 2022.

e
ove’

Regional Policing Committees
AO°

)

Regional policing committees will consist of at least one member appointed by
each municipality (with an MPSA) for a period of two to three years. They can
also include additional members appointed by municipalities with the
agreement of all the municipalities in the region where the municipality is
located.

The four regions are: Central Alberta; Southern Alberta; Eastern Alberta and
Western Alberta and utilize the regional boundaries of the Alberta RCMP in
Alberta.

If a municipality between 5,000 and 15,000 population, with a Municipal Police
Service Agreement (MPSA), currently has a policing committee and wishes to
continue with that committee, they may elect to opt out of the regional policing
committee.

To opt out of the regional policing committee, a municipality must seek
ministerial approval by writing to the Minister to request permission to continue
operating their municipal policing committee and confirming the municipal
policing committee bylaw will align with the Police Governance Regulation and
the Police Governance (Ministerial} Regulation.

To initiate the process of obtaining ministerial approval, a municipality should
make a motion in council to opt out of the regional committee and write to the
Minister requesting approval to establish their own municipal policing
committee.

There is no requirement or criteria; a municipality must simply identify its

intentions and the benefits to the community and confirm that the municipal
policing committee bylaw will align with regulations.

Aperton



In terms of regional committees,
will the province designate the
regions or are they leaving it up
to the municipalities to decide on
the size of the committee or
region?

Can MPSA municipalities and
Provincial Police Service
Agreement (PPSA) municipalities
form a regional committee?

What is the reasoning for
requiring an enhanced security
clearance as opposed to
reliability status?

Have there been discussions on
the anticipated impacts on
detachment commanders to be
able to support the number of
committees they may have to
support?

The same detachments will be
required to align with municipal,
regional, and the provincial police
oversight bodies. How will
conflicting priorities among these
groups be handled and who
ultimately directs the detachment
priorities?

Classification: Protected A

As identified above, the regions are aligned with the current RCMP Districts
(east, west, central and south). We recommend that municipalities within a
region connect with each another, so they are actively and collectively aware
of which communities intend to opt out and which ones want to remain in the
regional committee.

Communities policed by the PPS do not have a requirement to form a police
governance body. All PPSA communities fall under the purview of the
Provincial Police Advisory Board.

Informal police advisory committees or regional police advisory committees
continue to exist and collaboration amongst neighboring communities is
recognized as being valuable. Although these advisory groups are not
recognized in legislation an MPSA community along with neighboring PPSA
communities may collaborate to form an informal police advisory committee.
There is more information on this topic in section 3.

A modern, robust security clearance framework will help ensure the integrity
of appointees, as well as information, infrastructure and reputation of the
committees.

All appointees should be properly vetted to ensure public trust in government
institutions and processes, which in turn would improve public safety.
Security incidents within Canada's public service community, including law
enforcement, have demonstrated the importance of strong vetting practices
reflected in the enhanced security clearance process.

The Ministry of Public Safety and Emergency Services engages in regular
meetings with Alberta RCMP K Division and remains in close contact with the
division during the implementation of these governance bodies. There will be
impacts, as there are with most shifts in policy at a provincial level, but the
RCMP have pledged to work collaboratively with all partners to ensure the
transition to this new governance framework is successful. RCMP
detachments have always worked together with municipalities; the shift to this
governance model is just a more formalized way of doing this. The ministry
welcomes feedback from the RCMP and municipalities with respect to the new
governance structures.

Alberta RCMP leadership and the RCMP Districts will determine the best way
to address their participation in municipal and regional policing committees.
Any issues encountered will be managed through regular meetings between
the ministry and Alberta RCMP K Division.



Information Session 3: Provincial Police Advisory Board (PPAB)

Do we have to pass a bylaw if we
fall under the PPAB?

How will representatives be
selected within the four
divisions?

Why just three Indigenous
representatives when there are
four RCMP divisions?

For municipal representation,
does the legislation specify that
PPAB membership be elected
officials, or can they be

community members at large?

Classification: Protected A

PPSA communities who fall under the purview of the Provincial Police
Advisory Board are not required to form a governance body and are not
required to establish any formal bylaws at the community/municipal level.
Small and rural communities with populations under 5,000 including municipal
districts and counties who are policed by the RCMP will be represented by the
Provincial Police Advisory Board (PPAB). The PPAB is established by the
Government of Alberta.

The Minister will appoint 15 representatives following the existing appointment
process to agencies, boards and commissions coordinated by the
Government of Alberta. The Minister can appeint in three ways: via a direct
appointment, an open competition or a combination of these methods. The act
and regulations are prescriptive about the composition of the PPAB, so these
requirements must be met. For the First Nations and Metis Settlements’
representations, these nominations will come from the communities
themselves.

As provided for in the Police Act and Police Governance Regulations, the
PPAB will include:

e First Nations representation: The Police Act prescribes at least one
member from a First Nation, nominated by the First Nation, and the
regulation includes two additional First Nations representatives. The
regulations make allowance for additional First Nations members.

¢ At least one member from a Metis Settlement or community,
nominated by the Metis Settlement or community.

¢ Two Rural Municipalities of Alberta representatives.

Two Alberta Municipalities representatives.
Four representatives, one from each RCMP district, who are members
of the community (not RCMP members).

e Three other representatives with consideration given to geographic
representation, expertise and other desirable attributes that will
contribute to the PPAB's ability to serve the 280+ small and rural
communities it represents.

The three Indigenous representatives are not bound by geographic districts.
These representatives would serve in the broader interest of the board and
may be nominated by their Nation to act in respect of the interests of all
indigenous communities.

The First Nations communities policed by the RCMP are not considered
municipalities and are not among the PPSA communities that fall under the
Police Act. Instead, these communities are part of a framework agreement
with the Government of Canada. Existing Community Consultative Groups
apply in some of the RCMP-policed First Nations communities.

The PPAB will be a blend of elected officials and residents from communities
across Alberta.

Mberton



How can PPSA communities
ensure their local priorities and
concerns are heard?

What is the mandate of the
Provincial Police Advisory
Board?

What if the policing priorities
identified by these existing
regional advisory committees
clash with those identified by the
new PPAB?

How many meetings does the
detachment commander have to
go to?

If we have an enhanced
agreement for a Community
Peace Officer - does that have
any impact?

Classification: Protected A

Communities should establish strong communication networks and channels
with the PPAB to ensure their interests are represented to the ministry and
Alberta RCMP. In addition, communities should expect that the PPAB will, in
turn, represent information to them from the Ministry and Alberta RCMP.

The PPAB will help advance the interests of small and rural RCMP-policed
communities by:
¢ Advising and supporting collaboration between the RCMP,
communities and community agencies on integrated community
safety planning.
¢ Representing the interests of communities served by the RCMP under
a provincial police service agreement.
¢ Reporting annually on progress related to provincial police service
priorities, provincial police service resourcing, and related initiatives.
¢ Working with the RCMP and the Ministry of Public Safety and
Emergency Services to communicate with municipalities about
provincial priorities, resourcing, and community specific challenges.

As per the roles and functions mentioned above, the PPAB will help foster
effective communication and collaboration between the RCMP and the
Ministry of Public Safety and Emergency Services with communities on
matters of public safety or issues affecting their Alberta’'s small and rural
communities.

The PPAB will represent the collective interests of small and rural
communities across Alberta. Given the diverse needs of different regions,
some variation in priorities is natural. The board will work to foster
collaboration and ensure local concerns are heard, bringing key issues to the
attention of the Government of Alberta and the RCMP.

Detachment commanders do not attend meetings of the PPAB. The PPAB will
establish a regular meeting cycle with senior leadership at Alberta RCMP,
including the commanding officer and representatives from the Ministry of
Public Safety and Emergency Services. The PPAB may convene meetings on
its own for its membership in deliverance of its mandate. Police members are
not appointed to the PPAB.

The PPAB operates at a provincial level. Community Peace Officer programs
are managed locally by municipalities and do not fall under the purview of the
PPAB.



How is the PPAB envisioned to
work with communities that have
RCMP detachments that are
under an MPSA for the urban
portion and a portion of PPSA for
the smaller rural component?

Do we have to stop having our
own meetings with the RCMP
(where they report to council on
stats, and allow council to ask
questions)? What is the status of
local police advisory
committees?

Given the intent of the legislation
is to promote community
engagement with the RCMP,
could you explain the rationale
that municipalities under a PPSA
cannot join a joint municipal
police committee with a
municipality under a MPSA.

Can an MPSA municipality fall
under the PPAB or does it have
to be represented under a
regional committee?

Classification: Protected A

Currently, the structure for RCMP governance bodies in legislation is based
upon the type of agreement via which a municipality receives policing
services. PPSA communities are not required to have police governance
bodies. MPSA communities do have governance obligations in administering
their agreement and a responsibility to the communities they serve.

PPSA communities may form informal police adviscry groups with
neighbouring PPSA communities to develop a regional police advisory
approach to priority setting and community safety planning. Detachments do
participate in local advisory committees with the communities represented.
This local advisory approach is outside the scope of legislation but has seen
success over the years in Alberta communities.

It is recommended that municipalities” with locally established advisory groups
(advisory committees) for informal regional collaborations continue current
practices, as these advisory groups add value and facilitate communication
within and across communities.

Many of these local and regional advisory groups have been successfully
operating in the province for years. For example, Red Deer County operates
a Regional Police Advisory Committee for PPSA neighbouring communities,
often including other municipal representation. This configuration has proven
effective in this jurisdiction as it offers excellent information sharing and
engagement opportunities with the local communities and the police. It is
recommended that these informal configurations continue.

While geographically adjacent communities served by the same RCMP
detachment may benefit from collaboration, formal governance structures
differ based on the type of policing agreement. The legislation does not intend
to disrupt effective informal arrangements between communities. If your
municipality has established informal collaboration mechanisms that are
working well, we recommend maintaining these practices to continue meeting
your communities' needs. The formal distinction between governance bodies
exists primarily for administrative purposes but should not prevent practical
cooperation that serves citizens effectively.

Municipalities under an MPSA have statutory authority over policing, including
setting priorities and monitoring performance, while PPSA municipalities
provide input through advisory groups without formal oversight powers. This
distinction requires separate governance structures but does not prevent
informal collaboration. Municipalities are encouraged to maintain any existing
cooperative arrangements that effectively support local policing needs.

Communities with populations over 5,000 that have MPSAs must join a
regional committee or have their own municipal policing committee. The
PPAB is limited to only serving the needs of those policed by the PPS in an
advisory capacity.



Will those interested in
participating in the PPAB apply
through the GOA's agencies,
boards and commissions
process? Will opportunities be
posted publicly?

Can municipalities recommend
members to the PPAB for
ministerial approval?

Will there be a change in the
legislation to recognize the
configuration of MPSA and
PPSA?

Were the Alberta Summer
Villages Association (ASVA)
engaged to provide input into the
process?

Who is responsible for costs
associated with the PPAB?

Who can municipalities contact
with questions about the new
civilian governance bodies?

Any municipality with an interest in serving as a member on the PPAB should
express their interest in writing to the Minister or through their preferred
association — Rural Municipalities of Alberta or Alberta Municipalities.

Municipalities may recommend or nominate an individual to be considered for
appointment to the PPAB by writing to the Ministry to advocate on behalf of a
person. Communities may also make representation through Rural
Municipalities of Alberta and Alberta Municipalities on behalf of someone they
feel is an excellent candidate.

As with any policy change, the ministry will work with municipalities over time
to assess what is working well and where adjustments may be needed.
Feedback on the new RCMP governance bodies is welcome and can be
shared directly with the Minister, through the PPAB, or via
albertapolicegovernance@gov.ab.ca.

An invite to the stakeholder sessions would likely have been provided by the
Rural Municipalities of Alberta. They should liaise with the RMA in connection
with both this matter and future engagements.

All the costs related to the Provincial Police Advisory Board are borne by the
province. There will be no cost to municipalities in terms of the establishment
or ongoing operations of this advisory board.

Municipalities can contact the Ministry of Public Safety and Emergency
Services at AlbertaPoliceGovernance@gov.ab.ca with questions and/or
support in setting up these new governance bodies.

More information on RCMP civilian governance bodies can be found in the Police Act, Police Amendment Act and in the Police
Governance Regulation and Police Governance (Ministerial) Regulation, found at Alberta King's Printer.

Classification: Protected A
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% ASSOCIATES LLP

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCQUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Wheatland Housing Management Body:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wheatland Housing Management Body (the Management Body),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Wheatland Housing Management Body as at December 31, 2024, the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generaly accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Management Body in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Management Body's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Management Body's financial reporting
process.

Audlitor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Poianiy234.3176 WWW.GH-A.COM #104, 331 - 3rd Avenue Strathmoaore - Alberta - TIP 1TSS 1



We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Management Body's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Management Body's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Management Body to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

%/7, %m'yaw d-/:{fm'aé; LA

Strathmore, Alberta Gregory, Harriman & Associates LLP
March 20, 2025 Chartered Professional Accountants



WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash (Nofe 3)

Accounts receivable

Goods and Services Tax receivable
Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Security deposits held

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 4)
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note §)
Direct rent advances (Note 6)

Deferred revenue (Note 7)

Security deposits payable

OPERATING RESERVE FUND PAYABLE (Note 8)

UNAMORTIZED EXTERNAL CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 9)

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Internally restricted funds (Note 10)

Invested in property and equipment

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: /7

Wheatland Social
Lodge Housing TOTAL
2024 2024 2024 2023

$ 1,190,381 $ 247,083 $1,437,464 $ 1,850,153
37,422 2,730 40,152 26,969
57,311 - 57,311 33,324
53,995 - 53,995 54,639
- 32,502 32,502 27,649
- 24,619 24,619 25,104
1,339,109 306,934 1,646,043 2,017,838
3,372,499 14,309 3,386,808 3,223,998
$ 4,711,608 $ 321,243 $ 5,032,851 § 5,241,836
$ 319,398 $ 56,904 $ 376,302 § 432,511
- 60,000 60,000 60,000
- 150,460 150,460 40,416
- 22,370 22,370 23,521
319,398 289,734 609,132 556,448
- 17,200 17,200 17,200
1,456,229 - 1,456,229 1,392,400
1,775,627 306,934 2,082,561 1,966,048
1,019,712 - 1,019,712 1,139,108
. w - 305,083
1,916,269 14,309 1,930,578 1,831,597
2,935,981 14,309 2,950,290 3,275,788
$ 4,711,608 $ 321,243 $5,032,851 § 5241,836

Director /"/";"—)/% Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



OPERATING
REVENUE

Rent revenue
Provincial grants
Municipal requisitions
Interest revenue
Cable recovery
Suntry revenue
Laundry and user fees
Utilities recovery
Donation revenue

EXPENDITURES

Wages and employee benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Feood and kitchen

Security

Cleaning supplies

Cable

Professional fees

Office

Program supplies
Insurance

Waste removal

Licenses and memberships
Travel and convention
Telephone

Interest and bank charges
Bad debt

Operating excess of revenue over expenses

CAPITAL

Amontization of defsrred contributions (Note 9)

Loss on disposal of asset
Amortization expense

Capital deficiency of revenue over expenses

NET EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES §

WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Wheatland Social
Lodge Housing TOTAL
2024 2024 2024 2023
$ 1,803,565 § 640987 § 2,444,552 § 2,294,608
382,653 254,554 634,207 423,084
438,543 - 438,543 572,792
66,176 17,605 83,781 101,717
38,736 20,480 59,216 57,133
24,400 25,435 49,835 42,802
34,749 6,640 41,389 40,379
- 13,114 13,114 38,675
4,250 - 4,250 16,252
2,793,072 975,815 3,768,887 3,587,642
1,690,267 331,320 2,021,587 1,921,864
585,487 257,918 843,405 325,909
195,778 230,757 426,535 423,050
376,629 . 376,629 364,710
11,845 90,759 102,604 54,024
26,703 21,769 48,472 47,559
40,897 - 40,897 39,646
26,844 11,000 37,844 47,424
21,876 7,247 29,123 32,682
24,786 1,718 26,504 38,281
21,207 2,890 24,097 23,051
12,354 9,603 21,957 26,092
10,424 4,857 15,381 12,372
6,588 3,378 9,966 19,851
7,487 - 7,497 7,874
1,467 1,037 2,504 3,132
. 1,462 1,462 1,408
3,060,649 975,815 4,036,464 3,388,281
(267,577) - (267,577) 198,367
70,959 - 70,959 75,297
- - - {1,363)
(127,848} (1,031} (128,880) (139,199}
{56,890) (1,031} (57,921) (65,265)
(324,467) & (1,031) $ (325498) § 133,096
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements . 4
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WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash provided (used) by operations
Excess of revenue over expenditures
Add non-working capital changes
Loss on capital assets
Amortization expense
Amortization of deferred contributions

Net change in non-cash working capital components
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease {increase) in Goods and Services Tax receivable
Decrsase (increase) in inventory
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease (increase) in security deposits held
Increase {decrease) in security deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Cash provided (used) by operations

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment
Additions to unamortized external contributions

Cash provided (used) by investing

Net cash increase (decrease) during the year

Cash, beginning of the year

Cash, end of the year

2024 2023
$ (325498) § 133,096
- 1,383
128,880 139,199
(70,959) (75,297)
(267,577) 198,361
(13,183) (25,845)
(23,987) (10,749)
644 250
(4,853) (746)
(56,208) 51,797
485 (1,383)
{1,152) 228
110,044 23,239
11,790 36,791
(255,787) 235,152
(291,690) (275,070)
134,788 -
(156,902) (275,070)
(412,689) (39,918)
1,850,153 1,890,071
$ 1,437,464 $ 1,850,153

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2)

WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BQDY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Purpose of the Organization

Wheatland Housing Management Body (‘The Management Body") is an organization operating and managing social programs aimed at
providing affordable housing to low-income Alberta residents who are the most in need. The organization is established as a management
body by the provincial ministerial order and is governed by the Alberta Housing Act and ils regulations. The management body is a
registered Canadian charitable organization operating senior and social housing.

Significant Accounting Policles and Reporting Practices
A. Basis of Presentation
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit erganizations (ASNFPO).
B. Basis of Accounting
Wheatland Housing Management Body follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
C. Revenue Recognition
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year received, or reczivable.

Externally restricted non-capital contributions are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year when the related expenses are
incurred.

Externally restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital contibutions until the amount is invested in capital assets.
Amounts invested representing externally funded capital assets are then transfered to unamortized external capital contributions.

Unamortized external capital contributions are recognized in the periods in which the related amortization expense of the funded
capital asset is recorded.

Unrestricted investment income is recognized in the year it is earned.
Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value can reasonably be determined.

D. Inventory

Inventory includes food, supplies and linens and is measured at the lower of cost and replacement value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out method.

E. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated amortization. Contributed property and equipment are
recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution.

Property and equipment are amortized over their useful lives on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Vehicles 30%
Furniture and equipment 20%
Building 5%
Leasehold improvements 5%
Land improvements 5%

The half year rule is in effect in the year of acquisition. No amortization is taken in the year of disposition.
continues ...
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WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 231, 2024

Signiflcant Accounting Policles and Reporting Practices (continued)

F. Income Taxes

As a registered nol-for-profit organizalion, the crganization is exempl from paying income taxes under Section 148(1}(f) of the Income
Tax Act.

G. Gevernment Assistance

Funding to finance operating expenses is provided by Municipal Requisitions and the Province of Alberta. The funding is recorded as
revenue when earned in the Statement of Operations.

H. Contributed Asseils

Senior self-contained and social housing projects capital assets are owned by Aberta Seniors and Housing.

Due to the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed assets and related expenses. are not recognized in the financial
statements, unless otherwise noted.

. Contributed Services
The Lodge operation is exempt from paying municipal proparty tax.

Valunieers contribute an undeterminable number of hours each year 1o assist the organization in carrying out its service delivery
activities.

Due 1o the difficulty in determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

J. Financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and financia! liabilities at fair value. The organization subsequently measures
all its financial assets and financial liabililies at amostized cost excepl for investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an
active market, which are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net income.

Cash
2024 2023
Lodge
Bank $ 1,145,648 3 1,610,473
Due from Social Housing 42,411 30,994
Petty cash 1,536 1,867
Chinook Credit Union Ltd. - common shares 186 748
$ 1,190,381 § 1,644,582
Social Housing
Bank $ 289,434 3 236,565
Due to Lodge {42,411) {30,594}
§ 247,083 3 205,57
$ 1,437,464 $ 1,850,153

The Management Body holds funds that are restricted in use and are to be utilized as funding for specific projects. Since these projects have
not been completed for which the funding has been realized, $41,114 is not available for general use.
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WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Property and Equipment
2024 2023
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Land $ 76,490 S - $ 76,490 $ 76,490
Vehicles 105,624 93914 11,710 16,728
Furniture and equipment 672,366 611,743 60,623 75778
Buildings 7,308,631 4,103616 3,205,015 3,020,297
Leasehold impraovements 19,847 7045 12,902 13,5871
Land improvements 81,960 61,892 20,068 21,124
$ 8,265,018 $ 4878210 $ 3,386,808 % 3,223,998
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
2024 2023
Lodge
Payroll accrued ltabilities 3 241,927 & 221,110
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities 77,471 83,175
$ 319,398 £ 314,285
Social Housing
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 56,904 3 29,922
Due to Senior Housing Alberta Corp. - 88,304
56,904 118,226
$ 376,302 § 432,511

Direct Rent Advances

Direct rent advances consists of funds received from Albera Seniors, Housing Divisions for operating expenses. Should these funds be
utilized, they are required to be replenished by Wheatiand Housing Management Body - Social Housing. This balance is recallable an

demand by Alberta Seniors and Housing.

2024

2023

Direct rent advances $

60,000

5

60,000
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WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMSER 31, 2024

Deferred Revenue

2023 Increasges Decreases 2024
Deferred operating reserve funds $ 21,250 109,345 $ - ¥ 130,595
Rent supplement 19,166 350,166 349,468 19,864
3 40,416 459511 3 349,468 $ 150,460

Operating Reserve Fund Payable

Alberta Seniors and Housing has provided $202.35 per unit for 85 units to Social Housing as an cperating reserve fund. These funds are

to be used in an emergency situation.

Unamertized External Capital Contributions

2023 Increases Decreases 2024
Building 3 780,995 - $ 39,050 § 741,945
Sprinkler system 514,133 - 25,707 488,426
CMHC seed funds - 134,788 - 134,788
Call bell system 91,918 - 4,596 87,322
Activity van 5,354 - 1,606 3,748
$ 1,392,400 134,788 $ 70,959 § 1,456,229

The unamertized capital centributions will be recognized in revenue as the related amoriization expense for the capital addition is incurred.
An amount of $70,959 (2023 - $75,297), which represents the current year amorlizalion on lhese projects, has been recegnized as income

in the current year.

Internally Restricted Funds

2023 Increases Decreases 2024
Resticted capital reserve $ 305,083 - 3 305,083 $ -
3 305,083 - % 305,083 H -

10
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WHEATLAND HOUSING MANAGEMENT BODY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Financial Instruments

The organization’s financial instruments consist of: cash, accounts receivable, security deposils held, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, direct rent advances, security deposits payable and operating reserve fund payable, The risks attached to these financial
instrumenits are as follows:

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the entities to which the organization provides services may experience finangial difficulty and be
tnable to fulfill their obligaticns. The organization is exposed to financial risk that arises from the credit quality of the entilies to which it
provides services, As the organization provides services to a variety of customers, ils credit risk is minimized.

Interest Rate Risk

Interes! rate risk is the fisk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affectad by a change in the interes! rates. In seeking
to minimize the risk from interest rate fluctuations, the organization manages exposure through its normal operating and financing
activities. The organization is exposed to interest rate risk from the retum on its investments. The organization manages its invesiment
portfolio on the basis of its cash requirements and to optimize its interest income,

Fair Value

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable, security deposits held, accounts payable and accrued liabiiities, direct rent advances and
security deposits payable correspond closely ta their carrying amount beczuse of their short-term malurity dates.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable lo meet cash requirements or fund obligations as they become due. It stems from the possibility of
adelay in realizing the fair value of financial instruments.

The organizalion manages its liquidity risk by constantly monitoring farecasted and actual cash flows and financial ability maturities, and
by haolding assets that can be readily converted into cash.

Trade accounts payable and accrued lizbilties are generally repaid within 30 days.

Comparative Figures

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified lo confarm to the current year's presentation.

11
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NOMINATIONS
OPEN FOR Q2

From April until June, we will be
spotlighting businesses from
communities in Quadrant 2.

Know a business in Trochu,
Three Hills, Carbon, Rosebud,
or Kneehill County that

A C_Rockyfnrq : exhibits community spirit?

lﬁ-";“ Standard

NOMINATE
THEM TODAY!

Nominations close
May 30th, 2025

Bassano\®

Q2 Nominations Open

The Second Quadrant of “Heart of Our Community” Campaign

From March 1st until May 30th, Trochu, Three Hills, Carbon, Rosebud and Kneehill
County residents are invited to nominate businesses in their community for our
Heart of Our Community business award!

Our local small businesses are crucial to our community. They sponsor local sports
teams and support numerous events. Unlike major online retailers, these
businesses actively invest in our community. Let's unite to celebrate and support
those who enhance our community life. The Heart of Our Community campaign
provides a platform to acknowledge these essential contributors to our local
economy and community spirit.

We are accepting nominations from March 1st to May 30th. Nominations are open
to all residents and businesses in the Q2 area.

Q2 is Trochu, Three Hills, Carbon, Rosebud, and Kneehill County.

Nominated businesses will receive a spotlight on our social channels and website.
At the quarter’s end, the CFWR Board will select one outstanding business to
receive a $1,000 award to further celebrate and support their meaningful
contributions.



NOMINEE SPOTLIGHT: Owned and operated by
Jonathan Cousins, Jolly Jon Plumbing & Gas
proudly serves Strathmore, Rockyford, Langdon,
Chestermere, and Calgary with reliable plumbing
and gas solutions at fair prices.

Beyond exceptional service, Jolly Jon Plumbing &
Gas actively supports local initiatives, including
donating gift baskets to the Strathmore Legion
Annual Golf Tournament, participating in the
Strathmore Stampede Parade, and serving as a

W1 @,) HEART iQ \ |
\ of our [l S8 & 121 Diamond Sponsor for the Strathmore Youth
Community

et e Theatre Company. Jonathan’s commitment to

BCEWRISMAREIBUSINESS AMARDS]

; giving back strengthens community connections,

Jolly Jon Plumbing & Gas Joil ; ; . g

S o making his business not just a service provider but
athmore,

Community a valued part of Strathmore's heart.

Learn more: wildrose.al f.cor Futures v

@) HEART

of our
Community

ISMALL BUSINESS AWARDS |

Training and Supports



E WORKSHOP

Streamlining
Success

Operations, Time Management,
and Efficiency for Small Businesses

() March 13, 2025
(') NOON - 1:00 PM
#a% 101, 331 - 3 Avenue, Strathmore, AB

.2 community Futures Wild Rose

Offered as a virtual or an in-person event.
Reserve your spot via EventBrite today!

| tinyurl.com/CFWR-events

‘ =y |
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I Futures widrose
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Streamlining Success

Join us on Thursday, March 13, for a power-packed lunch 'n' learn session!

This 1-hour event is designed to equip small business owners with practical strategies and
tools to boost productivity, improve time management, and streamline operations. Expect
interactive discussions, hands-on exercises, and actionable tips to take your business to
the next level!

Date/Time: March 13, Noon - 1 PM

Location: 331 3 Avenue, Unit 101, Strathmore

Lunch is included for in-person attendees!

This is a FREE event, but seats are limited. Reserve your spot today.
Don't miss this opportunity to learn and connect with fellow entrepreneurs!



FREE WORKSHOP

Empowering
Employers
Hiring and Onboarding

@) March 19, 2025

©) NOON - 1:00 PM

0 101, 331 - 3 Avenue, Strathmore
Community Futures Wild Rose

Reserve your spot via EventBrite today!

Community
Futures widrose

Empowering Employers
Empowering Employers: Hiring & Onboarding

Struggling with hiring the right people? Want to improve employee retention? Join
us for a 1-hour Lunch ‘n’ Learn where we’ll cover:

Smart hiring strategies
Compliance must-knows
Effective onboarding techniques

Date/Time: March 19, Noon - 1 PM
Location: CFWR Office, 331 3 Avenue, Unit 101, Strathmore

Originally presented by Tina from Red Rock HR, this session is perfect for small
businesses and growing companies looking to streamline their hiring process. Plus,
lunch is on us!

Spots are limited. So, save your seat today!



Save your Seat

. Workshop Series
INTRO

TO DIGITAL
MARKETING

Success in Digital
Marketing Series

@& Thursday, April 10, 2025
| © NOON - 1:00 PM

e 101, 331 - 3 Avenue, Strathmore, AB
\ 0 Community Futures Wild Rose

Community
Futures widrsse

Intro to Digital Marketing

Whether you're a small business owner or part of a non-profit organization, this
workshop is perfect for you! Learn the essentials of online marketing and get
acquainted with key tools like websites, social media, and email marketing. Our
experienced Digital Marketing Expert will share invaluable tips and tricks to get you
started on your digital marking journey.

Date/Time: April 10, Noon - 1 PM
Location: CFWR Office, 331 3 Avenue, Unit 101, Strathmore
Lunch is included for in-person attendees!

This is a FREE event, but seats are limited. Reserve your spot today.
These sessions build on each other. So make sure to sign up for all five!



Sign Up Now

Blog Update

Small businesses in Alberta are the backbone
of the economy, and women entrepreneurs
play a crucial role in driving that innovation and
growth. While women remain a mostly
untapped source of potential in Canadian
entrepreneurship, their impact is undeniable,
and their influence is growing.

Resourceful and visionary women shape our
communities and industries. We're celebrating
their impact by spotlighting five inspiring
Albertan women entrepreneurs who are
leading the way.

BLOG UPDATE

{ C_élebrating Alberta’sy
. Women Entrepreneurs

COmmunityF Read the Blog

Futures widnes

Small Business Loans

Community Futures Wild Rose provides flexible loan options designed to support small
businesses. We're currently offering a competitive lending rate of prime + 2%. Compare
that to the rates of traditional lenders and see the difference!

What sets us apart is our approach—we are character lenders. We look beyond the
numbers and focus on you as an individual. We believe in your vision and are committed
to helping turn that vision into reality.

Our goal is your success! We know that your success will positively impact the entire
community. Explore our diverse loan products and enjoy affordable, flexible terms for
small business loans up to $300,000. Plus, enjoy expert business guidance at no cost to
youl

Reach out today for a free consultation by emailing wildroseinfo@albertacf.com or
calling 403.934.8888. Let’s work together to build something great!



Connect with us on Social Media!

006

Community Futures Wild Rose | Box 2159 | Strathmore, AB TLP 1K2 CA

Unsubscribe | Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

@ Constant

Contact

Try emall marketing for free today!



ALBERTA
HEALTH

Office of the Minister
MILA, Red Deer-North

AR 229282

March 26, 2025

His Worship Darcy J. Burke
Mayor

Village of Rockyford

PO Box 294

Rockyford AB TOJ 2R0

Sent via email: village@rockyford.ca

Dear Mayor Burke:

Thank you for your letter of support for the Frontier Diagnostics proposal to add CT scanning
equipment to the Strathmore District Health Services facility. | appreciate your advocacy on
behalf of the Village of Rockyford, and | welcome the opportunity o respond.

Please be assured that Alberta’s government shares your desire to improve access to health
services and recognizes how important diagnostic imaging is to Alberta’s health care system. As
you may be aware, all diagnostic imaging in Alberta is managed by Alberta Health Services
(AHS). If you would like to continue your support, | encourage you to refer Frontier Diagnostics
to the Doing Business with AHS web page for more information about contracting, procurement,
and supply management with AHS. The Contracting, Procurement and Supply Management
department is the most appropriate team to consider this proposal.

Thank you again for writing and for your commitment to improving health care services for
Albertans.

Sincerely,

Adriana LaGrange
Minister of Health

cC: Honourable Nathan Cooper, MLA, Olds-Didsbury-Three Hills
Chantelle de Jonge, MLA, Chestermere-Strathmore
Justin Wright, Parliamentary Secretary for Rural Health
Andre Tremblay, Official Administrator, AHS

224 Legislature Building, 10800 - 97 Avenue NW, Edmonton, Alberta TSK 2B6 Canada Telephone
780-427-3665 #202, 5913 — 50 Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta T4N 4C4 Canada Telephone 403-342-2263

Classification: Protected A



Exploring Strathmore and Wheatland County - 2025 Magazine

From Bobbi Joan O'Neil <bobbijoan@tncpublishing.com>
Date Thu 3/27/2025 10:05 AM

To Lori Miller <tao@rockyford.ca>

2 attachments (7 MB)
2023 Mag - WheatlandCounty801.pdf; Rate Card - WheatlandCounty2025-BO.pdf,

Good Morning Laurie:

We are working on an updated magazine for 2025, to attract new residents and businesses.
The goal is to help grow the local economy and communities.

The magazines will be distributed through the County office, community offices, real estate
agencies, show homes, trade shows, investor packages, local brochure racks and local
businesses.

Your involvement in this promotional magazine will demonstrate a solid commitment to
collaborative partnership marketing.

Please find attached the 2023 Wheatland County magazine. Although it is a low-resolution file,
it may prevent the e-mail from going through. Would you confirm you received it? | have also
attached the rate card for your consideration.

Our deadline for space booking is April 151, Please let me know if you'd like me to follow up in
a day or two. If you need us to create the ad, we can do it at no cost.

We look forward to your participation and thank you in advance for your support. Please let me
know if you would like me to come and meet with you.

Bobbi Joan

Bobbi Joan O’Neil
Advertising Specialist

[TNCpuinshing.com]1"'“'“ PERING GROLP

TNC Publishing

6923 Farrell Road SE | Calgary, AB | T2H OT3
T: 403-203-2963

Toll Free: 1.888.822.8112

tncpublishing.com
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RICHARDSON
PIONEER

OUR HOME

At Richardson Pioneer, we are proud to help build
stronger communities in the places we call home.

CARSELAND AG BUSINESS CENTRE | 403.934.9267
HUSSAR AG BUSINESS CENTRE | 403.787.3931
WHEATLAND AG BUSINESS CENTRE | 403.934.2885

10 Rooms with Ensuites e Full Breakfast Included
Lunch & Dinner Options e Scenic Views e Near Drumbheller

e )

Book with confidence knowing that your stay will surpass all expectations!

‘P’{‘"""fl Abberhis “‘""’I‘d

Located in Wheatland County ~ www.rosebudcountryinn.com  1-866-677-2211

2 Wheatland County
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Business & Community Profile

WHEATLAND COUNTY

has room for you to grow!

Located only minutes from The City of Calgary, our vast rural landscape presents you with infinite possibilities.
With easy access from Highways 1, 22x, 564 and Glenmore Trail, you have access to a regional labour pool
of over 800,000. We are also served by a CP Rail mainline. We have some of the lowest industrial land
costs in the region and one of the lowest non-residential tax rates. Wheatland County also offers a generous
municipal tax incentive for eligible investors.

Wheatland County welcomes economic development and the contribution it makes to our tax base and
economic diversification. We are excited to work with companies that have a long-term vision of becoming
a partner in our community.

Our economy has traditionally been dominated by agriculture, but the energy industry and manufacturing
are now growing in importance. Qur vision is to be the region’s energy hub and industrial heart and ensure
Wheatland County businesses benefit from supply-chain opportunities. Notable recent investments include
Rocky Mountain Clean Fuels, De Havilland Field, and CGC Inc.

Wheatland County has a growing small businesses sector that includes service industries, hospitality,
agriculture, tourism, and transportation. We are excited to introduce you to the businesses displayed in this
publication as well as in our online business directory at hitps://investwc.ca/business-director

If you are looking for a new community to call home, we have room for your family in our hamlets and the
new golf course communities of Speargrass and the Lakes of Muirfield!

Wheatland County is a place with infinite landscapes, and we invite you to explore our guest ranches, golf
courses, and other venues like the Rosebud Theatre.

Learn more about Wheatland County today!

Jamie Kramble, Economic Development

jamie kramble@wheatlandcounty.ca
www.investwe.ca

wheatlandcounty.ca
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Access to Land and Feedstock

1.3M acres of farmland including dryland cropping and irrigated
lands on 825 farms

323,000 acres of wheat, 260,000 acres of canola, 165,000 acres
of barley, 82,000 acres of dry field peas and 8,107 acres of oats

172,000 head of cattle and 208,307 pigs. There are also many
feedlots providing finished cattle as well as speciality livestock
breeders

An emerging area of the agri-food industry in Wheatland is organics.
We are home to 8 certified organic farms

Supportive Business Environment

Efficient and streamlined process to grant permits and
approve applications

Support available from municipal, provincial, and federal
governments for eligible companies

Canada'’s lowest corporate tax rate at 8%

Canada is a party to 14 trade agreements that provide access
to international markets including CETA, CUSMA, CAN-UK
TCA, and CPTPP

Logistics

20 minute drive to Calgary border via Highway 1
30 minute drive to Calgary International Airport
Calgary to Saskatoon CPR rail line and a CN Rail spur at Lyalta
Close to Highway 2 CANAMEX corridor
302 km to US border

Business Costs
Lowest cost agricultural land in region (average
agricultural land value of $3,386.64 per acre)
Lowest cost industrial land in region (average industrial
land cost of $350,000 per acre)
Serviced lots available in Origin Business Parlk {light to
medium industrial)
Goldfinch Industrial ASP Area (unserviced lots) at
Carseland

Labour force of 4,240

A -r'\/-r
GEUPNTTY
Wheatland County is the ideal location to
grow your business in Alberta.

With close proximity to the City of Calgary (pop. 1.3 million) and Town of
Strathmore (pop. 14,339), our vast rural landscape has the lowest industrial
land costs in the region and one of the lowest mill rates. Our council and
residents also welcome economic development and the contribution it
makes to our tax base and employment opportunities. Our staff of planners,
assessors and economic development officers are ready to help make the
transition process smooth. We are excited to work with companies that
have a long-term vision of becoming a partner in the community!

We are located approximately 20-minutes from The City of Calgary, with
easy access from Highways 1, 22x and 564. We are also served by a CPR
mainline.

Our economy has traditionally been dominated by agriculture, but the
energy industry (including new energy) and manufacturing are now
growing in importance.

There are two industrial areas in Wheatland County:
* QOrigin Business Park is located on Highway 1, only 13-minutes from
the City of Calgary.
¢ The Goldfinch Industrial area is located off Highway 24.

Wheatland County offers a generous municipal tax incentive, with a 40%
reduction in municipal non-residential tax for three years for eligible
investors.

Wheatland County has a population of 8,738 residents. From golden
fields to the badlands of the northeast, to the tranquility of the Bow River,
Wheatland County is an ideal blend of rural and urban lifestyles.

Economic development and investment attraction are some of our top
priorities. Our county welcomes companies that want to be long-term
partners in our community. Find out why multinational companies like
Nutrien, Orica, Cargill, Richardson Pioneer, Stella Jones, and now CGC
Inc. and De Havilland Canada call Wheatland County home!

The County is bordered on the west by the Rocky View County, the
south by Vulean County and Siksika Nation, the east by the County of
Newell and Special Areas 2, and on the north by Kneehill County and the
Town of Drumheller. Within the Counly’s boundary (but under separate
administrations} is the Town of Strathmore and the villages of Hussar,
Rockyford and Standard.

Wheatland County



Investing in Wheatland County

Wheatland County is the ideal location to grow your business in Alberta.
Wheatland County offers businesses the following benefits:

e Low land costs

e Good proximity to urban centres and labour force

* Major highway access and rail service

¢ Generous tax incentive and low tax rate

s Developed industrial cluster

¢ Council that welcomes development and investment

Manufacturing

Wheatland County is home to manufacturers such as Crica, Nutrien, and
Stella Jones as well as numerous smaller companies. Heavy industrial is
located in the Goldfinch Industrial ASP, while light to medium industrial is
housed in the Origin Business Park.

Energy

Wheatland County is an energy powerhouse and there are over 8,000 oil
and gas wells dotted throughout the county. Large natural gas producers
such as Lynx Energy, Ember Resources, Persist Oil & Gas, and Torxen
Energy are represented in the county. Rocky Mountain Clean Fuels
operates a gas-to-liquids facility that converts natural gas into synthetic
fuels and hydrogen.

We also have a growing new energy industry with large solar, wind,
synthetic fuel manufacturing, and carbon capture projects at various
stages of development. The county is home to the East Strathmore Solar
Project—a 26 MW solar development as well as several other projects
from 13 to 150 MW at various stages of development. The Wheatland
Wind Project is a 122.4 MW wind generation project that produces enough
power for more than 50,000 homes.

The county is committed to attracting investment in the new energy and
petrochemical sectors and is actively engaged with industry.

Agribusiness

Home to 825 farms that span 1.3M acres, Wheatland County has the
feedstock to accommodate value-added processors. The western part of
the county has irrigation provided by the Western Irrigation District.

l.and

With an average agricultural land value of $3,386.64 per acre and average
industrial land cost of $350,000 per acre (business park lot), Wheatland

County has the lowest cost agricultural and industrial land in the Calgary
region.

Goldfinch Industrial Area

An area of 2,850 hectares,
the Goldfinch Industrial area
is Wheatland County's heavy
industrial hub and home to
large facilities including: Orica;
Nutrien; Federated Coop; Cargill;
Pioneer; and Stella Jones. CGC
Inc. has also committed to
building a plant in the area. The
area is part of Wheatland County's Goldfinch Industrial Area Structure
Plan—the only heavy industrial area in the Calgary region.

The area is located near the western border of the county and is serviced
by CP Rail and the Highway 24 corridor. It is also a short distance from
Highway 1, Glenmore Trail and Highway 22x. The CPR Calgary-Saskatoon
line runs through the area providing continent-wide shipping on a single
carrier.

Origin Business Park

Located on Highway 1 and the
B Wheatland County / Rocky View
e i == County border, Origin Business
Park is a mere 13-minute drive
from the intersection of Highway
1 and Stoney Trail. The business
park is part of Wheatland
County’s West Highway 1 Area
Structure Plan (ASP).

Businesses currently located here include Athabasca Oil, Midstream
Electric, Pumptrac, an RV storage lot, and an ESSO service station with
food court and truck stop. Lots in Origin include gas, 3-Phase 400 A power
and telephone.

Irrigation

The Western Irrigation District (WID) provides irrigation water to more
than 400 farms and 96,000 acres of land, and supplies municipal water
to 12,000 people in four different communities through 1,200 km of canals
and pipelines. Like other irrigation districts in Alberta, the WID operates
under the rules and procedures of the Irrigation Districts Act. The WID
is headquartered in Strathmore. The Western Irrigation District's roots are
firmly planted in the history of Alberta. The federal government agreed

THE WESTERN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Ler Secu [ B o

Harvie Passage

Bow River (weir)

Snow melt + rain

HOW CAN WE HELP YOU?

Irrigation canal

Buy, sell, rent acres - contact our experienced team.

Reservoir

(Chestermere Lake) ~ Water pipelines

www.wid.net

p. 403-934-3542 (
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to grant arable land to the Canadian Pacific Railway in payment for the
construction of a railroad joining Canada from coast to coast. Included
in this grant was land previously described as fit for homestead only if an
irrigation system could be supplied.

Natural Gas and Electricity

FortisAlberta manages the electrical infrastructure in Wheatland County
and ATCO manages natural gas infrastructure. There are a number of
providers for retail options for these services. To determine underground
infrastructure of a particular site, contact Alberta One-Call and submit a
locate request at 1-800-242-3447 or go to albertacnecall.com.

For more information on electricity services, visit the Alberta Utilities
Commission website.

The area serviced by each natural gas provider can be seen at the
Federation of Alberta Gas Co-ops website at www.fedgas.com/Map.

New Building Permits
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Source: Alberta Regional Dashboard.
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Business Support Programs

There are a number of programs and supports to assist a new or
expanding business through all levels of government, lenders, and non-
government organizations in our region. A Business Learning Toolkit at
investwc.ca (in the Data and Maps section) can help get you started with
things to consider in starting or expanding a business. Here are a list of few
organizations and programs to look into:

* Community Futures Wild Rose {wildrose.albertacl.com)
* Strathmore Wheatland Chamber of Commerce (www.theswce.ca)

New Business Incorporations
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Source: Alberla Regional Dashboard.

* Alberta Biz Connect

(https:/fwww.alberla.ca/small-business-resources.aspx)

* Prospect Rocky View and Wheatland Employment Services

(wwaw.prospectnow.calrwes/)
Wheatland County is the ideal location to grow your husiness! With

close proximity to the City of Calgary and Town of Strathmore, our vast
rural landscape is nestled belween two large urban centres.

Our council and residents welcome economic development and the
contribution it makes to our tax base and employment opportunities.
We are excited to work with companies that have a long-term vision of
becoming a partner in our community!

BECOME A
MEMBER
TODAY! (|
THESWCC.CA

35 afnerees Wha stlind Chambar

Nutrien Carseland is
Feeding the Future

nutrien.com/careers

Nutrien

Feeding the Future™

Wheatland County



DEMOGRAPHICS AND STATISTICS

Data from the Statistics Canada 2021 Census of population showed the
following:

Wheatland County's area is 4,505.05 km?.

Total population is 8,738.

There are 2,842 private dwellings.

Median after-tax income of families is $87,000.

Total labour force is 4,290.

There are 1,225 self-employed people.

Population

Wheatland County is primarily a rural region with an agricultural heritage.
With proximity to the City of Calgary, the county offers affordability and
a good quality of life. Many of the homes in Wheatland County, as well

AR

Save for what
matters.

Preparation and protection go hand in hand.

From insuring your first home to planning your

ideal retirement, get personalized advice and solutions
that help you move forward with confidence.

Talk to us today.

Investments. Insurance. Advice. 0}) CO'Operators

HOME AUTO FARM BUSINESS LIFE INVESTMENTS TRAVEL

Business & Community |

as the hamlets,
are single-family
dwellings. The
hamlets tend to
have large lots
and housing types
ranging from
manufactured
homes, bungalows
to large multi-story
dwellings.

The population on
the western side of

» Huisal

the County and around the Town of Strathmore are experiencing more

Toll free: 1-844-241-0020
Email: martin.shields@parl.gc.ca
Website: www.martinshieldsbowriver.ca




country-residential development with a commuting workforce, small
businesses, and industrial development.

The eastern side of the County has many large farms and ranches. The
eastern side is also undergoing economic diversification, with renewable
energy development and technological strides around agriculture
production.

Siksika Nation shares much of Wheatland County’'s southern border.
Many Indigenous people from the Nation also live and work in Wheatland
County and the towns within the region.

Language and ethnicity

Wheatland County data shows most residents (79.6%) speak English and
are of European descent.

In 2021, 5.1% of the population was foreign-born. The top birthplace of
foreign-born residents was the UK, USA, Netherlands and India.

Median Family Income

$115,000
$110,000
$105,000
$100,000
#95,000
*90,000
¥85,000
380,000

2017 2018 2019 2020
Source: Alberta Regional Dashboard.

Income and Education

In 2020, the median after-tax income of households in Wheatland County
was $87,000.

In 2021, 56.8% of the population 25 to 64 had post-secondary education

(certificate, diploma, bachelor's degree, trade certificate, etc.). Among
youth aged 18 to 24, 36.9% were attending post-secondary school.

Labour

In 2021, Wheatland County had 4,290 people in the labour force. There
were 290 unemployed people.

Lo el
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Climate

Wheatland County is located in a region of Alberta that experiences
“Chinook” winds. Chinocks, are féhn winds in the interior West of North
America, where the Canadian Prairies extend out of the Canadian Rockies
mountain range. The Blackfoot people term this wind “Snow Eater.” A
strong fdhn wind can make snow 30 centimetres deep almost vanish in
one day. The snow partly melts and partly sublimates in the dry wind.
Chinook winds have been observed to raise winter temperatures, often

RONA

300 Ranch Market
Strathmore, AB T1P 0A8

403-934-4679
RONA Strathmore66320@rona.ca

WWW.rona.ca

Wheatland County



Labour By Industry
| . Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting 1160 Wholesale Trade 150

Construction 480 Administrative & Support Services 140

l Retail Trade 310 Finance & Insurance 100
Health Care & Social Assistance 285 Accommodation & Food Services 80
Other Services 225 Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 60
Educational Services 210 Real Estate & Rental & Leasing 60
Professional, Scientific & Technical Services 205 Utilities 60
| Transportation & Warehousing 195 I j Industry Not Available 45
Manufacturing 165 Information & Cultural Industries 45
Mining, Quarrying & Qil & Gas Extraction 165 Management of Companies & Enterprises 15

Public Administration 150 Source: Alberta Regional Dashboard.

from below -20 °C to as high as 10-20 °C for a few hours or days, then Taxes
temperatures return to their base levels. The region is also exceptional for
agriculture with its long summer daylight hours. Irrigation is also active in Wheatland County has one of the lower tax rates in the region. This can

the region to allow for a diversity of crops and livestock production. be attributed to good fiscal management and an emphasis on economic
development.
Member of the
Legislative
Assembly for & 5
Chestermere-Strathmore S

Chantelle de Jonge

MLA Chestermere-Strathmore
Box 2527, Strathmore AB T1P 0H3
Local: 403-962-0126

chestermere.strathmaore@assembly.ab.ca

MIND.
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Worried ahout the risk of SLIPS AND FALLS?
What’s your LIABILITY? KNOW YOUR OPTIONS.

& 4 3 'u \

A WINNING COMBINATION

« Safe Solution® is a deep cleaning anti-slip application
process providing unsurpassed slip resistant qualities

" «Clean Step™ is a nontoxic, water soluble, high performance Doy Rasmussan
b , 3 ance,
daily multipurpose non-slip floor care safety cleaner, degreaser, Alberta Floor Safety ﬁl’l]llp

GLOBAL FLOOR i -815-
-SA_FETY NETWORK and sanitizer 403-815-1694

Our Floor Care Safety Program® has a 5 Year Price Guarantee Authorized Dealerships Avaifable
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On January 1, 1955, Improvement District No. 41, part of Improvement
District No. 42, part of the Municipal Districts of Bow Valley No. 40,
Serviceberry No. 43, and Kneehill No. 48, were merged into one new
municipal district to be known as the Municipal District of Wheatland No.
40. The Municipal District of Wheatland No. 40 and the Wheatland School
Division No. 40 joined together on January 1, 1961, and became known
as the County of Wheatland No. 16. On March 6, 1996, the name was
changed from the County of Wheatland No. 16 to the name currently used,
Wheatland County. The communities within Wheatland County have a long
and proud agricultural history and there are many century farms still in
operation.

Today, Wheatland County is a diverse and growing region consisting of
nine hamlets (urban areas) that the County governs and the three villages
of Hussar, Rockyford, and Standard, as well as the Town of Strathmore.
The villages and Strathmore are governed by their own elected councillors
and mayors.

Irrigation Brings Settlement and the CPR

The Western Irrigation District's roots are firmly planted in the history
of Alberta. The federal government agreed to grant arable land to the
Canadian Pacific Railway in payment for the construction of a railroad
joining Canada from coast to coast. Included in this grant was land
previously described as fit for homestead only if an irrigation system could
be supplied. With the mountains in the background and the vast prairies to
the east, the slope of the ground was ideal to construct a gravity irrigation
system.

In order to attract settlers to the area, the CPR began construction of a
network of irrigation canals and reservoirs starting with a diversion weir
across the Bow River in Calgary in 1904. With the construction of Main
Canal, water was carried from the Bow River into Reservoir #1 (Chestermere
Lake) and in 1905 it was filled for the first time. By 1910 secondary canal
systems were constructed and settlers had already received delivery of
irrigation waters.

40

ABOUT WHEATLAND COUNTY

Following the collapse of the economy in 1929, the CPR planned to divest
itself of the two irrigation districts which had been developed. On May 1,
1935, the Eastern Irrigation District (EID) was formed. Originally the CPR
had planned on closing the western section but after two years of meetings
between the farmers and the CPR, the Western Irrigation District (WID) was
born on May 1, 1944,

Rich Indigenous History

Blackfoot Crossing, located near the hamlets of Cluny and Gleichen, has
been a focus of human activity for many generations and a meeting place
for many peoples and aboriginal cultures. For this reason the site is of
integral importance to the traditions of the Siksika Nation. At the cultural
and geographic centre of traditional Blackfoot territory, it was one of the
few places where the Bow River could be forded safely. Consequently,
it was the site where representatives of the five First Nations of the
Blackfoot Confederacy (Kainai, Siksika, and Piikani) met Canadian treaty
commissioners in September 1877 to sign Treaty No. 7. Tsuu T'ina, Dene
and Nakoda are Sioux who where in transition through the territory at the
time of the treaty.

The rich variety of the archaeoclogical resources at Blackfoot Crossing
reflects the long history of the site and its importance in the traditions of the
Siksika. The social and cultural values of the site for the Siksika Nation are
enhanced by the rich variety of the archaeological resources that reflect
the long history of Blackfoot Crossing.

The remains included medicine circles, boulder effigies, cairns, buffalo
and antelope jumps, Sundance sites, and tobacco planting fields. Nearby
are the earthworks of the Earthlodge Village built circa 1740 by an, as yet
unidentified Aboriginal people, which bears witness to the interaction of
different native cultures at the Crossing. In more recent history, the grave
of Crowfoot and his last campsite and the monument to the Cree Chief
Poundmaker are of especial importance to the Siksika Nation. In addition,
the sites of the first Oblate mission, a whisky trading post, and an Indian
Agency post, are evidence of more recent interaction of native and white
cultures.

Wheatland County
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Vulcan County

Brief History of Canadian Pacific Railway Supply

Farm No. 1 at Strathmore The Canadian Pacific Railway (CPR) was
incorporated in 1881 for the purpose of constructing railroad west from
Winnipeg to Vancouver, thereby encouraging and attracting settlers to
establish homesteads across the west in a band along the railroad.

Initial plans were to construct the railroad west from Winnipeg to Edmonton,
then on to Vancouver; thus avoiding the Palliser Triangle, a large tract
of treeless, arid land deemed unsuitable for intensive agriculture and
therefore unlikely to generate a transportation services demand sufficient
to warrant the cost of establishing a railroad.

The Canadian Federal Government wished to have the railroad established
relatively close to the 49th parallel in order to secure a strong Canadian
presence on the prairies and thereby minimize American interests in the
area.

The Canadian Federal government and CPR, reasoned that irrigation
services would make the Palliser Triangle sufficiently productive to sustain
intensive agricultural practices. In turn, the increased productive capacity
would attract thousands of settlers thereby increasing demand for CPR
services as well as securing the area as a part of Canada.

Business & Community Profile
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Bassano

CPR

develop
irrigation
if  the

agreed to
large scale

projects

Canadian
Federal Government
would consclidate
the company's land
grants into an area
of three million acres
north of the Bow River and
running between Calgary and
Medicine Hat.

Three irrigation projects were proposed by the CPR

and named Western Section, Central Section, and Eastern

Section. The Western Section was first to be developed under the direction
of the Canadian Pacific Irrigation Division. Project offices were established
at Strathmore; construction started in 1903 and was completed in 1810.

In conjunction with the new irrigation project and further encourage

settlement of company lands, CPR established a demonstration and
supply farm at Strathmore in 1908.
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The Souqd

Wheatland County is considered the western gateway to the Canadian
Badlands. Country living is a theme throughout the County. With canals,
rivers, and creeks meandering from acreages in the west, through to the
large farms of the eastern area, Wheatland showcases the rural lifestyle
and hospitality of its residents, businesses, and community organizations,
The hamlets are unique and charming in their own ways. Community Halls,

sports fields, and arenas dot the region, and art and cultural events get the
community and visitors inspired in memorable social experiences.

Most homes in hamlets, county residences, and farms are unique in size
and style but are primarily single detached in type. Most housing and land
in Wheatland County would be considered afforable in comparison to other
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Ag Equipment, Feed & Supplies
Locally Handcrafted Gifts
Western Decor & Lifestyles Selection
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Green Mountain Grills
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Pellets & Charcoal

SweetPro

m IRERGEAELO SN N

DRYSHOD
The Farm & Ranch Source |

|19 Spruce Park Drive

Western Tack == 4
& Consignment
_Sectlon

\

ARG
ﬂ uru)

I*I CANADA

BOITANS)

Hovse Products

12 Wheatland County



areas surrounding Calgary and within the city itself for similar housing
types.

The Town of Strathmore and the Villages of Hussar, Rockyford and
Standard are their own self-governed municipalites within Wheatland
County boundaries and have, and continue to be part of the community
development within the region.

Hussar pop. 164 (2021)

Hussar was
unofficially  founded . ] *

in 1913 when the CPR E m @
established a station

and named it Hussar,

A community grew up

around the station and was incorporated as a village in 1928. The name
Hussar was used in honour of a group of German soldiers who belonged
to a German Hussar (cavalry) regiment who earlier had established a
large farm near Hussar. With the start of World War | most of the soldiers
returned to Germany and those who remained were interned for the
duration of the war. The land, which was part of this German Canadian
Farming Co. Ltd., was purchased after the war. Following the war, the
village and surrounding area began to grow with an influx of settlers from
around the world. English, Irish, Scots and Danes made up the bulk of the
settlers. Many of those settlers' descendants still reside in or around the
community.

Hockyford pop. 395 (2021)

The Village of Rockyford was
first settled in 1913 and takes
its name from a “rocky ford" that
crossed Serviceberry Creek a half
mile south of the village and was
incorporated as a village in March

=
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1919. Rockyford celebrated their

Centennial in 2019, and while the

village's history is rich in agriculture, they look forward to a strong, diverse
future.

Standard pop. 353 (2021)

Standard is a village situated

within  Wheatland County, V4
approximately 80 km east =) L
of Calgary. The village was
originally settled by Danish
immigrants. Standard's
economy is based on
the surrounding farming
community and the energy industry, with a number of oil and gas rigs in
operation in the vicinity.

Business &§ Community Profile

FAMILY SUPPORT AT TRELLIS

Wide spectrum of free services that build safety
and resiliency of infants, children, and youth
in a nurturing and supportive environment.

u. GROWWITHTRELLlS.CA/FAM!LIES

Trellis Commons
Family Resource Network TCJ trellis
4198 2 Street, Strathmore | 403-983-0076  SOCIETY

STRATHMORE

PROUDLY SUPPORTING
OUR CDMMUNITY

SCANTO
VIEW OUR
DAILY
SPECIALS

COME IN AND VISIT US'

Regbioed iradempks of Boston Pizzs Reyalbes Lizited Pactacnhlp, us
t Reghtersd tademark of Bostoa Plaza Interaaond! Ing. < Boeson Fizza lm

@ BostonPizza




Strathmore pop. 14,339 (2021)

The Town of Strathmore is the
largest urban community within
the region. Located on the Trans-
Canada Highway, it is home to over
11 schools, a regional hospital,
a brand-new field house sports
centre, and more. The annual
Strathmore Stampede is Canada’s
third largest rodeo and is famous
for the Running of the Bulls event.
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Strathmore had its beginnings as a small hamlet for the CPR lines that
were built in the area in 1883. Since then, the town has become a regional
service hub and recently celebrated it's centennial in 2011,

The Hamlets

Carseland / Speargrass

Carseland is located on
Highway 24, approximately
23 km south of Cheadle and
26 km south of Strathmore.
The advent of the cattlemen
in the late 1800s to the Bow
River country, west of the

NEMBRM
BEOEB

Blackfoot Indian Reserve braught men like: Major General Thomas Bland
Strange (1881), Charlie Hawks, Colonel Arthur Goldfinch, Felix McHugh
(1886), and Colonel Arthur Wyndham (1887) to the Carseland area.

When the Military Colonization Company, which Strange had founded
ceased to exist, the CPR permitted free grazing on their 3,000,000 acres
(12,000 km2) on the north side of the Bow and it altracted many new
settlers to the area.

The Addemans, Moffats, and McGregors purchased the Horsetrack
from the Goldfinchs and started the Horsetrack Cattle Company in 1901.
Others such as Groves, Moorhouse, Brown, McHughes, McKinnon, and
Newbolts soon followed.

When the open range came to an end, most of the area's cattlemen
became the first grain farmers of the district. In 1903, the CPR brought
irrigation to its large land acquisitions in the Carseland area.

As the land prospered and more product was being shipped by rail to
market, the CPR began construction of the Gleichen/Shepard cut-off in
1913. These rails carried troops to the First World War in 1914,

Due to its proximity to the river crossing and railway, Carseland grew
rapidly into a prosperous community during the 1920s through 1940s. It
boasted six grain elevators, a railway station, school, general store, barber
shop and pool-room, post office, restaurant, garage and Ford car dealer,
well house, lumber yard, hardware store, meat market, bank, stock yards,
two churches, hotel, and community centre. Only three original buildings
remain standing on Railway Avenue. They are the hotel, former Carseland
Meat Market owned by the Bonitz family and the former hardware store -
all of which were built in 1916.

Located 30 minutes from Calgary and only a few kilometres from Carseland,
the Speargrass Golf Course Community is a new housing development of
single-family homes based around an 18-hole golf course adjacent to the
banks of the Bow River. The population is 309 and growing.

Speargrass Golf Course Community offers a range of residential options
for those seeking to own a piece of Southern Alberta’s natural splendor.
Fully serviced lots are available to build cozy weekend cottage getaways
along the golf course, while river valley estate lots provide a stunning
beginning for those who want to create a custom dream home. Subtly
ranch-themed architectural controls are provided to ensure both cottages
and estate homes complement the natural beauty of the surrounding
river valley landscape. The Speargrass residential real estate program
includes a completely comprehensive, supportive buying, design and
building process.

CATWORK BACKHOE JHY HOE 'BOBCAT BASEMENTS

SEPTIC SYSTEMS ' WATER & SEWER INSTALLATION"
CLAY ' TOP SOIL:

R
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Chancellor

Chancellor is a hamlet in Wheatland County. It is located approximately 26
kilometres north of Highway 1 and 86 kilometres east of Calgary.

Chancellor originally was built up chiefly by Germans, who named the
hamlet after the office of the Chancellor of Germany.

Cheadle

Cheadle is located 2.6 kilometres
south of Highway 1, approximately >< 3 0
30 kilometres east of Calgary. @ @ _3\ l“a
The CPR named the community

Cheadle for Dr. Walter Butler

Cheadle of Milton and Cheadle explorers who traveled across the prairies
and Rocky Mountains in the 1860s. Dr. Cheadle and Lord Milton were
co-authors of the book The North-West Passage by Land (London, 1865),
which described their expedition in considerable detail.

A record was made when laying the railroad tracks between Strathmore
and Cheadle when the railway was built. In one hour a mile of steel was
laid. At the end of the ten-hour working day, the rails were laid to Cheadle,
nine miles and 300 feet for a record. The ties had been strung the night
before.

There was just one minor building in Cheadle when the early ranchers and
homesteaders began to arrive in the late 1890s. It was a post office, store,
and boarding home, run by Mrs. Florence Belwer for the CPR section-
men. Cheadle began to grow in the years 1906-1916 to a hardware
store, barbershop, blacksmith, restaurant, pool hall, dance hall, three
grocery stores, water tank, CPR station and section houses, stockyards,
lumberyard, two grain elevators, and several residences. The CPR had
once planned to locate Ogden Shops in Cheadle.

At one time, grain was hauled to Cheadle from Carseland. The transport
teams ate and rested in Cheadle before returning. This all brought much
of the business to Cheadle and raised the total number of grain elevators
to 3. By 1971, Cheadle’s post office and grocery store closed.

Cluny

Cluny is located 3 kilometres south of Highway 1
on a CPR line and Highway 843, approximately
87 kilometres southeast of Calgary.

The hamlet at Cluny is similar to earth lodge

villages found along the Missouri River in what is now North and South
Dakota. This is why archaeologists first thought that the hamlet had
perhaps been occupied by the ancestors of the historic Crow and
Hidatsa, who came from this region. These peoples would have fled from
their traditional territory along the Missouri River to escape the ravages of
a Smallpox epidemic.

Archaeologists have found pottery very similar to that found at Cluny at
a number of other archaeological sites throughout southern Alberta and
Saskatchewan, and in northern Montana. This suggests that the region
was inhabited by the same or closely related peoples. Cluny and the
other sites with similar pottery might represent the expansion of a group
of native peoples into those areas. These were possibly the ancestors of
the historic Assiniboine.

Gleichen

Gleichen is located 2.5 kilometres south
of Highway 1 and approximately 80
kilometres east of Calgary. Gleichen was
named after Lord Edward Gleichen in
1884. Gleichen was originally incorporated
as a village on January 24, 1899 and then

incorporated as a town on May 6, 1910.
After nearly 100 years as a municipality

however, Gleichen dissolved to hamlet status on March 31, 1998.

During the formation of the province, Gleichen was large enough to have
its own seat in the Legislative Assembly of Alberta. Its population peaked
at 668 according to the Canada 1921 Census.

Due to its proximity to the railroad, Gleichen was readily accessible to
farmers and ranchers living in the area. Its mostly wooden structures
however posed anincreased risk of widespread fires. After the community
burned a second time in 1912, many of its residents moved elsewhere.

Lyalta / Lakes of Muirfield

Lyalta is located 8 kilometres north
of Highway 1, approximately 32
kilometres east of Calgary.

The Lakes of Muirfield is a quaint

countryside community located just off Highway 564. If you are looking
for a tranquil, friendly neighborhood that is close enough to commute to
the city in just 20 minutes, or even the Calgary International Airport in 25
minutes, then the Lakes of Muirfield is for you. Situated on an 18-hole golf
course in the beautiful prairies, the Lakes of Muirfield offers its residents
not just a home, but a lifestyle like no other. Take a step outside the city
and see what Muirfield has to offer!

The Lakes of Murfield area has a current population of 460. The community
is home to a community centre, post office, two baseball diamonds, a new
playground, and campground. The Lakes of Muirfield, has a planned size
of 700 homes and is adjacent to Lyalta.
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Namaka

Namaka is located approximately 10 kilometres south
of Highway 1 and 55 kilometres east of Calgary. Iis
name means “near the water" in Blackfoot. The first
school was built in 1909.

Nightingale

Nightingale is located 4 kilometres west of
Highway 21, approximately 53 kilometres east
of Calgary.

b [ 3

Rosebud

Rosebud is located on Highway 840,
10 kilometres south of Highway 9, and
approximately 83 kilometres east of
Calgary. It sits in a sheltered valley on
the Rosebud River near the edge of the
Canadian Badlands. This area was called
Akokiniskway by the Blackfoot people,
which translates roughly to “by the river of
many roses.”

b4 () [ (&)
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The hamlet was founded in the 1885 by James Wishart. While following
the Gleichen Trail to Montana with his family, they awoke to the river valley
covered by wild roses, Alberta’s official flower.

Previously an incorporated municipality, Rosebud dissolved from village
status on January 1, 1946.

Over the years, farming and coal mining have been the primary industries.
In 1972, the Severn Creek School was shut down as part of an Alberta
wide education consolidating process and local children were bused to
Standard and Drumheller. This resulted in many of the local businesses

being closed and the hamlet population dropped to under a dozen
people. However, the farming community of around 400 still support a
seed cleaning plant.

In the 1980s, the Rosebud School of the Arts began to run theatre, which
eventually developed into Rosebud Theatre and the school shifted its
emphasis to post-secondary education. Today, the Rosebud Theatre runs
as a fully professional company that offers programming year round and is
a tourist attraction drawing patrons from Calgary and Drumheller.

The Localities of Wheatland County

Dalum

Dalum was settled as a Danish colony in 1917 with
land bought from the CPR. The community is south of
the Red Deer River and the Town of Drumheller along
Highway 56.

m

Land was offered at 10 per cent down and 20-year agreement at $14-
$18 per acre. Due to difficulty in the agriculture industry at that time,
the agreements were renegotiated and most of the land was eventually
purchased for four to five dollars an acre.

The area is a very positive mixed farming area with numerous 4th and
5th generation farms. The residents very proud of their Danish ancestry
and support an active Lutheran Christian community. The original
homesteaders built and slill maintain a lovely replica church similar in
design as those that exist in Denmark. In 2017 they celebrated a large
100 year homecoming event.

VALUE
DRUG
MART

132 - 2nd Avenue
Box 60003
Strathmore, AB T1P 0C2

403-934-3122

valuedrug.ca
morcksfieldhallmark.ca

All Your FamiyNeeds
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Plumbing
Heating

Air Conditioning
Boilers

i1

Hydronics
Drain Cleaning
Gas Fitting

K

KINGFISHER

7 SERVICES INC,

587.602.3315 (f)

info@kingfisherservices.ca P.0. Box 559, Carseland 'T0.J 0M0

Wheatland
Funeral Home Ltd.

403-934-4404

www.wheatlandfuneralhome.ca
info@wheatlandfuneralhome.ca

Serving Wheatland County,
Strathmore, and Area Since 1984
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Other Localities

* Ardenode e Eagle Lake e Strangmuir

¢ Baintree * Makepeace s Tudor

* Bartstow * Redland * Wintering Hills
* Crowfoot * Rosebud Creek

¢ Duck Lake * Stobart

Between Hussar and Dalum in the eastern part of the County, oil and gas
is active as well as wind power generation in the Wintering Hills area.

Exteriors

&y Arbont

Trust in the Legacy of Exteriors by Abbott.

+ Elevate your home's curb appeal.
+ We specialize in new construction & renovations.
+ We are Siding & Gutter Specialists

& we only use premium materials.

Side with the best!
exteriorsbyabbott.com
403-901-5112
info@exteriorsbyabbott.com

There is a five section shallow lake just north of Hussar that goes dry every
40 - 50 years and take 10 - 20 years to refill. Reflective of the wet and dry
cycles of the global weather patterns.

The surrounding communities of Duck Lake, Wintering Hills, Chancellor
and Makepeace utilize Hussar as a focal gathering point. Many of the rural
communities and localities utilize the villages and Town of Strathmore as
their urban service points.

Superstar Plumbing & Heating

« Residential &
Commerdial
New Construction
Plumbing & Heating

« Cross Connection
Certified

« Septic Tanks

« Installation & repairs: _
HOT WATER TANKS, j
FURNACES,
WATER SOFTNERS, //
FIREPLACES. )

FORALLKINDS OF PLUMBING & HEATING NEEDS.

Sukhpaul: 403-690-1235
__“paulbrarl7@gmail.com
416 Mederian Road SE Bay #10B

10 « O 11 1#+v D ~1a
Business & Community Profile
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EVENTS

The Hamlet of Carseland The Hamlet of Rosebud
* Aggie Days - June ¢ 15 Minutes of Fame Festival
- August
The Town of Strathmore * Rosebud Chamber Music

« Alberta Culture Days Festival
i - September - July
; ¢ Car Show - summer « Rosebud Theatre
* Disc Golf Tournament - Year-round -
-July 1
: i  Easter Egg Hunt - late April ~ The Hamlet of Gleichen
« Family Day Unplugged « Hockey Day in Gleichen
- February - February long weekend
¢ Heritage Days / Strathmore * Holiday Train - December
Stampede
- August long weekend The Village of Hussar
« July 1% Celebrations * Hussar Daze - mid June

- Kinsmen Park

« Santa Claus Parade

* Tour 564 Trade Show
- summer

* Tri $’'more Triathlon
- mid June

The Village of Rockyford
* Rodeo - July

The Village of Standard
« Standard Days - mid June

ptional living in our thoughtfully designed,
ient homes. Krom spacious interiors
premium finishes, we're committed to creating the
perfect sanctuary for you and your family.
Embrace the Aquilla difference today —
your dream home awaits!

WWW.AQUILLAHOMES.COM

Wheatland County



Wheatland Fami 1_,! & Community
z} Suppont Service
\/ o [

4 x/ﬁ\fo

Rom pet- yourstore

0, s
‘&’ Self Serve Dog Wash

‘&' Frozen Raw Treats & Food
ar Adoption Events (Cat & Dog)

ﬁ PetValuStrathmore

Strathmore
250 Edgefield Place

403-902-0695

petvalu.ca

CENTURY 21

Bamber Realty

Nettie Hendricks
403.875.7981

nettiehendricksl@gmail.com
bamberrealty.c2l.ca

Each office is independently awned and operated

:MAIRK\‘SIMON”
403.499.9209

MARK@MARKS-PARTS.CA
" MARKS-PARTS.CA

Drive Thru - Indoor & Patio Seating
Mobile & Curbside Pickup » Delivery (o casroasu)

210 Ridge Road, Strathmore, AB « 403-934-5661
Open 7 days a week, from 10:00 am to 10:00pm

An Arts & Culture
Cornerstone

Where Strathmore’s history, arts & culture meet.

Store Hours
Mon-Sat
10am-4pm

A one-stop shop for

all things cultural, arts &
community related.

thevaultonline.ca
thevaultcc2021@gmail.com /

136 2" Ave.
\_403.901.1654

Bringing you the Taste of
Summer - all year long,

By Appointment Anytime
Highway 817 and Twp 232

Gl Sone

FRUIT WINES

Visit our website for other locations
www.ficldstonefruitwines.com/find-us

After Hours:
403-804-0562

B e T e e L e ]
CARSELAND HANDY EQUIPMENT REPAIR INC.

81 Barstow Street | Carseland AB TOJ OMO | 403-901-0208 | repair@cherinc.ca
OPEN WHEN YOU NEED US
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Service with Integrity

Proudly founded in Strathmore, AB in 2008, Magnum offers primary and
remedial (P&A) oilfield cementing services, downhole tools, cement
soil stabilization, and fluid services across Western Canada and the
United States. Many of these services can be applied across various
industries, such as oil & gas, agriculture, construction, roads and
1 infrastructure, laydown yards, and retention ponds. By applying
M= A G N U M technical expertise and efficiency, we offer the highest quality
B standards in everything that we do.

[

General inquiries or sales: 403-934-9458 » info@magnumservices.com
Head office address: 601 Westmount Road = Strathmore AB T1P 1W8
www.magnumservices.com




WhETA ol

MAGAZINE
RATE CARD

DISTRIBUTION

To be distributed in venues designed to attract new residents and new
businesses (and thereby help grow the local economy and community). Can
also be distributed through the County office, community offices, real estate
agencies, show homes, trade shows, investor packages, local brochure racks
and local businesses. The publication will be made available digitally as well,
which allows for unlimited use and distribution, as well as convenient sharing
by local businesses and residents.

DISPLAY ADVERTISING

Outside Back Cover (page) ..... ;
Inside Front or Inside Back Cover (page) ..

(Prices do not include GST)

$2,850
Full Page ... ..$2,495
2/3 Page. $1,845
1/2 Page . .5$1,595
1/3 Page . .. $995
1/4 Page ... ..$795
1/6 Page Square ..58525
1/8 PAGE .oovcreecnsiasianon
AD DIMENSIONS (INCHES)

WIDTH X HEIGHT

Cover / Full Page with Bleed 8.75" X 11.25"

{trims to) 85" X 11"

Live Area (keep vital text & imagery within) 8* X 10.5"
Full Page without Bleed 75" X 10"

* “With bleed” refers to images that flow to the edges of the printed page. Bleeds require that
images flow past the edge and they are then trimmed. Contact graphics@tncpublishing.com
for assistance and any questions you might have about ad specifications.

213 Page s i X 6.6"
1/2 Page Horizontal . X 4.877"
1/3 Page Horizontal ...... b 315"
1/3 Page Vertical X 10"
1/4 Page Horizontal . X 2327"
1/4 Page Vertical X 4.877"
1/6 Page Square ............ X 3.15"
1/8 Page Horizontal ... X 2.327"

DESIGN SUPPORT

All display advertising rates include design support supplied by TNC Publishing.

The following options for design support are offered:
- design of a new ad {material may need to be supplied to designer),
- resize / revise an existing ad (material may need to be supplied to
designer), or
+you may submit a completed ad.

Full Page Full Page
i (with Bleed) : {without
i 1/2 Page
: Bleed) : 1/3 Page
(o) (Horizontal)
1/4 Page
{Vertical) 1/6 Page
{Square) 1/8 Page
1/4 Page (Horizontal)
(Horizontal)

DEADLINE: space booking & payment: April 15,2025
Creative booking: April 22, 2025

DESIGN SUPPORT (continued)

Time is of the essence. If you would like us to DESIGN a NEW ad for you, all copy
and images must be submitted to the designer as soon as possible, so that any
revisions to the design can be done in a suitable time frame. Suggested items
toinclude are:

+Your company logo (if any; alternately, indicate if there are type
styles that you use in your advertising, a.k.a. branding);

«Your slogan(s) if any, a bulleted list of products or services that you
sell or provide, and the contact information you'd like in the ad;

+ If there are photos that highlight your business or products that
you would like to use, please include them.

«If your business is part of a larger company chain, we may already
have your logo on file, and the parent company may have some
marketing materials available to us. Feel free to ask if we know of
any resources that may help.

Images (including logos) should be high resolution, with minimal to ne
compression. If you're not sure what that means, the safest bet is to look for
the largest-sized / largest file size images that you have onhand (i.e. images
can always be reduced and lose detail, but they can't be enlarged and gain the
detail back again). Website images or scans are not always of good enough
detail for print purposes. Hi-res logos are often in EPS, TIFF or Adobe (Al, PSD,
sometimes PDF) file formats.

Please send images as attachments, and NOT embedded / displayed within
emails or Word documents (which tend to compress them and lose image
quality). If you find the images are too large to email, please contact our
graphics department to find out some easy ways to send them.

In the event copy and/or artwork is not submitted by publication date, TNC
Publications is authorized to insert copy of its own choosing. (This is a last resort, in
order to ensure that deadlines are maintained).

For additional design service information, or to obtain production
specifications, please email graphics@tncpublishing.com.

PROOFS

One proof will be sent prior to publication. For any changes to the proof other
than typing errors, phone number and address corrections, an additional
production cost will be applied to your invoice.

TERMS

Payment in full is to be submitted with this agreement unless prior
arrangements were made with an approved credit application. Any
outstanding balances must be paid prior to publication.

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

Contact Bobbi Joan O’'Neil at 403-203-2963

bobbijoan@tncpublishing.com

Rates subject to change without notice. REV. MAR. 12, 2025



MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

Office of the Minister
MLA, Calgary-Hays

AR118376
March 12, 2025

Dear Chief Elected Officials:

As you are aware, changes to the Local Authorities Election Act (LAEA) in Bill 20, the Municipal
Affairs Statutes Amendments Act, 2024, came into force on October 31, 2024. One of these
changes prohibits the use of tabulators, voting machines, vote recorders, and automated voting
systems in local elections.

This change inadvertently created a lack of clarity regarding whether Elector Assistance
Terminals (EATs) would be permitted in upcoming local elections. As you may know, an EAT is
an assistive voting machine that enables electors with visual or physical disabilities to vote
independently and privately. EATs are not connected to the Internet or another network and
create a paper ballot that records the vote cast by the elector. EATs were offered in some local
jurisdictions in the 2021 general elections and to electors in the 2023 provincial general election.

Our government is planning to bring forward LAEA amendments in spring 2025 to clarify that
local authorities may, by bylaw, offer EATs to electors. In order to offer EATs in the 2025 general
local elections, a local authority will be required to pass a bylaw by June 30, 2025.

If you have any questions regarding this upcoming change, please reach out to Municipal Affairs
staff by telephone at 780-427-2225 (toll-free in Alberta by first dialing 310-0000) or via email at
ma.advisory@gov.ab.ca.

Sincerely,

Rl'c. M f/(u\'l/\a
Ric Mclver
Minister

320 Legislature Building, 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2B6 Canada Telephone 780-427-3744 Fax 780-422-9550

Classification: Public



Information Bulletin 02/2025

Key Municipal Dates
April 1 - June 30, 2025

April 1

April 30

April 30

April 30

April 30

May 1

May 1

May 1

The Provincial Priorities Act and associated Regulation come into force on April
1, 2025. Municipalities and municipal entities will need to submit information to
Municipal Affairs on all new agreements with the federal government. Information
on the submission process, an Intake Form, and Fact Sheet is available

at: Federal agreements and the municipal sector | Alberta.ca

Last day for municipalities to pass a supplementary assessment bylaw or an
amendment to it. See section 313 of the Municipal Government Act (MGA).

Last day to establish a bylaw providing for electronic means of public hearings for
planning and development matters. More information is available at: Bill 20:
Changes to the MGA | Planning and Development Public Hearings

Last day for municipalities to pass a business tax bylaw or an amendment to it.
See section 371 of the MGA and the Business Improvement Area Regulation
(AR 93/2016).

Last day for municipalities to pass a business improvement area tax bylaw or an
amendment to it. See sections 50 to 53, and 381, of the MGA and the Business
Improvement Area Regulation (AR 93/20186).

Each municipality must make its financial statements, or a summary of them, and
the auditor's report on the financial statements, available to the public in the
manner the council considers appropriate. See section 276 of the MGA.

Last day for municipalities to submit the audited financial statements, audited
financial information return, and the auditor’s report to the Minister. See section
278 of the MGA.

Last day for a Regional Services Commission to submit the audited financial
information return and audited financial statements to the Minister and each
member of the commission. See section 602.37 of the MGA.
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May 1

June 16

June 30

Municipal Affairs
Administrators’
Training Initiative

Local Election
Resources

Statement of Expenditures and Project Outcomes (SEPQO) submission due date
for Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF), and the Canada Community-
Building Fund. Statement of Funding and Expenditures (SFE) submission due
date for any remaining unspent Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) capital
and operating programs. Local Governments will be notified when the LGFF
Operating system is available to accept LGFF operating SFEs.

Last day for municipalities (primarily rural) to submit tax arrears information for

assessed persons that hold a license or approval issued by the Alberta Energy
Regulator (AER). Arrears data received by this date will be included in the June
quarterly reporting to the AER.

Municipalities must submit the second quarterly instaliment to a board or the
Alberta School Foundation Fund. See section 162(3) of the Education Act.

Upcoming Training Opportunities

The spring edition of the Municipal Affairs Administrators’ Training Initiative
(MAATI) will feature a suite of virtual sessions from April 7, 2025, to May 9, 2025.
To learn about the sessions on offer and to register, please click on the MAATI
tab at Training for municipal officials | Alberta.ca.

To support the general election on October 20, 2025, ministry staff have been
updating local election resources.

New election resources are available at Municipal Elections Overview |
Alberta.ca. This includes returning officer handbooks and other written materials,
election checklists, returning officer training videos, etc. A few additional
resources are being finalized.

Pre-recorded returning officer training videos (with more on the way) are

available at Municipal Elections Overview | Alberta.ca.

Finally, change management fact sheets have been developed that provide a
high-level overview of the changes introduced by Bill 20, the Municipal Affairs
Statues Amendment Act. These are available at Changes to the MGA 2024 |
Alberta.ca; and Changes to the LAEA 2024 | Alberta.ca.
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Council Committee Report
March 2025
Darcy J. Burke

Wademsa
¢ Union Negotiations ongoing/Mediation or Arbritration could be next steps
e AHS Financial Audit ongoing with request of more information
s« New CFO hired and doing well

Wheatland Regional Corporation
e  AGM held
s Review of Audit and acceptance
e Review of USA with questions presented, sent back to legal for clarification
s Another shareholder meeting possible



CFWR 2025 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

OUR IMPACT since 1989

35,134 $38,848,708 50,583

Jobs Created Business Coaching

or Maintained In Loans Sessions
101,997 $53,296,594 19,493
Client Services Leveraged Funds Business Training
Delivered into our Communities Sessions

THIS FISCAL ArRIL 1, 2024 - FEBRUARY 28, 2025

| Chestermere Loans b‘l Region | Bassano.‘

| Irricana | 1% [ . 1% |

7%

*Rackyview County |
10%

Kneehill County
4%

Wheatland County i
20%

Strathmore

45% Trochu

5%

Three Hills
1% |

Loans: $1,445,475
Leveraged Funds: $597,309

Entrepreneurs Trained: 562 Community
CED Projects: 6 Futures wid rose



CFWR 2025 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

THIS MONTH -reeruary 2025

L]

Training Program offered: “Understanding and Supporting ADHD in the Workplace”
Heart of the Community Campaign Update:

o Total # of nominations: 81

o Q2 Nominations open March 1
CFWR facilitated SWCC Strategic Planning Session
Revised Lending Policy Approved

Lower Level Renovations underway

Torrington — @ Trochu

Acme, Bassano, Beiseker, Carbon,

(27) Chestermere, Hussar, lrricana,
Kneehill County, Linden, Rockyford,
Standard, Strathmore, Three Hills,
Trochu, Wheatland County.

* and parts of Rocky View County

Three Hills

# 2 HIGHWAY

| LRosebud
CZDRockyford
— @, P

564
Standard S
y @

561

Daleme

2028

Carseland

Community
Futures wid rose
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CAQO Report-March 2025

-Campspot reservation system went live

-work on budgets

-meeting with Wheatland County regarding funding for infrastructure
-agenda package

-Palliser development permit webinar

-look at sidewalks for replacement

-WREMP regional advisory meeting

-annual water/wastewater reports and 7 day contravention letters due to missing deadline
-hosted WFCSS tax clinic

-read through Land Use Bylaw to refresh

-download February and March meetings

-WRC annual general meeting

-legal meeting

-work with Bonnie on various items



